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OBSERVANCE OF NATIONAL CHILDREN'S DAY

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 1989.

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
TASK FORCE ON HUMAN RESOURCES.

COMMITTEE ON THE BUDGET AND
SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES,

Washington, DC.
The Task Force met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m., in room 210,

Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Barbara Boxer, chairman, pre-
siding

Mrs. BOXER. We are going to begin this hearing.
When Congressman Kennedy comes in, we will ask him to pro-

ceed to the witness table.
I am Congresswoman Barbara Boxerthere he is.
Congressman, you can either present your testimony from the

witness table or come up here and present it, whatever is your
wish.

Why don't you stay with i .a kids for a while.
I am happy to welcome you to this joint hearing on the Budget

Committee Task Force on Human Resources and the Select Com-
mittee on Children, Youth, and Families., chaired by Congressman
George Miller.

As chairman of the Select Committee, Congressman Miller pro-
vided a voice for our children. It has been my pleasure to serve on
the Select Committee and to work side by side with him in making
children's issues more visible.

National Children's Day, which was introduced by Congressman
Kennedy and passed the House, has a festive ring, but our observa-
tion of this day has some somber aspects. I know that some of you
are aware of the statistics that have come out of the Children's
Report Card and Congressman Miller's Select Committee.

In 1986, nearly 70,000 pregnant women received no prenatal
care. A 1986 survey of births in 36 hospitals found that 11 percent,
or 375,000 babies, were born to mothers who used il!egal drugs
during their pregnancies.

Nearly 40,000 infants died before their first birthday. The infant
mortality rate in Washington, DC rose 50 percent the first half of
1989. Over 20 percent of our children are poor.

A report released recently by the Select Committee shows that
over 45 percent of black children are poor and, roughly, 45 percent
of blacks and 50 percent of Hispanics failed to complete high
school.

These statistics will no doubt be dramatized by our witnesses.
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As the Select Committee's report points out, the need for compre-
hensive remedial actions has never been more urgent. The Presi-
dent's plea to increase funding for the war on drugs by cutting
funding for programs such as juvenile justice, illustrates the prob-
lems we face in setting our priorities.

I am delighted to welcome our child ambassadors from across the
country and a distinguished group of adult witnesses. I would like
to ask the young people to stand. You are very special. You were
selected by the Governors of your States.

Will you all stand, those of you speaking and those of you who
are here as part of the group. Thank you very much. We are very,
very proud that you are here, and we know that you can help us
find a way.

National Children's Day is a day in which we are going to con-
centrate on the problems of young people. We have to do it around
here a lot more than that.

Our first witness is our distinguished friend and colleague, Con-
gressman Joe Kennedy, who deserves our praise for organizing the
National Children's Day and preparing a 50-state report card of
child indicators in order to help focus attention on the plight of
America's children. Several of our adulc witnesses were involved in
the formation of this report card. And on behalf of this Budget
Task Force and the Select Committee on Childrea, Youth, and
Families, I commend them for their efforts.

[The opening statement of Mrs. Boxer may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. At this time I would like to ask my colleague George
Miller if he has remarks.

Mr. MILLER. Thank you.
I want to join you in thanking Congressman Kennedy for bring-

ing about this event and also National Children's Day. One of the
things we have tried to do during the life of the Select Committee
on Children, Youth, and Families is to hear directly from young
people throughout our country on the various problems that con-
front them.

We have tried not just to listen to adults who have become ex-
perts, but to talk to young people and to their families, sometimes
about the most sensitive subjects you can imagine, about teenage
pregnancy, adolescent suicide, about their schools, about the prob-
lems of drugs, and what they think we ought to be doing.

National Children's Day gives us another opportunity to hear
from all of you about what you think national policy with respect
to children ought to be in a general sense, or very specifically
about problems that might frighten you or that confront you and
your friends as you try to make your way through adolescence.

I think it is going to be a very, very exciting hearing.
Joe, I want to thank you very much for bringing the two commit-

tees together. The Budget Committee obviously sets the priorities
throughout the year on how much money we are going to spend on
children in this Nation and how much we are not going to spend.

The Select Committee continues to try to provide a forum to dis-
cuss the problems that confront young people in America.
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So thank you very much for all of your help and support, Con-
gresswoman Boxer, both on the Select Committee and on chairing
this hearing.

Joe, thank you very much for bringing these children here as
ambassadors.

[The opening statement of Mr. Miller may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Congressman Miller. Congressman
Bliley?

Mr. &HAY. Thank you, Madam Chairman.
In this committee we have said so many times, in so many differ-

ent ways, that our children, individually and collectively, are our
Nation's treasure. We meet today to affirm that once again.

Each child, from the very moment life begins, has great posses-
sions and intrinsic value. Our young people must know that the
true measure of a person is not what a person has materially, but
what he or she does, each according to his ability.

The fundamental test for government is to protect each child's
opportunity to make a contribution to society. This is the essence
of government's relation to its citizens.

The Select Committee has just released its third report on the
trends and conditions of children and their families. There is a
great deal of information in this report of more than 250 pages.

But to summarize in a single sentence, we cannot separate what
is happening within their families.

For the past two decades, we have known that single parenthood
is a prescription of poverty, regardless of race. Seventy percent of
children living with both parents were in families with incomes of
$25,000 or more per year, but just 12 percent of children living
with mothers only achieved this economic level.

Conversely, about 47 percent of the children living with single
mothers were in families with income levels below $7,500, com-
pared with a mere 4 percent of those residing with both parents.

The number of one-parent family groups with children under age
18 has increased by 146 percent since 1970.

Congress has not offered any policy which would effectively re-
verse this trend. There is no national program we know of which
has proven its ability to end premarital sexual activity and teenage
pregnancy; we know of no national strategy to reverse the 33 per-
cent decline in economic status women experience with divorce.

We spend a great deal of money trying to alleviate the hardships
of these problems, but that is dealing with the symptoms, not the
real cause of the condi*ion.

We have long kn 'n that the best program for out children is
still an education. Yet, despite the steady increase in public ex-
penditures on education, we know of no national solution to keep
each and every child in school until he or she has mastered the
necessary skills to successfully compete in the job market.

We also know that a child often is at -risk for multiplicity of prob-
lems. But as long as Congress insists on micro-managing the
present piecemeal system, it seems likely that children will contin-
ue to fall between the gaps which exist virtually by design. Thus,
we cannot claim that Federal policies presently before us will
indeed reverse these trends.
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In a positive note, and I think this is reflected by the young
people testifying before the committee today, the report affirms
that children can change their future by staying in school.

Young people need to know that the labor market is expanding
for those who get a solid education.

As we look to the future for our children can change their future
by staying in school. Young people need to know that the labor
market is expanding for those who get a solid education.

As we look to the future for our children, parents and policymak-
ers alike can do well to heed the advice of Dr. John Silber which he
gave at Boston University commencement in May 1981: "we will
ill serve ourselves and our children by preparing ourselves and
them for a life of freedom and easy pleasure that may never come
and most certainly will never last. We had better prepare ourselves
and them for reality: A reality that is infused with moral laws as
surely as it is infused with physical laws; a reality in which there
is no consumption without production, no freedom without defense,
no self-fulfillment and no self-government without self-disciplined
persons who govern themselves, persons who are capable of subor
dinating their desires long enough to achieve (those) conditions on
which freedom and survival, and even pleasure, depend."

Mrs. BOXER. Mr. Durbin?
Mr. DURBIN. No statement.
Mrs. BOXER. Mr. Walsh?
Mr. WALSH. I would like to extend greetings to a young man

from my home district, as a matter of fact, from the neighborhood
in which I grew up in New York and extending greetings to all the
children here today. I am looking forward to hearing from them.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you. Mr. Martinez?
Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. I don't have

any opening statement, but Y would like to take this opportunity to
comment on a couple of things.

It seems like we all talk about the same things over again. In the
71/2 years I have been here I have heard the same statistics and the
same problems reiterated many different ways, and it doesn't seem
we come any closer to providing active solutions to those problems.

I recently visited a Conservation Corps Center where I talked to
some of the young people. I happened to mention to one young man
that I had read about his background and commented on the fact
that he was a dropout.

When I mentioned the word dropout, he turned to me and said,
"I am not a dropout, I am a forceout."

I asked him what he meant by that, and he elaborated. He said,
"My environment, my family situation and all the circumstances
in which I was born and (Frew up in caused me to be forced out of
school." He said, "It was') t that I didn't want to learn and I didn't
want to be in s,:hool and graduate. The fact is that I am here in
this corps working toward my diploma so I can enter the armed
services, because the services take very few, if any, non-high school
graduates anymore."

He pointed quite proudly to a Marine Corps poster in his dormi-
tory, and said, "I have already signed a contract with the Marine
Corps and I am going into it." That is one of the positive programs.
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But if you look at all these programs, much more needs to be
done. In the Job Training Partnership Act, we are serving about 3
percent of the eligible population. You know, we provide for young
people as they get into problems. We are as are concerned as
anyone else about saving this young person so it doesn't create a
bigger social problem down the road.

We look at the individuals in school to learn in programs that
keep them from dropping out. But we never understand that a lot
of our problems are in the familyin the family structures, includ-
ing single-parent familiesand that we do almost nothing in the
way of grants or programs.

If we make the same kind of money and commitment to our
family structure and to those families in the United States who are
desperately in need as we have made to defensespending $660
million to build a B-1 bomber that we finally got to taxi, and got to
take off the ground for a few hoursI think we would whip the
drug problems which are devastating our young people and some of
the other problems: the broken homes, the broken family, the
young person left to be influenced more by his peers in neighbor-
hoods where there are a lot of problems than he is by the good
things in our society.

I think somewhere along the line we are going to stop talking
ar ,tart acting. I hope commemorating a National Day for Chil-
dren is one step in that direction.

I think that a lot of us here are going to realize that how we
spend our money is how we save our country. Thank you.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you. Mr. Smith?
Mr. SMITH OF TEXAS. Madam Chairwoman, I don't have any re-

marks, but I am impressed by Mr. Martinez' non-opening state-
ment. That was very eloquent testimony for the many concerns
that we all feel.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Mr. Smith. Mr. Weiss?
Mr. WEISS. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. I have no opening

statement either. I simply want to add my words of welcome to Mr.
Walsh's young constituent as well as to all the other young people
that are here.

Mrs. BOXER. Mr. Sabo?
Mr. SABO. No opening statement.
Mrs. BOXER. Mrs. Boggs?
Mrs. BOGGS. No opening statement, Madam Chairwoman, but I

thank you very much for holding these hearings. I am very grate-
ful to you.

Mrs. BOXER. I would like to comment to the young people here
today that this is quite an impressive group of Members who have
come here to hear you speak, so we will proceed and go right to
Congressman Kennedy.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOSEPH P. KENNEDY, II, A REPRESENTA-
TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS
Mr. KENNEDY. Thank you very much, Madam Chairwoman.
I would like to thank you in particular, Mrs. Boxer, for agreeing

to holding these hearings. I would also like to thank Chairman
George Miller, and point out that this is a joint hearing this morn-

0
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ing between Mr. Miller's Select Committee on Children, Youth, and
Families, as well as the Budget Committee's Task Force on Human
Resources, which I think augers well for the needs of young people

You are the two individuals more than any others in the Con-
gress that have led the fight to maintain the programs and provide
the kind of necessary leadership that we need in order to look out
for our Nation's young people.

All the Members that are here, that take the time to spend their
efforts on this committee are to be congratulated for the wonderful
work that you do for our Nation's kids.

The fact is by bringing children from all over the country here
this morning, the kids will have a first-hand opportunity to under-
stand how the Congress works and sometimes how it doesn't work,
and what we do and what we should be doing on behalf of our Na-
tion's children.

Chairman Miller, the report which your committee released on
the plight of many black and minority children in America cries
for a refocus of our national priorities.

Chairwoman Boxer, you have always fought the battles to pre-
serve the vital child care programs in the budget. Children's Day
would never have happened without both of you helping us.

We all thank you wholeheartedly. In four days our Nation will
be celebrating its first National Children's Day.

For many children this day will be marked by special family out-
ings, events at their State capitals and a party with friends. But for
other children, this day will slip by withou.. notice, without impact
on their lives now or in the future.

By holding a hearing today, by releasing a Children's Day report
card, by bringing &mins of children from all acros' the country, we
are attempting to address the latter point, how we can make a dif-
ference in our children's lives today in order that they may live
better lives tomorrow.

By many standards our children nave a brighter future than
ever before. Scores on college entrance exams are increasing, we
have more students graduating from high school than ever before.
The percentage of high school graduates attending college is in-
creasing. Ninty-nine percent of public high school students have
access to computers in their classrooms. Eight-five percent of the
kids say they like school and 52 percent of the kids volunteer some
portion of their time to help others.

Kids do have a better chance of making a good life for them-
selves here in America. But often that decision doesn't rest simply
in their hands.

For many the chances of succeeding in America are based on the
color of their skin, by the income of their parents, and by the lan-
guage they speak.

Today, 26 percent of the children under the age of 6 years old
growing up in America are kids growing up in poverty. Twenty-five
percent of all kids across our country are dropping out of high
school before they finish. And in somr of our innercities, 5(, percent
never graduate. Forty percent of the young girls under Vv.! age of
14 today are going to become pregnant by the time they reach the
age of 21, and they won't be married.

11
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We rank last among the industrialized nations in infant mortali-
ty. And in our innercities our babies are dying at rates exceeding
those of Third World countries.

Children's Day is an opportunity to take a yard,:tick to measure
how we can reach the goal in making ours a nation in which every
child can reach their potential. One of the ways we set out to do
this was to publish a national report for the states.

The national report card was compiled with the assistance of 12
well-respected people, four of whom will be testifying here today
and others whom you can meet following the hearing. Together we
have compiled a list of 25 indicators which tell a story about how
America's kids are doing now and what kind of future that they
will have tomorrow.

This story shows that we are losing important ground in areas
such as infant mortality, prenatal care, childhood diseases, child
poverty, ground that we must recover quickly.

It will require a total commitment that means time, effort and
more human resources. When it comes to Government action, it is
clear that we have wasted too much time and spent too little
money on the programs and services designed to help our children.

We must expand eligibility on Medicaid to include pregnant
women and children. All pregnant women and children have to be
covered.

Given the rates of indicating how successful programs are for
pregnant women and children and the payback to this Govern-
ment, it is a shame that we let a third of them go without adequate
prenatal care.

We must provide access to affordable housing to get homeless
families, most of whom are children, off the streets.

We must provide AFDC payments that will allow parents to put
a decent real on the table for their children.

We must fully fund drug prevention and treatment programs to
put a halt to this scourge of drugs that is sweeping our Nation. All
of these are investments in our future that are important to our
national security as any defense system.

We know that for every dollar invested in prenatal care, $3 will
be saved on medical costs for low birth weight infants. Yet one out
of three mothers receive inadequate prenatal care.

We know a sound education will lead to higher paying jobs,
better health status and a higher standard of living. Yet, the
Reagan Administration cut the education budget by over 25 per-
cent and the Bush education budget fails to keen pace with infla-
tion.

P lso, spending more time with our children is one of the most
important things that our society can provide. We should spend
time reading to our children, helping them with their math and
giving them the confidence that they need in order to deal with
their peers and the constant pressure of modern-day America.

Often due to our busy work schedules it is our children who end
up getting the short end of the stick.

I feel we are in danger of focusing on acquiring the world rather
than making the world a better place for our kids. Jesus Christ
once said, "For what has a man profited if he shall gain the whole
world yet lose his soul?"

12
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In a survey, which we will be releasing, with the Nickelodeon TV
Network, 76 percent of the children q ..estioned stated they went to
spend more time with their parents, and family outings and cele-
brations is a large part of what Children's Day is all about. Giving
our time can make such an important difference.

I think some of the childrer. in this room set a standard for
many of us adults to follow. Edward Cowy Thomas from Maryland
and Mercer Baines from New Jersey spend their free time as peer
leaders for younger students in order that they will develop the
confidence and strength to stay away from drugs.

And Anmay Lam, from Hawaii and Serena Peterson from Ohio
are outspoken on the issue of foster care. Frieda Dyson from Penn-
sylvania and Anthony Burrell from Iowa, and so many others time
doesn't permit me to mention all their names, are shining exam-
ples of children who, against every difficult odds have made their
lives ones that should be emulated by others. If more adults
became better role models, there is no doubt in my mind our chil-
dren would be much better off.

Children's Day began as a request from my own two boys, who
wanted to have a special day designated for kids. They pointed out
there is a Father's Day and a Mother's Day and what about kid's
day? It has grown into an opporture4 for all Americans to be
thinking and talking and then doing something for their kids.

The House resolution designating National Children's Day will
not change the fate of America's children. We need a resolution of
American people. Chairwoman Boxer and Chairman Miller, you
have led the crusade to improve our children's lives. I hope more
will be done to follow your lead so that we may safeguard our Na-
tion's most valuable resource, our own children.

Thank you all very much.
The National Children's Day Report Card may be found at p..]
Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much, Congressman. Would you

like to join us at this time? Then we will ask the children to come
forward.

Ronald Menard, Lee Oakman, Jennifer Gamble, Marie Volles-
tedt, Kristie Joy Drury, Anthony Lee, and Felicia Dixon. These
children are from Massachusetts, Minnesota, West Virginia,
Oregon, Oklahoma, New York, and Mississippi.

Dr. Stephen Speach, District Superintendent, Oceanside Unified
School District, Oceanside, CA. We are glad that California is rep-
resented.

I want to welcome two more Members who came in, Mr. Sarpa-
lius and Mr. Wise, we welcome you. You are just in time for the
really important part, the children.

We will begin with our children ambassadors. Ronald Menard.
Would you like to begin, Ronald?

STATEMENT OF RONALD MENARD, BOSTON, MA
Mr. MENARD. I am a senior at Cathedral High School. I am from

Boston MA. I am one of our 9,000 peer leadership, who are partof--
Mrs. BOXER. Ron, could you speak directly into that mike? Move

that microphone really up close. That is good.

13
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Mr. MENARD. All right. I am one of over 9,000 peer leaders who
are part of Governor Dukakis' Massachusetts Leadership Network.

1 want to speak to you about violence, what it is like living and
going to school in a city where violence is very common, and more
importantly, what we are doing as peer leadership to prevent vio-
lence.

Homicide is the second leading cause of death for teenagers. Too
often the lives of teenagers are wasted over silly incidents. At Ca-
thedral High School in Boson, like many of the over 200 schools in
Boston, MA, it is required for every student to take a course in vio-
lence prevention. We try to give kids options not to fight. we tic, to
alert them of the consequences of fighting.

Violence prevention is, you know, working very good. I have no-
ticed a big change in my schools, in my neighborhood, you know.
When I was a freshman, there used to be a lot of fights, and you
know, killings and murders, you know after bchool. But now, after
the violence program, there has been less, you know, less violence,
and fighting is very rare.

Kids need to feel good about themselves and to have a vision of a
prosperous future. And I would ask you to give us a chance by
taking a hard look at society. In order to continue this program, we
need more money. The Congress has a commitment to us young
people. President Bush has committed 12 cents interest for every
student in the violence prevention program, but that is not enough,
you know, because we need more money.

Thank you for your time.
Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much. Lee?

STATEMENT OF LEE OAKMAN, WACONIA, MN

Mr. OAKMAN. Chairpersons, Committee Members, and Represent-
atives, thank you for this opportunity to speak with you on behalf
of the youth of Minnesota. Today, we have six youth representing
the State of Minnesota. We are in no way different from the other
people our age except that we have been given the opportunity to
shine through our involvement various volunteer and leadership
organizations. These organizations are sponsored by communities,
churches, States and/or Federal Government.

The wants of today's youth might best be indicated by report
work group discussions entitled "What Do Minnesota Students
Want and Need?" This report, conducted by the Minnesota Depart-
ment of Education, lists several major needs of Minnesota students.
It says we need to have visions of what might be possible for us to
be and to do. We need to participate as citizens and members of the
household, as workers, and as responsible members in society. We
want to be able to have options in the way we learn and meet our
special needs. We want to gain experience as decisionmakers.

Many of these needs and wants can be met through our involve-
ment in various organizations such as Fresh Corps. This organiza-
tion in Minnesota Invites youth to develop and participate in com-
munity betterment projects. Sore of the Fresh Corps' activities in-
clude tutoring, helping handicapped children, and monitoring
public parks.

14
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Youth leadership is another area in which ) oung people can
excel. The Future Homemakers of America organization promotes
teens to take actions for recognition. This organization, which I am
involved in, encourages students to speak publicly with other youth
about problems affecting them in today's society. Some of these
presentations have been on the following topics: Stress, self-esteem,
substance abuse, teen pregnancy, and acceptance of the elderly.

Kid, Incorporated focuses on the need for the rural community
for special education services for the learning disabled. One of their
programs is Camp Buckskin, which provides a relaxed learning en-
vironment for emotional and learning disabled youth.

Cultural awareness is also an area in much need to expand. This
program promotes greater understanding of other individuals in
our global society.

Active involvement in crime prevention is another form of com-
munity service. Various organizations and leadership skills must
be incorporated for involvement in this activity.

Through programs like these in Minnesota, youth have been de-
veloping communications, leadership and organizational skills, self-
esteem and all, which will be essential for our future. We need to
continue and increase funding for vocational and volunteer organi-
zations.

This funding is to support their purpose and to adequately com-
pensate qualified leaders. We must insure that today's youth con-
tinue to take an active part in our future. Young people have much
to offer in areas such as the arts, politics, athletics, music or
thought. Today's young people are not necessarily the problem.
They are the solution. Thank you.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much, Lee.
I see that Congressman Sikorski is joining us. Welcome, Con-

gressman.
Jennifer Gamble of West Virginia.

STATEMENT OF JENNIFER GAMBLE, MARTINSBURG, WV

Ms. GAMBLE. I would like to thank Congressman Kennedy and
the committees for asking me to testify today.

I began researching the homeless problem last fall after having
seen many homeless people in Washington, DC, and witnessing a
soup line outside of the Rescue Mission in Martinsburg. At that
time, I realized that the homeless problem was not just limited to
large cities, but that it was right in my hometown.

I felt that I wanted to identify one specific need of the homeless
population. I then wanted to find a way to solve that need. I spoke
to staff members at the Department of Human Services and asked
them to tell me that was needed. The specific item which they
found was the need for manual can openers. Many of the homeless
were being housed it, motels. These people had ample food which
had been donated, but they had no means of opening the cans. My
goal then became that of trying to raise enough money to purchase
30 manual ca openers.

I decided t, create buttons which contained the slogan "No Place
Like Home." I also stenciled a small black house in the center. My
parents gave me the money to purchase the first 100 buttons. 1 de-
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cided to market them through the Eastern Panhandle Training
Center. The first batch did not make it home. My project was off
and running. Sales began to skyrocket, and the next challenge was
to keep up with the demand.

Eight hundred and fifty-two buttons later, I have helped to raise
the level of community awareness pertaining to the homeless. I
have purchased 30 can openers, held a Valentine's party for the
children at Bethany Shelter, provided 17 Easter baskets for home-
less children housed in Bethany Shelter and Willowbrook, provided
$130 worth of basic supplies to assist with the opening of Willow-
brook Shelter, replaced a storm damaged door in Bethany Shelter,
provided diapers, paper products, and medicine for the homeless in
Martinsburg.

With the additional money I have opened a special checking ac-
count at the Farmers and Merchants Bank in Marti asburg. When
a homeless person has a special need I am contacted by the shelter
or Department of Human Services and I obtain the needed item.

As part of any research on this project, I decided to survey U.S.
Congressmen and Senators. I made a survey and it was distributed
by Congressman Harley Staggers. I asked the Members of Congress
to rank the problems of homelessness in relation to other national
issues. Out of the nine items which were listed they ranked home-
lessness No. 5. I received a total of 52 letters.

The congressional rankings of my survey done in February 1989
are as follows: (1) National deficit, (2) education, (3) national de-
fense, (;) environment, (5) homelessness, (6) drugs, (7) AIDS, (8)
abortion, and (9) handgun control.

On June 28, 1989, I was recognized by Gov. Gaston Caperton for
my work with the homeless of my community. I was presented
with the Distinguished West Virginia Award.

I am so happy and proud that my community did meke a differ-
ence in the lives of the homeless. I have been blessed to have been
born in a family rich in love and support. They gave me the guid-
ance to help others who are not so fortunate. I hope to inspire
other communities to use my project idea. If every city in every
State would make the effort we could conquer this problem. I do
believe that the future begins here and now.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much, Jennifer. When we said chil-
dren could be part of the solution, that was a good follow-on to
hear from you.

Kristie Joy Drury from Tulsa, OK.
Forgive me, we will go to Marie Vollestedt from Bend, OR.

STATEMENT OF MARIE VOLLESTEDT, BEND, OR
Ms. VOLLESTEDT. My name is Marie Vollestedt. I am from

Oregon. On June 4, 1987, a young girl walked into the police sta-
tion determined to do everything possible to keep her abusive
family from sabotaging her life. It is a step no one wants to think
about, yet so many must for survival.

Just like many children all over the world, I took one big step
toward life. After making the police reports against my father and
brothers for abuse, I was placed in the care of the Children's Serv-
ices Division.
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Mrs. BOXER. There is something wrong with the microphone.
Kristie, give her your microphone. Pull it real close.

Ms. VouzsrElrr. After making police reports against my father
and brothers for abuse, I was placed in the care of the Children's
Services Division. CSD provided me with institute care, which
meant I moved in with a family opposite from what I had known
for 14 years. From all I Anew, these people could be exactly like my
own family. My trust was a gift bestowed upon no one.

In the foster home I felt as though I was an alien only visiting
this planet. I was used to pain and abuse, not a family which cared
enough to take me into their home. As we went through the court
system, testifying against my family, I moved to another foster
home to provide physical protection. A pattern of moving from
home to home began to take place. I have now been in foster care
for 21/2 years.

There are many important issues involved with foster care which
I have had to deal with. I have started a support group for foster
children, and I am president. Through this I have counseled many
kids in foster care, as well as those in natural homes, expanding
my own knowledge and understanding.

The first experience I had from CSD was moving from foster
home to foster home. When I left my family, I felt abandoned and
unwanted. I had a hard time trusting people even under favorable
conditions. When I was moving around, it made it even impossible.
I, like most, decided I was not going to get hurt any more. Once
was enough. I became a fake person with a necessity to hide any
feelings of pain or happiness.

As we go out to face the world for the first time, with the hope of
a real person, we realize harshly we are no longer considered
normal. Society looks at foster children without their real family,
standing outside, all alone. They decide that there must have been
something wrong with us which caused our parents to reject us. So-
ciety pictures us as dirty children that run rampant throughout
the city.

No one seems to realize that all children start out as babies, and
ba')ies can only take so much pain and neglect before they close
themselves off from the world of pain. Through the eyes of many
foster children, the world is full of pain with love enough only for
the normal children.

Much of the time there is overwhelming thought of worthless-
ness that keeps you striving for the love that you are not sure
exists for you. Society can offer pity much easier than acceptance.

All of us need a stable environment. Foster children need this
even more, because we must, we had to be in control to protect our-
selves in the past. Starting out with a shaky foundation gives you
little hope when you begin to rebuild your shattered life anew.

I have yet to meet a foster child who can say I am okay. Neglect-
ed by their biological families and labeled by society as second class
citizens, and failures, the situation takes its toll on self-esteem.
Foster children began seeing themselves as bad, unwanted and
alone. Our dreams drop because we begin to see ourselves as fail-
ures. The children start becoming what society sees. we oftf'n
become a self-fulfilling prophesy.

:.17
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The reaction of others is the mirror in which we look. At first we
are hopeful. Yet now we are condemned by the reflection we see in
society's mirror. I dream of the day we can look into our own
mirror and realize what all of us truly are, the future. Unless chil-
dren are taken care of, there will be no future.

Today I am happy. My foster parents are my parents. I am fortu-
nate to find a home willing to help me rebuild a strong foundation.
With the shortage of foster homes and the recent increase in home-
less children, many kids will never have the chance I have gotten. I
know there is pain in the world and desperate need, but today I
have faith in the future. Thank you.

Mrs. Boma. Marie, it is difficult to tell you how much we appre-
ciate your coming forward today. Thank you. Kristie.

STATEMENT OF KRISTIE JOY DRURY, TULSA, OK
Ms. DRURY. Members of Congress, my name is Kristie Drury and

I represent Oklahoma. I live in Tulsa. I am 11 years old and in the
6th grade at Boevers Elementary. Every since kindergarten I have
been mainstreamed in school and I think that is very important,
because I get the chance to do most everything everyone else gets
to do.

Mrs. Born. Kristie, we are all parents up here, so don't worry.
Just do it. You can do it.

Ms. DRURY. And I believe her.
Mrs. BOXER. Kristie, would you like me to read some of the testi-

mony until you feel comfortable doing it, or would you like to con-
tinue?

Ms. DRURY. Can you call somebody else?
Mrs. BOXER. Sure; we can go to Anthony. Either I can read your

testimony into the record or you can read it, darling, whatever you
want.

Anthony Lee, from Syracuse, NY.

STATEMENT OF ANTHONY LEE, SYRACUSE, NY
Mr. LEE. My name is Anthony Lee and I am a Native American.

I think more Native American history ought to be assimilated into
our regular history classes. Now is an opportune time to do so. Do
you know Native Americans have played a major role in forming
our present government? Did you know the government succeeded
in forming our institution by replicating the Iroquois Confederacy?
You probably never heard those facts. This is why I strongly be-
lieve Native American history should be taught.

An event I have often dreamed of seeing is a Native American
week. I have heard of Famous Black History Month. I think this
was a marvelous idea. It surely had educated many on the affairs
of African-Americans. I think a similar approach may assist my
proposal. I wish to educate the public on the background of Native
Americans. This will leave a positive attitude in the minds of the
public because I know negative stereotypes still exist in some
minds.

I would like to talk briefly about teen pregnancy. It really is a
problem that requires attention. I will get right to the point. It
leads to teens dropping out of school. This leads to a road that is

1S
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not paved smoothly, where education is surely the backbone of a
successful, healthy life.

Many obstacles must be overcome. To young, underdeveloped
minds, this can be very difficult. One may think of suicide or drugs
and alcohol and so on. I strongly believe that extra attention must
be paid to teenage parents so they can better handle the situation.

What I mean by extra attention is more programs should be pro-
posed. The other ambassadors from New York and I, firmly believe
that our voices should be heard as we speak on the issues of teen
pregnancy and drugs and alcohol. These problems surely can and
do affect all youth.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much, Anthony. Felicia Dixon is
from Hazlelhurst, MS.

STATEMENT OF FELICIA DIXON, HAZLEHURST, MS
Ms. DIXON. Thank you.
Being a teen mother, issues facing today's teen parents. J am Fe-

licia Dixon, a 16 year old single mother. Presently, I am an 11th
grade student in the Haztaherst High School. My family and I have
lived in Hazelherst, MS, a small rural town, for all of my life. I
have a 6 month old daughter, Demitriotta.

It was difficult when I first discovered I was pregnant. My par-
ents were upset and angry. I was very lucky, because my family
has given me and my baby support, love and a nice home. I am
very thankful that my mother takes care of my baby while I go to
school.

However, even with my family's help, it is confusing being a
single, young, inexperienced mother. It is also difficult being de-
pendent upon your parents and not being able to provide for your
baby. I would like very much to have a job, but no one wants to
hire me because I am too young and do not have any job skills.

I ,Am also fortunate in that my school provides teen parents class-
es and day care for teen parent's children. This will be helpful in
learning child development and how to be a good parent.

There needs to be more teen parents classes and day care serv-
ices for babies cf teenage mothers. Many teen mothers do not have
day care in school and they do not have anyone to keep their
babies so they drop out of school.

Schools and teachers need to be more helpful with teen mothers.
It is hard to stay in school when you have a baby to take care of
and you rio not have a good family life. Often they do not have
transportation or day care. Transportation is often a big problem
for teen mothers. In my area some mothers must travel 25 miles to
school or to the health department.

Health care is another problem for the teen parent. Teen parents
often do not have the money to pay for senrices. The health depart-
ment is often crowded and it takes several days to get an appoint-
ment. For many young people leaving school to go to the health de-
partment is difficult and embarrassing.

A school based health program could serve teen parents and
their children and also provide contraceptives for preventing teen
pregnancies. Many young girls have abortions because they think
they are too young to have a baby. I personally do not think that

1-9



15

abortion is the answer. If the young girl does not want the baby,
she s)- give it up for adoption.

Counseling advice for the pregnant teenager would help them in
making good decisions. Teens have many problems with contracep-
tives. Teens do not think they will get pregnant and often do not
use contraceptives. Schools should teach sex education before girls
get pregnant and encourage both boys and girls to use contracep-
tives.

Many tech mothers live in terrible situations where there is
prostitution and drug abuse. Some mothers and their babies do not
have a place to live and others are living in homes where they are
abused. Communities need to provide sheltered homes for teen
mothers who do not have families to help take care of them. These
mothers need a place to live and raise healthy babies.

One of my biggest problems, and one that faces most teen pa-s-,
ents, is employment. Teens need part time jobs while they are A o
school or job training programs so that they can get skills for work.
Teens want to be independent and support their babies, but they do
not have the )ob opportunities or job skills.

I have written mostly about teen mothers, yet teen mothers
babies have fathers. These fathers need to provide child support for
their babies. If they do not have jobs, they need )ob training and
employment. If the fathers refuse to support their children, laws
requiring child support needs to be enforced more than they are at
present.

I am thankful and pleased for my family and healthy baby.
Having a family to support and care for you when you have a baby
is most important when you are young and single. Many young
mothers and their babies are not so fortunate to have a family to
help them and they need many services.

In my opinion, it is very important that all teen mothers have
day care, transportation, education, job training, and skills. Provid-
ing these services will help to make better families, better commu-
nities, and a better America.

I would like to close by saying thanks to Governor and Mrs.
Mavis for their support and commitment to issues that affect chil-
dren, especially child care literacy, education and teen pregnancy.
Thank you.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Felicia. You have given us a guide for
our budgeting. Kristie.

Ms. DRURY. Should I read from where I left off---
Mrs. BOXER. Sure.
Ms. DRURY. I am active in Girl Scouts. I like to ride horses at a

therapeutic riding center in Oklahoma. I also like to play tennis. In
July the Spina Bifida Association had their yearly conference and
they showed us how to play tennis. It was fun.

That's just the stuff I can do. There are things I can't do and I
would like to see some changes made. I think we need more adapt-
ive physical education so we can have as much fun as the next guy.
I also think we need more curb cuts. Whenever I go someplace with
my mom and dad, we always have to lift my cart to get up to the
sidewalk.

I think we need more education for teachers about our disabil-
ities and special needs. One of the most important reasons I have
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been able to be mainstreamed is because my school has a full-time
nurse. I think that is imnortant because most schools don't have a
nurse to help kids like me with their special needs.

In a way it is like AIDS, nobody knows enough about our disabil-
ities to do anything about it. But we are going to show them what
we are made of. After all, we are part of the next generation, the
senators, representatives, presidents. You have got to make the
laws better so we can live better lives and help other people under-
stand that we are not really any different than they are.

Mrs. BOXER. You bet. Thank you Kristie. That was really
moving. I want to thank all of you for moving us and for teaching
us.

I would like to call on Congressman Miller if he has any ques-
tions.

Mr. MILLER Thank you. Let me also thank all of you. This is
why we have tried on the Select Committee to have young people
come and to testify to us because I think it givers us an opportunity
to hear some of the concerns and some of the circumstances in a
manner in which we don't ordinarily hear them.

We have had young homeless children come and testify about
what it means to be homeless. Marie, we have had young foster
children and older children such as yourself come talk about what
it means to go to 10 or 12 different families while you are trying to
stay in high school and make friends and reiationships, and the iso-
lation when systems don't recognize that you are adolescent and
maybe you need a little money to buy some clothes or a cassette
tape so you can be like other kids. Systems don't recognize the spe-
cial problems of adolescents, let alone foster children.

Kristie, we struggled long and hard and tried to listen to young
children who have disabilities. You are right, we have a long way
to go but we have made a commitment so that you can participate
in society just like everybody else because you have so much to
give to us. Very soon we are going to make a major statement in
the Congress with the passage in the next couple of weeks of the
Americans with Disabilities Act which says once and for all it is
going to be the policy of this country that people with disabilities
get to participate. We are going to have to change. We are going to
have to cut a lot of curbs, put in ramps, open classrooms and busi-
nesses, but we are going to let people in.

They are going to get the same opportunities. That is going to be
the law of the land. I think it is very, very important.

Felicia, you are right. Just because a young woman becomes
pregnant doesn't mean we should abandon her. We should figure
out how to keep you in school, and give you the support necessary.
If we don't provide the job training, the education, life isn't going
to get any better for you and it is certainly not going to get any
better for your child.

This country must understand that very often we stigmatize
young people because you experiment with drugs or because you
are handicapped or a foster child or adopted or because you are a
little slower than others in school. What we ought to do is quit stig-
matizing and characterizing you and provide you with the supports
that are necessary because every time we do it, we find you can
succeed far beyond our expectations.

21
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You are very, very valuable to us. It is a lesson that I think
sometimes we can only hear from you. It is something that we
have to keep renewing in the Congress, our understanding about
how fragile your relationships are and yet how strong some of you
are in terms of helping others.

Ronald, one of the things I have listened to as I traveled across
the country talking to young people, is the value of peer counsel-
;rig, one young person helping another, whether with drugs or, in
your case, with violence or even school work; that ability for one
young person to turn to another because you are able to talk to one
another and explain and counsel one another the way very often
adults are not able to do it.

You tell us your problem, we lecture you. We tell you how to
solve it immediately instead of listening. of the most successful
things we are seeing in this country in dealing with problems such
as teenage pregnancy or drug abuse is trying to get young people
involved with their friends and reaching out and giving them a
hand. This is quite a remarkable panel, a cross section of concerns
and solutions.

Jennifer, if you keep it up, we will all be out of work on this side
of the panel.

Ms. GAMBLE. That is where I hope to be someday.
Mr. MILLER. Well, tell Harley Staggers to get on the move.

Maybe you could move to Bob Wise's district. Can you clog? If you
come from West Virginia you have to know about clogging because
they all do. I hope we do inspire you to run for public office. It is
great fun and you do have a chance to have some say in these con-
cerns.

Let me just thank all of you very, very much for taking your
time and for your courage and your frankness and for again
making us look at you as individuals rather than deciding that you
are one part of some category that we ought to pay attention to or
not. We ought to pay attention to all of you and the young people
sitting behind you as individuals. Thank you very much.

Mrs. Boxxa. Thank you. Mr. Kennedy.
Mr. KENNEDY. Thank ycu very much, Madam Chairman.
I just want to say how impressed I am and how delighted I am

that each one of you came here this morning and told your stories.
To those of you who are sitting right behind the first table, I am
sure that each one of you has as much to offer as any of the seven
who happened to be selected to provide testimony today.

I would ask Chairman Boxer if she would accept any thoughts
that you might have on your stories into the record of this hearing
and put into the Congressional Record so that your stories too will
become part of the history of this country.

Mrs. BOXER. Without objection, we will do that. We will include
anybody's comments of the young people.

Mr. KENNEDY. I also want to reiterate a point George made
which is that so many times we sit here and hear raw statistics.
People tend to make arguments and we only accept them as a
country and as a government based on how many people did this
and how many people did that. When, in fact, what becomes much
more touching and moving is to hear from people who have experi-
enced these problems and not only experienced them but have been
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able to come through the other side and hrive become leaders that
yr. flpg people your ages can look up to.

Ron, you are from the same city that I am from. You talked
about the violence in the school and the fact that the second larg-
est cause of death in America today for young people is homicide.
All we have to do is pick up the papers each day and see more chil-
dren killed as a result of drugs, violence in the school and the like.

I wonder if you can tell us whether or not the course that you
took really did help and whether or not it resulted in a reduction
of violence in your neighborhood? What is it that you think has
caused some of that reduction when we see in so many other neigh-
borhoods in Bost on increasing in violence?

Mr. MENARD. The program really affected me a lot. Back before I
start ad taking the program I used to be a fighter. I fought every-
day:1 got into trouble.

Mr. KENNEDY. You look like you would win most of them, Ron.
Mr. MENARD. But afterwards, you know I was a peacemaker. I

was always trying to stop a fight. I tried to do anything I could to
prevent people from fighting. That is the way I am right now. That
is the way the program has changed me.

Mr. KENNEDY. So it is that before you get into a fight now, I
think you said there are sometimes silly things that you get in-
volved with, is it that you stop and think what the results are?
How would you suggest to some of the other kids in the room that
when they get into one of those silly disputes how do you get them
to stop fighting?

Mr. MENARD. You have to think about the consequence of who
you are fighting with. You might lose a friend. You might have a
bad reputation. If it is a silly incident over a fight--

Mr. KENNEDY. Thank you.
Felicia, I was just so impressed with the tremendous knowledge

that you have about the problems that so many young people in
our society face.

I think you gave as articulate a statement as I have ever heard
any Congressman or Congresswoman give for the need for teenage
sex counseling in schools, the need for the kind of support systems,
for our families, the kind of support systems that single mothers
and their children need.

I would challenge anybody who says this is just a problem that
should be fixed in the family itself and to take a look at the cir-
cumstances that you have found yourself in.

Do you think that the programs that are offered in school can, in
fact, help deter teenage pregnancy? As a follow up, I wonder if you
can tell us a little about how and if you considered an abortion and
why you decided to go through with your pregnancy?

Ms. DixoN. I have not considered abortion because I think that
an unborn child has a life even though it is not born. I think it has
a right to live as the mothers do. Because it is really not the
answer, abortions are not the answer. If the young teen parent, if
she does want to have the abortion, well, I think everybody is enti-
tled to his or her own decision. But abortions, no.

Mr. KENNEDY. Felicia, you know in a lot of our districts there is
a raging controversy over whether or not there should be teenage
pregnancy counseling in the schools and whether or not they
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should distribute condoms and other types of birth control activi-
ties. Do you think that if sex counseling and clinics were provided
in the schools that you would see a reduction in teenage pregnan-
cies?

Ms. Mum Yes; at the school I go to they don't provide sex edu-
cation but I would stress that they should put more emphasis on
sex education in schools.

Mr. KENNEDY. Thank you, very much.
Mrs. BOXER. Mr. Durbin.
Mr. DURBIN. Thank you Chairman Boxer. Thanks for your testi-

mony. You did a wonderful job. I want to salute Joe Kennedy. His
family has a wonderful history and reputation in contributing to
this country. Joe's fine work on the first National Children's Day is
something we are all proud of in Congress. I am proud that you
would journey here, even those who did not testify. Thank you for
coming and showing how important this is to you.

I want to give a word of caution. Congressman Kennedy was
saying earlier he got the idea for the National Children's Day
when his two children came to him and said there is a Mother's
Day and Father's Day but no Children's Day. I used to say that to
my Mom and she would say every day is children's day.

Having been in Congress for 7 years, on Capitol Hill every day is
not children's day. We go months and months at a time debating
issues and never talk about kids. We act as if they are going to
take care of themselves. We worry about tax codes and spending
and we never get down to basic issues that you raised today, :ssues
which will decide what your future will be.

I guess the problem is that many of us think that we are e.:perts
on the issue. That is why your presence here is important. I don't
want to make a speech. I want to give you a chance to speak here.

Please identify who you are if you speak. If you feel adults mis-
understand young people, what is the single most important thing
you would say that we have to understand about young people?
You can say, I heard an expert say this about what life is like for
young people. He is wrong. That is what really faces us. Would any
of you young people here today like to comment on where you
think the experts have been wrong and what your experience has
been?

Mrs. BOXER. Why don't we let them think it over a while? After
Mr. Wise speaks, we will ask if anyone out therethis is your
chance to tell us off. It would be very helpful if you would say
adults are always saying this but really it is not like that. Any-
thing else, Mr. Durbin?

Mr. DURBIN. No, I will leave it like that.
Mr. MARTINEZ. I have five children and 14 grandchildren. I have

a grandchild very much like Kristie. I guess, you know we are not
experts. When I was a young kid. my older brother was really my
"father." The encouragment and advice he gave me made all the
difference. I always said he is t.io old to understand. One day I real-
ized that he was where I had been a few years before. He did learn
from those experiences. Sometimes we can learn from the experi-
ences that we have.

Nobody teaches anybod:i to be a parent. If we want to concen-
trate on helping the family as a unitbecause that is when the

14
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problems start to occurwe ought to have programs to help young
parents, especially young parents and single mothers who, as you
outlined, can come in and et direction and get help on how you
put up with the crying at night and how do you put up with times
the children do something wrong and you ask the children why
and they say, "I don't know." They really don't know.

They acted on the spur of the moment. We expect parents to un-
derstand why the children did that and explain to us. They cannot.
Then we think it calls for punishment because they want to make
them understand. But it doesn't come close to making them under-
stand.

In response to Mr. Durbin's question, we don't understand that
99%o percent of the young people are open to poP;tive suggestions.
If you give them positive alternatives they wit ke them. The
problem is we don't provide enough positive altern, -TS.

What you are doing on your local levels are to be commended. It
is laudable. If you don't do it, nobody is going to do it. Congress and
the President have not set a national policy or commitment to
those things that will provide for us what our Constitution says it
should: Promote the general welfare.

I wanted to talk to Marie. I have visited McLaren Hall in our
area. That is where most of the foster children are sent to begin
with. Some people think they are in the foster home because they
are juvenile delinquents. That is contrary tc, 1,he truth. Most of
those kids are in McLaren Hall and end up in foster homes because
they have been abused. They had parents who never understood
what the meaning of parenting was because nobody ever taught
them. Some kids never end up in foster homes or in a place like
the Hall but they live with parents who abuse them.

Congress or the President of the United States needs to make a
commitment co defend and develop the kind of national policy that
will encourage more action on the local level. In those few in-
stances that we have heard here today, individuals are doing it be-
cause, like the song, they know the world needs more love; love,
love, love, love, love.

Let me tell you, in my area there was a lady who lived across the
street from me where I raised my fie children. That lady had love
and she understands why the children need love. She was a single
woman but she raised 42 children. Every year they have a family
reunion. They all love her like she was their real r other. Than
God for people like that.

I think that it is a crying shame that we don't have enough
people who come forth and volunteer.

Mrs. BOXER. Mrs. Boggs.
Mrs. BOGGS. Thank you very much, NIALlarn Chairman.
I too would like to join in expressing all my reminisces about and

my gratitude to the Kennedy family for the work that they have
done through the years. I also want all of you witnesses to know
how proud I am of you. I have eight grandchildren, and I know
their leadership potential, I know their problems and I know how
they have helped to overcome them. I have always felt there was a
special sort of pact between grandparents and children, sometimes
a closed organization against parents and sometimes an open one
to try to understand parents.
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But I do know that your generation is one that can solve prob-
lems and can help each other to solve individual problems. I am
extraordinarily proud of each of you. I noticed, Lee, in your testi-
mon that you did recognize grandparents because you said you
had 'wisdom acceptance of the c."..rlerly." Will you elaborate on that
for me?

Mr. OAKMAN. I did a talk on wisdom acceptance of the elderly. I
believe by talking to older persons in our communities we can
learn something about life and learn to see things from a different
perspective.

Mrs. Bo Goa. Do you have a program that encourages that?
Mr. OmuctN. This year in our Future Homemakers of America

chapter we were thinking of starting an Adopt a Grandparent pro-
gram.

Mrs. 13t."-rx.s. That is a wonderful idea because it not only helps
your peer group but it helps the elderly very much as well.

Ronald, in that regard, I am aware there is a great deal of vio-
lence that occurs againot elderly people. In working with your teen
peers do you stress that violence should not occur among other
family members or older people in the neighborhood, et cetera?

Mr. MICNARD. Well, the crimes that used to happen in my neigh-
borhood, used to happen, kids would go to an old person and if that
person had money, if it was night time, five of them would jump on
the person and take the person's money. But lately. we are super-
vising them along the way. It is really being reducet!.

Mrs. Boccs. That is wonderful that you do that. The real prob-
lem is, as you say, purse snatching and all those sorts of things and
violent acts that occur not only deprive the elderly of their money
but it also hurts them physically.

Mr. MENARD. Yes.
Mrs. Bocce. You know it took the efforts by the Students

Against Drunk Driving to help lower the rate of death among teen-
agers from automobile accidents. The fact that you have recognized
that homicide, which is the ultimate violence, is now the greatest
threat to the lives of young people. You can be assured that being
able to encourage your peer groups against violence can reduce the
number of deaths by homicide.

That is really a wonderful service that you are rendering. Each
of you is rendering a remarkable service. We are grateful to you.

Felicia, I salute you especially. Yau are making certain that the
next generation is going to be as trustworthy and vigorous in their
defense of human dignity as your generation is. I thank all of you
very, very much.

.. BOXER. Thank you, Mrs. Boggs.
We are going to go to Mr. Wise. We have been joined by several

Members, Mr. Slattery, Mr. Espy, and Mr. Skaggs. We will hear
from Mr. Wise and then we will see if any of you want to answer
Mr. Durbin's questions of where we are wrong in perceiving the
problems of kids and then we will move to our other colleagues.
Mr. Wise.

Mr. WISE. Thank you.
I want to join with the others in thinking you very very much.

Jennifer, you said you wanted to be up here. As one of your elected
Representatives from West Virginia I hope you are here one day.
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We need good leaders and the talents that you could bring to this
body would be crucial.

I an glad cal of you are here. Where you are sitting now is where
people come and testify about what should be in the budget. The
budget is a statement of what we believe in, what you are spending
money for in the order that you believe in. It's very similar to the
questionnaire you sent out. The budget is how much do you spend
for education, children, defense, health care, et cetera.

I hope that the testimony you have given today, rings in this
room and stays in this room for some of those who will come to
testify after you in the next year.

They need to hear the testimony that you have given. It is easy
to hold up a sheet of paper and say this is black and white, we will
cut this program and we don't need as much in education and we
don't need as much for other programs that you have talked about.
But we are hearing you say what it means to you. You are making
that alive.

Jennifer, in your work on homelessness in your area, I am far-
ther south of you in the Charleston area, but in your work on ho-
melessness have you noticed whether the problem is increasing, de-
creasing? Have you seen any changes in the last couple of years?

Ms. GAMBLE. Martinsburg is close to Washington, DC. We get a
lot of city people in our community. Most homeless in our commu-
nity that I have seen, it varies. You can never put a number on
how many there are at a time because they are always moving,
always drifting.

So you can't really say. I think that in the United States as a
general rule that the homelessness is increasing because as the
housing, the price of housing increases more people cannot afford a
home and that often comes to homelessness.

Mr. WISE. What about the number of children? Have you seen
do you see a large percentage of homeless children in the work
that you do?

Ms. GAMBLE. Yes, I do. One of the largest numbers of homeless
people are single women and children. You see a lot of young chil-
dren but a lot of the parents are young too. That kind of goes into
the same group.

Mr. WISE. I have noticed that homelessness is increasing. It is
striking. I walked downtown in Washington last night and saw
four people on various steam grates. We ought to be able to do
better than that in our society.

I don't have to come to Washington to see homelessness because
I can go up any hollow in my area of West Virginia and find people
living in cars or living in shelters. I hope that you are sitting here
one day Jennifer. Thank you.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Mr. Wise.
Okay it is time. This is a little like the Geraldo show. Identify

yourself.
Ms. SHIMOMURA. I am Joby Shimomura. I wanted to reiterate the

major importance of utilizing young peoples' valuable resources. I
think it is absolutely critical that young people be included in that
discussion and decisionmaking process of legislation, policy and
programs that affect children and youth.
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Take today, for instance, it is wonderful and absolutely fe Mastic
that these young people have the opportunity to speak in front of
you. It should not be a once in a lifetime opportunity. Dialogue be-
tween decision makers and young people in this country has got to
go on on a regular basis.

Who are the experts when it comes to drugs in schools, the stu-
dents are. Teenage pregnancies, the experts are the teenagers. We
have to tap into these resources on a regular basis. This concept of
utilizing young people as resources, actually doing that, is more
popular on the local level in the cities and maybe on the state
level. But I think it is time to see that happening on a national
level. We need to see action and movement immediately.

Mrs. BOXER. Who else?
Mr. GARCIA. I am Enrique Garcia. On contraceptives there is a

fight between the parents and the Government about this. The par-
ents and the Government don't recognize that maybe the students
don't have the knowledge about how to use this contraceptive. In-
flepth about sexuality and contraceptives needs to start in the
grade school time.

Today no person can get a good job without a good education.
How does society expect us who are overwhelmed by problems of
drugs and school as well as the peer pressure of having sex to
make good decisions without the knowledge that we need to make
these decisions.

Although people get a lot of heat for starting sex education at an
early level, if we start it basic and move up as the children mature,
they will have the problem solving skills and the information they
need to make these very important decisions.

Mrs. BOXER. Yes, in the red plaid shirt.
Ms. SNELL. I am Susan Sne:', a representative from New Jersey.

I think we are missing something here. Most adults don't realize
children have stresses in their lives. That is the reason we have
teenage drug and suicide and stress problems.

There are many stresses from outside sources and from ourselves
during our everyday lives. Children reach to drugs and suicide as a
retreat. We need to look at ways to give these children other re-
treats and also to help them learn to deal with the stresses.

I am part of a program called KIWKIS, Kids Intervention with
Kids in School, a peer leadership program. We help our younger
peers learn how to communicate, to deal with their stresses and
their peer pressure and how to make more constructive decisions.

It is very important for children to have these social skills. Many
of them are not taught in the home. Before they can go out and
deal with whether to take drugs or not, they have to be able to deal
with this pressure. You need older students showing them how and
having them practice how through role playing these skills.

It is very important that we use older students because during
the early teen and preteen years children turn to their peers for
what behaviors are acceptable and what behaviors are unaccept-
able. They don't listen to the adults. That is the fact. It ends up if
their friends are doing drugs, they do drugs. If their friends are in-
volved in the dramas, they become involved in the dramas.
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We really need to hold on to what is an unused resource in our
country, the children. We have to have alder students reaching the
younger students. Thank you.

Mrs. Bon. Thank you, very much. That was terrific. Yes?
Ms. DYSON. My name is Freida Dyson from Pennsylvania. I

would like to thank you, the committee Members and especially
Congressman Kennedy for this opportunity to share my thoughts.

I would like to expand on one issue we have touched on today.
When signs are posted in front of schools to warn drug pushers this
is a drug free zone, the situation has gone too far. What has been
in the past the norm, a drug free environment, has now become the
exception.

I am not trying to be critical of the Just Say No campaign that
has been launched across America, but it is evident to me that
saying no is not enough. The young people of America need some-
thing to say yes to. The easy answer would be clean minds and
healthy bodies. Not that the benefits are not. important but what I
have sensed among my peers is the general lack of direction and
purpose.

Not only have drugs become an escape to the difficult pressures
in our lives but the suicide rate, especially in Pennsylvania, is esca-
lating due to a sense of hopelessness.

Without positive influences and someone there to provide stabili-
ty and encouragement the trend would not change. This is the mes-
sage we are sending to you our leaders.

In tomorrow's future we need your aid and support, financially
and emotionally, and any other way you can provide it. It is evi-
dent we did not wake up one day to a drug ridden nation. We are
not going to get out of this overnight. We need to work together.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you.
We are going to continue this until a quarter of the hour and

then all the adult witnesses will come up at once. That is No. 7. We
are going to start with Mr. Speach. We will continue for another 6
minutes.

Ms. STITH. My name is Keisha Stith of Bronx, NY. I am a single
parent. I have a son 31/2 and he is really big. I just want to say that
a lot of people think that only teens get pregnant, but I was not a
teen yet. This education needs to happen in lower grades. They say
12th grade, teach them sex education, but it needs to be taught
sooner.

Day care, I was separated from my son, I had to send him to Vir-
ginia because I could not find day care for him. It was ridiculous.
There was a year's wait on the waiting list. I had to send him down
there. It is really hard now to find programs to put them in. You
cannot even sit down and watch television, Sesame Street, and
teach them yourselves if you want to go te work. You need time to
spend w' th these children, the education Tor the kids and the day
care is good but I think there needs to be more.

I think kids need to be pushed a little more. Teenagers need to
be pushed a little more in school, education about everything, more
education; more vocational training programs. I think that they
are really, really important in order to make it in society today.
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Mrs. Born. You don't think education at a young age will not
increase the sexual activities of young people? You think it will
prevent pregnancies?

Ms. Swim. Due to a lack of knowledge of why I got pregnant, I
didn't know anything about birth controls, you did what you did
and whatever happened happened. That is how it was. Once it hap-
pens, it is not a reverse but on where you can press it and it is
gone. After you have that baby, you have that baby and that is it.
If there is a GED opportunity, grab it.

If there are any opportunities grab them because that is really
important if you want to make it in today's society.

Mrs. Born. Thank you very much.
Mr. BULL. I am Tony Burrell from Iowa, Des Moines, For

three summers I worked with an apartment complex called the
Homes of Oakridge. This is a low-rent housing complex. It has
what is called a skill center. It is like a little school. It is a three-
room school. It teaches the youngsters from ages 5 to 14 during the
summer and after school on how to better yourself.

I think there needs to be a real incentive for the children be-
cause I remember when I was in kindergarten or first grade when
you did well on a test you got a piece of candy. Once you got in the
fourth grade, a sucker was not what you really wanted if you did a
good job.

I think there needs to be incentive for the youth because educa-
tion is important. We are going to be running the world in the next
10 or 20 years. If we do not have a good education, America will
not be first in the world.

Mrs. BOXER. Absolutely. Thank you. This is so good I don't really
want to stop.

Ms. PETERSON. I am Serena Peterson, southeastern Ohio. There
has been a lot of attention to drugs and the Just Say No campaign.
I am a recovering alcoholic and drug addict. There is more than
just saying no. More times than not it is a consequence of society
and environment.

They were born around it and they grew up with the families
doing it, they do it in front of them, deal in front of them. They
grow up with it and they don't think that is wrong. They just think
it is there.

I grew up with it. I never thought it was wrong. If I asked for a
beer, I got it. It was not wrong to me. It goes deeper than just
saying no. You have to teach them how to say no. You can't just
say no. That sounds difficult; it is.

Mrs. BoxER. In other words, what you are saying is that when
your family is doing this, it takes a lot more to stand up to them
than a simple phrase. You need more support. Thank you very
much for that.

Two more and then we will stop.
Ms. LUNN. I am Nichole Lunn from Maryland. I want to say that

Congress, people up here, they say all the drugs are happening in
the inner city. I live in the inner city but they are also happening
in the suburbs and everything like that of course. There is an inci-
dent that just happened, a freak accident. One of my girlfriends I
had just seen last Friday, her brother shot here while playing with
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a gun. The bullet almost hit her boyfriend but it hit he They
could not save her at the hospital.

When something like that is going on, something is totally
wrong. Her brother is a drug dealer. She had the potential to make
it. Her mother was an addict. She seemed like she was going places
bui one time I talked to my mother and I said 1 don't understand.
God is supposed to have a purpose for everything he does. For this
to happen, my mother just said, well, it probably was a freak acci-
dent but all that went on around her, her father was not around,
but she was not anything like her mother because I guess she
learned from her mother's mistakes.

Another incident where they set a guy up. He used to be in-
volved in drugs. He was trying to get his life together and goi his
GED. They set him up, left him on a side road. This is like a /ear
ago but the girl just happened and everyone was like r ;ally
shocked.

Mrs. BOXER. So you are worried about young people who are
trying to break away getting cut down.

The last comments from a person in the front.
Ms. MILLER. I am Tracie Miller from upstate New York. I would

like to speak on education. Education is lacking in this country.
How can our budget for education be less than our budget for de-
fense? On a scale of 15 industrial movers why are we 15th in that
poll? We need to not only in the traditional way of education,
mathematics and sciences but also an experience like this. Have we
lost the Roaring Twenties, the exciting times when we were No. 1?
Are we ever going to come back to that? If we are, we have to
cl.ange now, not 10 years from now, but now. That is all I would
like to say.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you. Thank you, very much.
Mr. Durbin, I am going to give you the privilege to react to the

responses we just heard because you did not make many com-
ments, then I will call the adult panel up.

Mr. DURBIN. I can't add anything to what you said. I am glad
you came to share it with us. Take the message home that there
are people who need to hear this. You have to get involved, elbow
your way in, meet your elected officials and ask them the ques-
tions. You will get some response. But you have to keep pushing.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you Mr. Durbin for your idea that turned out
to be wonderful. I thank the panel for all your testimony. All of
you out there who joined in, obviously we are going to be okay in
this country because of you.

Now we will ask you to step down and ask the adult panel to
come up. We will lead off with Dr. Speach.

Remember young people, you have 2 weeks within which to get
your written testimony in the record. It will be included in this
hearing and you can show it to your grandchildren.

Dr. Speach, I understand you need to leave at 11 o'clock. Why
don't you go ahead. If we have questions for you we will ask them
and then the rest of the panel will be heard. If you could speak
within 5 minutes, we would appreciate it.
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STATEMENT OF STEVEN F. SPEACH, Ph.D, DISTRICT SUPERIN-
TENDENT, OCEANSIDE LNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, OCEAN-
SIDE, CA

Mr. SPEACH. Thank you, Congresswoman Boxer.
I first want to commend you for inviting the students to be here

today to give testimony. I think that is an outstanding move on the
part of the task force and the committee.

I appear here before you as superintendent of the 16,000-student
Oceanside Unified School District. I am also president of the Cali-
fornia Impact Aid Association, which represents 300 school districts
and over 2 million students in federally impacted schools.

We are deeply appreciative of the assistance of the Federal Gov-
ernment in helping us meet the diverse needs of the children and
their familie:-.; in our community. Oceanside has an estimated
117,000 residents and the number increases every day. We are a
community comprised of a broad range of families from very di-
verse socioeconomic and cultural backgrounds. I would like to take
a moment to discuss with you some of the special and urgent needs
of children from three significant and distinct populations within
our district.

Some 5,000 children come to our schools from families affiliated
with the Marine Corps at Camp Pendleton. They are families who
make vast contributions to our district, and we enjoy outstanding
cooperation and support from the military authorities at the base.
Through frequent moves, many base children never know the con-
thuity of one classroom and one neighborhood. Their parents may
have come in for a 6-month training period and the families move
off. So the mobility rate is very, very high. Many times the homes
lack a father and male model for long periods of time. The students
many times require special attention to maintain their academic
and personal progress.

A second distinct group is migrant families. Many of them are
homeless. Others live two, three, even four families in a single
home or apartment. Adults in these families may neither speak
English nor be literate in Spanish. This fall we enrolled teenagers
in our high schools who had never been to school before. Health
care usually has been inconsistent or nonexistent. In the past 2
years we have conducted tuberculosis testinv for hundreds of stu-
dents in two schools because new classmat were afflicted with
the disease. Hepatitis also is a continuing concern.

We see large numbers of children in pain and at risk from a
third population of our community. This is the lower working class
for whom economic survival is often the primary or seemingly the
only priority. Their attitude toward their children's schools ranges
from antagonistic to apathetic. Their neighborhoods are plagued by
gang rivalry and drug sales. Inevitably, the pressure and violence
of these problems spill over onto our campuses. Drugs, of course,
know no societal barriers. Nor do child abuse and neglect. We
battle these curses on our youth literally on every school campus.

Another tragedy which afflicts all levels of society and which is
eating away at the economic fabric of our Nation is the dropout
problem. There is reason for modest optimism regarding the Na-
tion's efforts to keep the young people in school. A study just re-
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leased by the U.S. Department of Education shows that 2 percent
fewer 10th to 12th graders dropped out of school over the past 3
years than in the previous decade. The percentage of the Nation's
16 to 24 year olds who are not in school and have not completed
school is 3 percent lower than 20 years ago. The dropout rate for
white and black students is down slightly in the past decade, and
the hispanit... dropout rate has remained steady.

In California, dropouts exceed the national average. Between
their sophomore and senior years, 22.7 percent of the class of 1988
dropped out of school. Even in relatively affluent San Diego
County, which includes my district in Oceanside, the rate is 20.1
percent.

What is the price that we pay for students who fail to finish
school? A recent study by Harvard economist Richard Freeman
shows that the real income of the high school dropouts declined 15
percent between 1973 and 1987, while the real earnings of the rest
of the population increased an average of 30 percent.

In addition, the percentage of jobs available to those with only a
high school education is declining. By the year 2000, 65 percent of
all jobs will require training beyond high school, compared to 54
percent now, according to a study by the American Society of
Training and Development. We must assume that the situation for
the dropouts is even more severe.

Young people don't drop out of school suddenly; they do it a little
at a time, beginning in their elementary school years. We can rec-
ognize the telltale signs of children at risk in their early years, and
we must intervene at that time. The Leadership Children's Pack-
age includes several programs that provide vital services to chil-
dren and their families. Each of them could be described as a plan
to combat the dropout problem because they help ensure a child's
success in school and in life.

We can continue to make gains against dropout statistics. But we
must maintain our commitment. We must stay the course. Reduc-
tion or elimination of programs our children need may save a few
dollars today, but we can ill afford the inevitable cost measured in
wasted lives in future years. Preventative action is more certain of
success, far more cost effective and infinitely more humane than
remedial efforts. By providing children with the support necessary
to enhance their physical, social, emotional and intellectual devel-
opment, we prevent learning disorders, we prevent a life of welfare
dependence, prevent drug abuse and this children's package repre-
sents a successful strategy. I give it my full support and thank you
for allowing me to testify.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Sp*. Ach may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. Dr. Speach, we thank you.
I am going to ask you a couple of questions fast here. We heard a

lot of the young people talk about the peers programs. That is
something that I believe has a tremendous amount of potential
here. Not only can you match kids together, but the peer person,
the one who is giving the counseling, a person who has made it de-
spite all odds, perhaps, who needs a job instead of going to McDon-
ald's after school, can actually get paid through one of these pro-
grams as peer counselor. Do you think that has potential at an
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early age? You say you can identify at-risk kids early. At what age
would you stop matching them up if you believe this is a good ap-
proach?

Mr. SPEACH. The contemporary term in education these days is
called cooperative learning. It is a type of peer assistance and peer
coaching where students work in groups. This can begin at the
early elementary level. In Oceanside we have a formal peer coun-
seling program that takes place at the high school level.

However, that can be worked down to the elementary level as
well. We also have peer tutoring where high school students are
bussed down to the junior highs and to the elementary schools for
assistance with academic and social and emotional counseling as
well. It is a very viable concept. It is in use in several schools.

Mrs. Boxxx. Do you pay those older children?
Mr. SPEACH. No, we don't, no.
Mrs. Born. What I was working on with Representative Wil-

liams from Montana was a program where there would be funding
for this type of program with a teacher's supervision and also paid
extra to be supervised. Do you think that would work?

Mr. SPEACH. Yes; currently -7e offer credit for those students in
that type of a program.

Mrs. Born. Very good. Mr. Miller.
Mr. MILLER. If I might, I was talking earlier about peer counsel-

ing, which intrigues me also. Does that include all of the life skills?
I mean do you use that for kids that are in trouble?

I think when we listen to the brief panel and the young peopie in
the audience, I don't have any questions about their values, but I
certainly have a lot of questions about the stress that ...ley are
under. I wonder, does the school district allow them to get into
peer counseling for drugs or pregnancy or suicide or problems at
home or what have you? Are we just talking about cooperative
learning in terms of helping one e nn*)" or?

Mr. SPEACH. At the high school level where we have the peer
counseling program, it is monitored and supervised by the head
counselor at the high school. One of the difficulties in operating a
program like that is the potential for liability in terms of one stu-
dent giving advice to another student that may result in some type
of a problem. In some cases it could result in a disaster. You have
to be very, very careful and it has to be monitored very closely.

In order to do it on a large-scale basis, it would take prnbably in
the neighborhood of, I would say, one adult counselor for every 10
or so of the peer counselors so that they could monitor and keep
track of what was going on and the type of help that SVP.13 being
given.

You know, we are dealing with some serious problems, as you
heard here to& from the students.

Mr. MILLER. you have the resources to do it?
Mr. SPEACH. No, not with the current State and local funding,

no.
Mr. MILLER. Thank you.
Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much. Mr. Kennedy, any questions?
Mr. KENNEDY. I have no questions at this time. I apologize for

not hearing your testimony, Dr. Speach. I had to be out in the hall-
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way with all the kids. I apologize. Let me listen to the other Mem-
bers and hear your answers. Thank you.

Mrs. BOXER. Mr. Slattery.
Mr. SLATTERY. I don't have any questions at this time either, but

I may have some when all the panelists finish.
Mrs. Born. Dr. Speach, I really do want to thank you for

C0111111g.

Mr. Mum I have been to your, not to your school district, but I
have been to Oceanside and to the environs.

Let me just ask you, you talked about two, from our other work
in the committee, fairly difficult populations. That is migrant and
military families that have a whole set of, not only the same prob-
lems as other families, but they seem to be more magnified to some
extent.

A lot of times we hear in the Congress that we are asking the
schools to do more and more and more and that the schools should
just be teaching basic education or educational skills and that we
have overburdened them.

You are not getting a choice in this matter. That is your attend-
ance area, if I remember the geography there. Your attendance
area is made up of essentially high-risk families and families that
are under additional stress for a whole series of reasons.

I guess what I am troubled about is you don't get a choice, but
you don't get the resources to deal with them either, as I under-
stand it.

Mr. SPRACH. That is the point. Where Federal policy dictates the
type of population that you serve, then Federal policy should assist
with funding the type of program that we need to offer. Some of
the things that the students were mentioning we do.

We begin our family life education program in the 6th grade. We
have a teen mothers program. We have a child care program.
There a child, there isn't a teen mother in Oceanside that
cannot get a high school education. We provide child care. They
come to the school, we have-- -

Mr. MILLER. You don't have this intrusive on the traditional
family?

Mr. SPEACH. No, but we can't do it with the traditional funding
from the State. We need help in areas that Federal policy affect us.

The Immigration Reform Act, has had a tremendous impact on
us. We get families from Central America, Mexico, Southeast Asia
and so on. We are expected to provide bilingual programs, English
as a second language programs, and that is wonderful. We will do
it. But it takes additional funding to get that done.

Mr. MILLER. I assume the Immigration Act has caused increased
enrollment because parents will now come forward without fear?

Mr. SPEACH. Very definitely. They have no fear of the immigra-
tion officer coming to pick up their children at school. That is an-
other.

The drug abuse education, we have a formal program called
Here's Looking at You 2000. We begin that in the kindergarten. It
goes through 12th grade. We have another that we cooperate with
the Oceanside Police Department. It is called Drug Abuse Resist-
ance Education. DARE is the acronym. That is an intensive pro-
gram by police officers in our schools. We have school rosovrce offi-
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cers on all of our campuses doing the drug counseling, as the one
young lady indicated today.

I have attended several of the seminars the school police officers
do. When asked if they have any questions, invariably a child will
raise his or her hand and ask, What do you do if your mother
smokes pot? What do you do if your mother takes cocaine?

That problem is pervasive throughout society. School is just a re-
flection of that society. We are doing all that we can to help in
terms of educating students in addition to trying to provide an aca-
demic program for them.

We are not saying to you, Congressman, or to the public that we
don't want to take on any more responsibilities. If we do, we need
the type of, you know, the type of funding that, P-4 a simple exam-
ple would be the Federal school lunch program.

We serve more meals in the Oceanside school district than all of
the combined restaurants in the city of Oceanside do on a daily
basis. There is funding for that, there is assistance for that.

Actually that is a program that we think is very vital because
many of our students do suffer from poor nutrition. That provides
an opportunity to do it. We do not begrudge doing it as long as
there is the funding there to assist and help us to provide that type
of a program.

Mr. MILLER Thank you.
Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Mr. Miller.
I just want to say that you have been very, very helpful. You are

on the front lines in handling all these social problems that these
kids talk about.

As you point out, many of them are a direct result of our poli-
cies, be it immigration or the fact that we have an Air Force base
or an Army base in your district. So we can't walk away from it. I
think that you have made that point very eloquently.

We look forward to working with you as we develop a budget
that may reflect the type of needs that you speak about. Thank you
very much. Have a good flight back.

Mr. SPRACH. Thank you very much.
Mrs. BOXER. I am very delighted to welcome the rest of you. We

are going to introduce you each one at a time.
Dr. T. Berry Braze lton, the president of the National Center for

Clinical Infant Programs. I want to say that we are happy to see
you back here. I know sometimes you think that we are not listen-
ing. We are listening.

There were many Members here who had to leave for an emer-
gency issue on the Appropriations Committee. If they are not here,
it is because they were called away. We ask yot. speak to us in
your wisdom for about 5 minutes.

Mr. MILLER. I want to extend my apologies. We have a whips'
meeting on day care which we hope to get to in a week. I assume
you understand that. I will come right back after that meeting.

Dr. BRAZELTON. If you leave, you better win.
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STATEMENT OF DR. T. BERRY BRAZELTON, PRESIDENT,
NATIONAL CENTER FOR CLINICAL INFANT PROGRAMS

Dr. BRAZELTON. Mrs. Boxer, you took away the first sentence I
had to say. The lack of people here, I feel like I am talking to the
convErted already.

I really feel that getting these kids together and having Joe Ken-
nedy start off the National Children's Day is one of the most excit-
ing and important things that could happen in the United States.
Yet, look how few of you, except the converted, are present today
as we talk about it.

Mrs. BOXER. Seriously, there were about eight others, and they
did hear the children.

Dr. BRAZELTON. And that was the most important thing you did
today. I wish we could have heard every one of them. I thought
they were so exciting and had so much passion and were pointing
out to us that our society has got the wrong values.

We have put our money and our backing at a national level in
the wrong values. I don't think parents today are children would
buy no aggmation and power and money as the appropriate
values for the USA today.

These kids were telling us what a stress it is. They are the survi-
vors in a culture that we have sold short, it seems to me. These
kids are showing you what kinds of strength it takes to survive in
a culture that doesn't believe in families or children.

We are the least child oriented society in the world and the least
family oriented society in the world except South Africa, and yet
these kids are survivors. They ought to be showing us that they
have got the strength in this country if we are willing to pay atten-
tion to it and put it to use.

I hesitated to come down today because I say the same thing
every time I come, that families in this country are really hurting
and they don't feel like anybody is listening, and here is another
example.

Really the schools can pick up responsibility and these teenagers
can pick up a lot of responsibility. We need to start earlier than
that. We need to back up families. We need to back up families, so
one of the kids said everybody will listen as they are. I thought
that was a beautiful statement.

We need to hear everybody as they are and to think about what
we can do in this country, in this rich country to prevent and to
backup families at an appropriate time. My own thesis is we are
waiting toe late to start putting Band Aids on various aspects that
we are facing.

The whole drug situation, we are waiting until we already know
teenage pregnancies and are into adult pregnancies with kids, with
people who are addicted. Now in Boston 20 percent of the babies at
birth are addicted.

These kids have a very serious future ahead of them. They
haveI went down to play with one for national public radio the
other day trying to educate people about what they look like, and
this baby was absolutely frantic, unreachable.

You couldn't do anything to help this baby unless you swaddled
her completely, tied her up so she couldn't move and then forced



33

her fist into her mouth. And at that point she looked up at me
gratefully and sighed, and her color came back and she started
breathing again.

She had gotten to the point, which a lot of them do, of stopping
breathing. What I really wanted to do was take this baby and a
normal newborn and make every teenager in the country hold
these two babies and say which one do 4ou want.

I want to take it to every adult in this country. This is not just a
teenage problem. It is an adult problem.

The dru? situation in this country ought to scare us all. I say we
are up to 20 percent. We are in the Boston City Hospital. In the
middle class hoe_ pitals it is not quite that high yet, but it is climb-
ing rapidly. In Chicago it is 25 percent.

They tell me it is over 50 percent in Miami. These are kids that
are not going to be able to make it in our society, and we have cre-
ated the pocket. So I guess what I want to know is how can, how
can these kids tell us to change things?

I think we heard a lot of them talk today about how our value
systems have not respected the struggle they have had to put up to
make it.

I would like to talk about how do we get back to the struggle
that really should concern us all. I don't think Russia is our biggest
adversary and I don't think Nicaragua is. I don't think Central
America is. I have just been down to Brazil. I see that Brazil is tell-
ing us what we are headed for. It is a desperately frightening coun-
try, and yet we are just as close to this situation they are in as I
can conceive of because we have not paid attention to appropriate
values.

It seems to me that the biggest danger to our society is in our
family. We need to support families. We have not been doing it be-
cause we wait until they show their failures and then put the Band
Aids on. We could do so much better than that.

We know a lot about prevention. We know what it takes and we
know what people need. We know what these kids have been
through as they tell us. We know the ingredients of it.

We are not an uneducated society nor an unsophisticated one,
and we have resources. All of that makes me frantic when I
come to Washington. I don't like to come down here.

It makes me very uncomfortable about where we are headed.
When I hear that the neonatal mortality for the year climbed to
twice what it was last year because of drugs and because of the
kind of unreaching of these people at risk, I say, yes, like they do
in Brazil when somebody shoots one of their kids.

They say, yes, that is whrtt we deserve, it is what we deserve. We
are about to get in more trouble than we can afford.

I think there are some things we can do. I wrote them out for the
testimony Joe asked me to write for his pamphlet because I
thought it was such a wonderful survey. It pointed out so well that
the pockets of poor health and the inadequacy of reaching these
kids for health and people in pregnancy was really tied to poverty,
people who were disillusioned, all the rest, if you look at his report,
it is as simple as that.

If we have not reached people by the time they get pregnant,
They don't respect their pregnancy or their future baby. If we don't
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reach people when they are in trouble because they never have
gotten reached by our society before, they don't turn to us until
they are in deep trouble rather than when we can prevent things
much our medical system at present is a deficit model.

We only are concerned with illness and not the opportunity to
make relationships with people when they are beginning to get in
trouble. I think these kids told us the same thing. Our society is
based on a deficit model of Band Aids. We don't need to do that.

There are some times in my own work which show that if we
spent 10 minutes instead of 10 hours on a set of parents and preg-
nancy, they could begin to feel good about themselves. They could
begin to value themselves and their pregnancy, and they would be
responsible to the outreach systems that we provide.

I think we could go through the whole childhood and show you
that parents would feel backed up, would feel empowered, would
pass that empowerment on to their children if we respected them
at certain stress periods in their lives. Pregnancy is one of them.

The next one is around the new baby and the opportunities to
help them understand new babies who are not quite normal, who
are deficient, who need to be respected as they are

If we were there with parents in 10 to 15 minutes we could make
a significant difference to the parent's future and to that baby's
future.

The next opportunity comes with day care, with appropriate day
care for every kid in this country. I don't even want to call it child
care.

I want to call it family care. I think my biggest objection to the
bills that you are going to be voting on tomorrow is that they talk
about child care and not about what it means to families to have
this kind of backing and to have this kind of support from the
Nation and hopefully from their State governments.

Families who are stressed right now by both having to work or
families at home, and these women at home are just as stressed as
women in the work force, and they are a rising group of women.
You all better be paying attention to them.

All of them need a situation where they can go from time to
time, leave their kids, and go off and shop or whatever they do, but
get time for themselves to reorganize and then come back to a peer
group. I would like to think if these centers as family resource cen-
ters for all parents.

It seems to me that the stresses on parents today is reflected on
the stresses in these kids. If we can begin to back them up for their
strengths rather than for their stresses, I think we can make a dif-
ference. I think our educational system shows, too.

We can educate kids at any age and we can educate then well if
they come with the proper emotion backup. So this is my plea.

What about changing our priorities at the national level and set-
ting them up to think about how we can support people for
strengths. We had a good example of it this morning.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Braze lton may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much.
That is the purpose of this hearing. That is why the Budget Com-

mittee and the lect Committee teamed up, which is fairly un-



35

precedented, because we are looking at making this next year's
budget more reflective of the things you are talt_ing about.

The other point I want to make to you, Doctor, is don't give up.
We are trying to turn around the Ship of State. That is worse than
turning around the Queen Mary. It takes a little work, a little time
and it takes representation.

You know George Miller's committee has repeated the same
thing for 4 or 5 years now. The report card that Joe Kennedy
handed us underscores it. We have to say it in every way. The fact
that the media looked at these kids today, you are all helping call
attention to it.

Before we ask for any questions, I think we are going to go
through the rest of the panel.

Ms. Zieike, you are taking Ann Lynch'. place. You are from the
National PTA. We welcome you and ask you to summarize in 5
munutes.

STATEMENT OF ARLENE ZIEIKE, VICE PRESIDENT, LEGISLATIVE
ACTIVITY, THE NATIONAL PTA

Ms. ZIEIKE. I am Arlene Zieike, vice president of legislative activ-
ity of the PTA. We have all been touched by the testimony of the
young people today who describe the hardships they face in their
lives.

These are the concerns of the PTA. These young people are re-
sourceful and they are resilient. We would not have to worry about
the future of America if we cold remove some of the barriers that
they face so they could be the people they want to be and grow up
in a world without thou- 3es.

It is symbolic your tA. ffnictees should be jointly conducting a
hearing commemorating the National Children s Day. Our Nation-
al PTA president is honored to serve on the presidential advisory
committee commemorating National Children's Day and to join
Representative Joe Kennedy in order to highlight the conditions of
the Nation's children.

We hope this effort will compel the Congress, the President and
the Nation to act with vigilance, courage, and compassion on
behalf of America's children. The child we neglect and abuse today
will not come back and thank us for our neglect.

Our throwaways don't disappear without making their human
presence felt. The House Select Committee on Children, Youth, and
Families, in their report identifies many of the same warning sig-
nals affecting children and families we raised in our paper.

I would like to respond to the deficit reduction on children's pro-
grams and they are numerous. First it is our children and their
children who will be paying off the deficit and in many cases for
programs that serve the needs of an adult population.

Representative John Porter estimates that while many of us will
receive from $1.30 to $1.50 in government services for every dollar
we contribute in government taxes, our children will receive only
72 cents for every dollar.

The difference will be allocated to pay for the national debt.
Finite resources may serve to create an intergenerational conflict
with the young and the old fighting for existing resources.



36

Third, the Congressional Budget Office estimraes the Federal
share of total expenditures for elementary and secondary education
has declined from 8.7 percent to an estimated 6.1 percent in fiscal
year 1988.

While the National PTA believes that the locs t and State levels
should primarily fund elementary and seconds ry education, the
Federal Government must maintain its primary role of assuring
equal educational opportunity and access for all children.

Children's programs are not entitlements and therefore are the
most vulnerable, the easiest to gouge and the most tempting to cut
of the $80 billion in nationally occurring revenue for 1990, the De-
partment of Education allocated one-half of 1 percent of the total.
Children did not create the Federal deficit. In return we should not
balance the budget on their backs. Surely if we can find more than
$60 billion of budget for S&L institutions, we can fully fund Head
Start and Chapter I.

It is a national disgrace that after 18 years, Head Start money
serves less than 20 percent of ali eligible children and that after 25
years Chapter I funding serves only 40 percent of all eligible chil-
dren. The National PTA believes there is no one program that can
address a multiple range of child and youth develolpment needs.

In a study by the William T. Grant Foundation entitled Youth in
America's Future, the report concluded there is no coordinated,
comprehensive long-term national action agenda consolidating and
devoting Federal resources toward youth. While the President and
Governors are meeting to discuss goals and plans for education, it
is essential those goals and plans be coordinated with other needs
such as health, protection, safety, shelter, and nutrition. Agencies
that service children both within and outside the Federal Govern-
ment must act to cooperate rather than compete for turf and re-
sources.

The Leadership Children's Package is a coordinated effort that
establishes a Federal child policy and is supported by the National
PTA. The five part initiative includes early childhood health, edu-
cation and development, compensatory education for at-risk stu-
dents, fighting dropouts and drugs, enhancing competitiveness and
strengthening higher education.

These programs are not expenditures but wise investments. Sig-
nificant savings have been documented for such investments. We
have got to get beyond the senseless congressional battle about who
should fund child services.

We believe State and local governments should have the primary
responsibility, but the Federal Government must be a partner in
assuring equal opportunity. There are resource inequities between
States and regions of this country, the kind of services a child re-
ceives becomes more dependent on the income level of their par-
ents and the community in which they grow up.

How do we bridge the gap between our knowledge about children
and our commitment to doing something? We cite how we were
able to rebuild Western Europe and Japan after World War II; we
were able to rescue Greece and Turkey from communism with the
Marshall Plan; we were able to rescue teachers and revitalize their
programs through the National Defense Education Act; we were
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able to connect cities and towns with a national highway system;
and we were able to send a man to the Moon.

On September 25, 1989, the National Alliance of Business com-
prised of the Business Roundtable, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce,
the National Association of Manufacturers, the American Business
Conference, and the U.S. Hispanic Business Commerce stated: "The
strength of the American economy rests on the strengths of Ameri-
ca's public schools. All sectors have a responsibility for the current
crisis and allbusiness, educators, parents, public leadersneed to
assume responsibility for overcoming this crisis."

After a decade of defining problems, reading reports, and compil-
ing statistics, we need a national commitment no less dramatic and
intense than we have for our prior national accomplishments. And
for many of our children and communities, we know what works.

National Children's Week should serve to bring us together. It is
significant that tomorrow House Members wil have an opportunity
to be voting on a child care measure. We urge your support for
H.R. 3.

To close, we must link the success of our children to the personal
success of every American. We must impress upon the 75 percent
of adults in our society who have no direct link to children or
public education that when the lives of the least of our children are
improved, we can assure a more productive, just and civil Nation
for all of us. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Ann Lynch submitted by Ms. Zieike
may be found at end of hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. We thank you very much. We are pleased the PTA
is taking such a strong stand on this issue.

Now, it is my pleasure to introduce a gentleman who represents
himself on this panel, but also represents a fine law school in the
district which I represent, the University of San Francisco Law
School, the Community Legal Education Program. He is the author
of In Defense of Children. Thomas Nazario, we welcome you. Please
proceed for 5 minutes.

STATEMENT OF THOMAS A. NAZARIO, DIRECTOR, UNIVERSITY
OF SAN FRANCISCO LAW SCHOOL, COMMUNITY LEGAL EDUCA-
TION PROGRAMS AND AUTHOR OF IN DEFENSE OF OUR CHIL-
DREN

Mr. NAZARIO. Thank you for having me. I will try to keep this
relatively short.

When writing my statement for the committee, it came to mind
you had seen all the statistics. It didn't make much sense to do
that same thing over again. After a while, you look at the statis-
tics, and they kind of blend together. They don't make sense any
more or the misery that children lead is so traumatic that we kind
of toss it aside. It is too difficult to deal with.

So I came up with another plan for you, but first I want to tell a
few stories. One of the things that happened after writing In De-
fense of Children is I have gone around the country and talked to a
lot of people about it and have also gone around to classrooms and
talked to kids themselves.

42



38

I visited in the neighborhood of about 20 classrooms a month.
Over the course of the last 6 months, I have come across some kids
that have really disturbed me.

One child at a high school in San Francisco told me a story.
About a week before he was at a party, and there was a coke deal
going on in the back of the party. A shot rang out, and his friend
was killed as a result of apparently losing a quantity of coke. He
was shot right through the head.

He knew who did it. The police were still looking for that person,
and he came and talked to me about the problems going on in his
community and wanted to know what he should do, should he turn
in that person.

When I visit these schools, I talk about children's rights. In doing
so, I hear an awful lot about the problems children have. I went to
another school and talked about child abuse. In that school, a
young person walked over to me after I had talked about thw vari-
ous kinds of abuse.

There was an article About it recently called the Ten Most Popu-
lar Ways of Abusing Cnildren in America. I went through that list.
One of the children started crying shortly after the class. I felt I
had hit, of course, a sore note. She came over to me. One of the
things I talked about was the problem of teenage pregnancy and
the fact that teenagers who have no adequate care for their chil-
dren at home sometimes run all over the place trying to find some-
one to take care of those children.

She had resorted to tying up these children at home in order to
get to school. It was important for her to complete school. Her
child was 3 years old. She felt if she didn't tie him up, he would
hurt himself.

She had done that for quite some time. I mentioned that as being
one of the common ways that young people, in fact all people, deal
with the lack of adequate child care, tying childrer

I talked about that because often, of course, when there is a fire,
these children don't get away, and they are burned to death. That
is what she got frightened about.

At another school not too long ago, a young person walked over
to me and saidthis young person was 17 years oldto my face,
my father has been raping me for 3 years. He says if I tell anyone,
he's going to kill me, but I cannot go on with it any more.

I had been talking about sexual abuse of children in that class,
and she had to tell ma. So again, we had to do a fairly elaborate
referral and try to get this girl some help.

There is a lot of pain out there, a lot of suffering. When I visit
these schools and talk to kids, I get some idea of what is going on.
It was refreshing to me to hear some of the kids here today tell the
stories that they lead.

One of the questions I almost always get from people on the
Oprah Winfrey show and other places is, What is the most common
problem children have? The most common problem is they have
little power, very little access to people with power, they have very
little voice. You gave them a bit of a voice today. I hope you contin-
ue to listen to them. They certainly need to be listened to. They are
the experts.

3
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I won't take much more time. I had an awful lot of other things
to tell you, but there is a limited amount of time, a limited amount
of people here.

In my statement to you, what I didand I won't go through it,
but I think it is interestingwhat I did was try to give you a pic-
ture of 1,000 kids in America. I took the statistics, and I worked
them out in such a way that if we had 1,000 children in this room,
what their lives would look like.

How many would be born to this? How many would be born to
that? How many would experience this? And as a rest:lt of this,
how many would experience that?

In order to make you visualize what is going on, in order to
make it at least a little easierit is a difficult task to doI tried to
do that in my statement. If I had more time, I would do it with you
here, but I wanted to instead just tell you some of the stories of the
kids I have spoken to recently.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Nazario may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you. You really are making an impact on
some of the young people you teach. Some of their lives are really
opening up because of the information you are sharing with them.
Please continue your good work.

Dr. Donald Schiff, president, National Academy of Pediatrics. We
ask you to summarize in 5 minutes. After that we will go to the
budget people who are very key to this. Then we will open it up to
the panel.

STATEMENT OF DONALD SCHIFF, M.D., PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS

Dr. SCHIFF. Thank you very much, Chairwoman Boxer. It is my
pleasure to be with you this morning and Members of the Select
Committee and Members of the Budget Committee Task Force.

This morning, I was at a child care press conference where I lent
the support of the Academy of Pediatrics to that effort. I commend
it to everyone.

I am professor of pediatrics at the University of Colorado Medi-
cal Center and the president of the American Academy of Pediat-
rics. I am here to respond to this wonderful opportunity to not only
hear children but to add our voice to some awareness of the in-
creased needs of children.

I want to also commend the group and your foresight as you look
forward to fiscal year 1991 and certainly the fiscal challenge is to
provide sufficient money for critical Federal programs for our chil-
dren during the time of fiscal retrenchment and certainly the pros-
pects for creating new opportunities appear very bleak at this time.

I think I am not going to be discouraged by all that. We are
going to look for every opportunity we can to increase what is
available for children. I think, although I am a pediatrician and
you would expect me to speak only to pediatric medical matters
this morning, I want you to know that we are also in favor of what
we might call a national policy for children. This is a recognition
that our commitment to our future generation goes beyond simple
health. We certainly are talking about that this morning.
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We certainly learned that if we are going to have productive
adults that children need nurturing, they 'need education, they
need nutritious food, they need an environment free of harmful
contaminants, they need a place in which they can grow and devel-
op. I think that this committee's joint effort certainly should lead
in that direction.

I want you also to know that there is some good news to renort
and that there is enough advancement in technical services and
medicine so that our immunizations and other preventive health
services where they are utilized can save children from experienc-
ing many disorders and disabilities which have plagued us in the
Past.

Certainly there are new plagues on the horizon. The infant born
of drug addicted parents living in poverty fEu!.e5 the nrovect of
abuse or abandonment by parents. They are also confronted by
direct opportunities to use and abuse drugs, alcohol, sex, tobacco,
cars, and guns. They are too often left to care for themselves and
their younger siblings because working parents cannot afford or
find child care.

As a nation, we believe we must shift public policy to reflect our
commitment to children by providing the critical Federal support
needed for health, social and educational programs. I am talking
about money.

We believe the time has come for us all to not only declare our
v rbal support for infants, children and adolescents, but they must
also commit the necessary fiscal and administrative resources.

The Academy has determined that its No. 1 priority for this
year, and for the next several years, is to achieve access to quality
health care for all infants, children and adolescents. As this Nation
moves forward with the design of a national health plan, our chil-
dren must come first. Resources may dictate a phased in approach
and, in our opinion, this should be the age group of 0-21. Tough
choices, but very necessary.

As child advocates and also as Members of Congress, you are
faced with a dilemma, and that dilemma is how to make the very
difficult choices you must make when you begin to look at the
budget and appropriation cycle for fiscal year 1991.

I think we would all agree it would be shortsighted to fund one
program area benefiting children by taking money away from
other programs for child health or social or educational programs.
All are important, and all are intertwined.

I am going to take my remaining few minutes to use the report
can basis and try to hit some of the major elements that we think
should be carefully dealt with.

First of all, immunization. The childhood immunization program
must keep pace with the new development in recommended immu-
nization. We can do that through the increased use of public health
clinics.

We must also keep in mind the rising cost of vaccines. Public
policy has now recommended a second dose of what we call the
MMR, the measles, mumps and rubella. As yet, there have been no
new dollars allocated to public health for this purpose.



The Maternal and Child Health Block Grant is another impor-
tant aspect that must be funded. Injury prevention is very impor-
tant. It is our greatest killer and crippler of children.

AIDS is an issue with which we are becoming more and more fa-
miliar with. Certainly funds must become available there.

We have been hearing about child abuse, one of the most diffi-
cult issues our society is trying to deal with.

Nutrition. We know that we are in need of spending more on the
WIC program, and our Academy is highly in favor of that.

Let me conclude by talking about research for a moment. In
every aspect of a child's life, there is a need for new knowledge. We
must always, can always learn more. We have always supported
biomedical and behaviorial research programs through the Nation-
al Institutes of Health, through the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and
Mental Health Administration, and al-tough other specific categori-
cal programs.

We feel not enough dollars are being spent on research, &ad we
implore you to add those.

I know I have spent my time giving you a litany of programs
which we feel need support, but they are all out there. They all
need your support, and we look forward to speaking to you again
on this topic. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Schiff may be found at end of
hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you very much, Doctor.
It is my pleasure to welcome two witnesses who will deal 3sen-

tially with the budget. Robert Greenstein, executive director of the
Center on Budget and Policy Priorities, and James Weill, the gen-
eral counsel of the Children's Defense Fund.

I will call on Mr. Greenstein at this time.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT GREENSTEIN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
CENTER ON BUDGET AND POLICY PRIORITIES

Mr. GREENSTEIN. Thank you. Let me start by commending you
and also Congressman Miller on the leadership you have provided
this year in the budget process on helping to ensure not only that a
children's initiative became a leadership package, but much of it
seemed to be structured to make its way through the legislative
process and being transferred into reality. That package included a
number of discretionary programs targeted at low-income children.

As one of the earlier witnesses mentioned, for children as com-
pared to groups such as the elderly, for children, a much smaller
proportion of the resources that are contained in the Federal
budget are in the form of entitlements and a much larger propor-
tion are in the form of discretionary grant and aid programs.

As well known, the domestic discretionary programs are the part
of the Federal budget that has been squeezed the most over the
past decade going from about 5.7 percent of GNP at the beginning
of the decade to about 3.7 percent of GNP today.

We have analyzed those discretionary programs that are low-
income programs that are either means tested or that primarily
serve low-income people. For those, the appropriations level, the
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budget authority level adjusted for inflation has fallen 55 percent
from fiscal year 1981 to 1989.

That figure is a little bit of a problem with it in that it includes
the large drop in budget authority for subsidized housing, and ap-
propriations may not be the best way to measure housing trends.

We also looked at all low-income programs excluding subsidized
housing. There still the drop in real terms in budget authorities
since fiscal year 1981 is 30 percent. Those programs disproportion-
ately serve low-income children.

Included in that list are some programs that serve primarily low-
income elderly, but those tend to have been cut less than 30 per-
cent. If you remove them, the percentage decline would be even
greater.

In the entitlement areas as well, when you look at the large re-
ductions in the early 1980'e in means tested entitlements, they
were primarily means tested ertitlements to children.

Some of the cuts that were made in the programs were designed
in a fashion so they did not affect the elderly and disabled but af-
fected everyone else on the program, while about four-fifths of ev-
eryone else on the program consists of families with children.

One of the biggest problems right now is at a time when data tell
us that 45 percent of all poor renters in the country are paying at
least 70 percent of income for housing costs. The food stamp pro-
gram takes account of costs in excess of 50 percent of income for
the elderly and disabled.

For families with children, it takes account of those costs only up
to a limited degree and assumes anything after that isn't really a
housing cost and is really available for food when it is not.

What do we do about this, keeping in mind the issues of Federal
budget and the need to reduce the deficit? I thought that the docu-
ment produced in the fall by former Presidents Gerald Ford and
Jimmy Carter, the American Agenda Report, was particularly in-
teresting.

Emerging from that document are really two central themes.
One was that for the basis to strengthen the American economy
over the long run, we absolutely needed to make significant
progress in reducing the Federal deficit.

The other major message of that same report was to strengthen
the economy over the long run, we also needed to invest more in
key effective programs for low-income children who would become
the work force fo: tomorrow.

Work force figures are startlirg. If you look at the number of
young people who will enter the labor force between 1986 and the
year 2000, it is 10 million fewer than the number of young people
that entered the labor force between 1972 and 1986. There will be
many fewer workers for the jobs that are available at the very time
that the economy is becoming more technological sand the jobs re-
quire more levels of education and basic skills.

Of the new people who will, youth who will enter the labor force,
they are disproportionately from low-income and minority back-
grounds. In the mideighties, Hispanics were 7 percent of the work
force. They will be 20 percent of the new entrants in the work force
between now and the year 2000.
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We have issues here not simply of compassion or what is the
right thing to do for children. This is an issue that is as central, I
think, to the functioning of the American economy and to our com-
petitiveness with foreign countries at the turn of the century as is
the fundamental issue of reducing a deficit.

If you put those two together, it means we have to reorder prior-
ities and raise the resources we need to pay for the priorities we
set.

The American Agenda Report talked about having a process
where over time, over, I think it was 8 years, we reach all eligible
children in Head Start with childhood immunizations, prenatal
care, Job Corps, compensatory education for disadvantaged chil-
dren.

The children's initiative that you were involved with this year
was a start in that direction, but we have a long way still to go to
get there.

Another theme in the American Agenda Report, which I think is
particularly important, is that we do much better by working fami-
lies with children. I think we need to set a goal. This is something
that y"u hear people from the Heritage Foundation and groups on
the conservative side to groups on the liberal side espousing, that if
a parent works fulltime, the family and the children in that family
shouldn't have to live in poverty.

To get there from here, we are going to need to pass the mini-
mum wage bill, we are going to have a substantial increase in the
earned income credit adjusted by family size. I am pleased that will
be on the House Floor tomorrow.

We need to recognize if we do those two things and get earnings
closer to the poverty line, we still face the risk that child care cost
or lack of adequate quality child care and lack of health care can
push the working families back below the poverty line.

We need not to think the EITC, one of the top priorities for poor
children now, is a substitute for also dealing with the need for ade-
quate affordable quality child care.

Also, we need to move forward on health care. I would say there,
too, that one of the 'single most important steps for children now
facing the Congress is the legislation that the Energy and Com-
merce Committee reported to over time require that all children
who are poor who are below the age of 18 be covered under Medic-
aid coverage. That is an important step to take.

Last on this list I would include the housing issues that I men-
tioned. I think if the housing situation continues to deteriorate and
we get to maintain the kinds of situations where nearly half of all
poor renters are paying 70 percent of income for housing, large
proportions of them, poor families with children, that can undo the
things we try to do in an earned income credit, in Head Start and
other areas.

I see I am out of time, so let me briefly mention that obviously to
do these things, you have to pay for them. We have to redirect re-
sources. I think we need to be a little less cautious than we have
been over the past year in looking at the implications ( the
changes in Eastern Europe and the Soviet bloc for the defense
budget.
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I am not saying you can suddenly cut $40 billion next year from
the defense budget. That might not be wise. But my concern is that
we need to start doing the things now in the defense budget that
can enable us, if the events continue on their course in the Soviet
bloc, enable us 5 years from now to maybe be saving $40 billion in
the defense budget.

Each year you delay, since you cannot have that big cut from one
year to the next, each year we don't start to set in motion the top
choices, the changes in priority, before we know it we will be 5
years from now and we won't be able to save anything.

We clearly are going to need to raise more revenues. We really
need to be closing more loopholes, not opening or reopening new
ones. We need to restructure and reorder priorities in the domestic
area, another thing that seems a little forlorn given what is hap-
pening in catastrophic health insurance.

But I would suggest that we have taxation of Social Security ben-
efits that is parallel to what we do with non - Social Security private
pensions. I think we could look at reduced COLA's for early retir-
ees before age 52 and Federal retirement programs.

We can look to lower priority domestic discretionary programs
like EDA and move some of that money to a higher

Mrs. BOXER. I am going to have to stop you, Mr. Greenstein, be-
cause I want Mr. Weill to testify before I have to stop for a vote.

Mr. Gszirs mem. I was actually finished.
Mrs. BOXER. I wanted to say to you that I agree with you. We

should not be afraid to talk about this transfer. Fortune magazine
and Business Week both have called for a, you know, hold on to
your hat, a $100 billion cut in the military budget over 10 years,
starting next year.

There is a move on the Budget Committee and off the Budget
Committee to prepare such a document, such a budget called the
The Budget For a Strong America, which would take that $10 bil-
lion and it to transfer the type of programs that you people are tes-
tifying about. That is why your testimony is so critical.

I wanted to 'Joint out that Mr. Slattery, who is here, has been a
very staunch defender of children's programs on the Budget Com-
mittee from a very moderate perspective, which reflects his poli-
tics. But his zeal for children really crossed over the line this past
year. I feel that he will continue to be a leader in this area now
that he has to defend himself.

Mr. SLATTERY. I don't have to defend myself.
Mrs. BOXER. I really just wanted to thank you.
Mr. SLATTERY. I want to express my gratitude, Madam Chairper-

son, for holding this hearing. I want to encourage those at this
panel and those at that previous panel, also. I know that many of
you have testified before this committee and numerous committees
on the Hill and have participated in a number of other panels ad-
dressing this issue.

Dr. Braze lton, I am sure that you especially, and many of you
are exhausted and wonder if people out there are listening or hear-
ing this. I want you to know I think they are.

I am more optimistic today than I have been in the 7 years I
have been in Congress that these urgent issues wil; be addressed in
the not too distant future.
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Perhaps the most encouraging aspect is the recognition I believe
on the part of the business community in this country that in fact
their future is also at stake. If they ever hope to be competitive in
a global economy, they have to have an American work force that
is capable of competing against all the other people around the
world.

I think they are sadly and slowly coming to the conclusion that
unless some things are dramatically changed, that their future is
precariously in the balance.

I want to encourage you, and I want to also encourage you to try
to do what you can to build bridges to those other interest that will
ultimately be very, very key players in deciding some of these
issues.

I have some other questions when my time is granted.
Mrs. BOXER. I will get back to you, but I did want them to know

you are here and played such an important role in this last budget
session.

I would like to ask Mr. Weill to conclude the panel. Mr. Weill is
the general counsel of the Children's Defense Fund, which is a very
important organization. We welcome you.

STATEMENT OF JAMES D. WEILL, GENERAL COUNSEL,
CHILDREN'S DEFENSE FUND

Mr. WEILL. Marian Wright Edelman is sorry she cannot be here
today.

Representative Kennedy's report card gives stark evidence of the
terrible problems and risks that many American children face. Our
Nation's future is seriously endangered because our society has
failed to assure that its children are as well fed and housed, as
healthy and secure and as well educated as they need to be, and as
are children in other industrial countries.

These failures are particularly tragic because children are the
group for whom early interventions, both public and private inter-
ventions, can be the most effective and cost beneficial if we do it
right and if we do it early enough.

On the public side, we need to invest more in programs like WIC,
Head Start, Job Corps, prenatal and preventive care for children,
Chapter I, quality child care and immunizations. Each of these is
extremely effective, each is very cost beneficial, and each is under-
funded.

As just one example, the immunization program saved $10 for
every dollar we invested in it over the last decades. It is one of the
most effective programs we have, yet it is unforgivable that our
country has let its immunization rates drop in the 1980's and let
mumps and pertussis disease rates rise.

We are seeing abreaks of measles for the first time in years.
All of this is traceable to our failure to immunize our youngest
children. It is traceable to the misplaced budget priorities in the
early and mideighties when the Federal Government failed to
make enough money available to give the vaccines that were neces-
sary.

If we want to compete internationally in the 21st century, if we
want our children to be able to pay off the deficits we have in-
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curred for them, if we want our children to support us in our old
age through the Social Security system, and if we want this Nation
to prosper and thrive, we have to start investing n,w in our chil-
dren, and we have to drastically reorder our budget priorities along
the lines that Bob Greenstein talked about.

We cannot let another year go by without ensuring basic health
and child care for America's children. Congress this year has to
make a beginning by establishing a national floor of health protec-
tion for every low-income pregnant woman and child through the
Medicaid program, through the Energy and Commerce bill that
Bob Greenstein talked about. We have to provide sufficient funding
to fully immunize all infants and children.

Congress has to pass immediately the child care legislation that
is going to be on the floor of the House tomorrowas part of the
reconciliation billand reject any efforts to weaken that bill or to
cut the funding in that bill.

[The prepared statement of Marian Wright Edelman submitted
by James Weill, may be found at end of hearing.]

Mrs. BOXER. What does it cost to immunize every child that
needs it, approximately? How much do we have to increase the
budget?

Mr. WEILL. I don't have the exact figure with me, but approxi-
mately $40 million.

Dr. SCHIFF. About $183 million.
Mrs. BOXER. We are spending $34 million. We need $183 million.
Dr. SCHIFF. You are spending a little over $100 million. The

budget figures are somewhere in the neighborhood of $140 million,
and we need about $183 million.

Mrs. BOXER. If we had $183 million, we would meet the problem?
George Miller calls that "chump change" to do what we have to do.

Mr. WEILL. And we must sustain those increases over a period of
time in order to do it right and keep doing it into the 21st century.

It is true for the immunization program and all the programs I
have mentioned, these are relatively modest amounts compared to
the money we have spent on the defense budget increases, the
money we are spending on the savings and loan problem. These are
chump change and amounts the Federal Government can well
afford if we organize our budget priorities right.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you.
Mr. Slattery, I want to start with you if you have some questions.
Mr. SLATTERY. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.
The question I have goes to the point the gentleman made about

the food stamps and the eligibility and the different eligibility re-
quirements versus non-elderly versus elderly.

Mr. GREENSTEIN. Once you are eligible for food stamps, that
doesn't determine how many benefits y'u get. The closer you are to
the income cutoff, the fewer benefits you get. Some people get as
little as $10 a month for food stamps.

To determine the level of the benefits, that is based on net
income, not gross income. In net income, one of the things that is
deducted are extremely high shelter costs. Those costs are the
amount by which your rent and utilities exceed 50 percent of your
income after other deductions.
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For example, there is a deduction for taxes if you work and
like that. The difference is that for the non-elderly and dis-

abled, there is a maximum amount that can be deducted for those
shelter costs. If your shelter costs exceed your income by a larger
amount, that is too bad. The additional amount isn't deducted. For
the elderly and the disabled, the full amount by which your shelter
costs exceed 50 percent of your income is deducted.

That was less of a problem 5, 8 years ago than it is now because
housing costs burdens for poor families have gone through the roof
over the past decade. The rental housing market, the low-rental
housing market is shrinking.

The result is that for considerable numbers of families for chil-
dren on the food stamp program, some of what they spend for rent
or utilities is assumed to be available to buy food when it isn't. As
a result, their food stamp benefit is lower than it would be if the
benefit structure were the same for them as it was for the elderly.

The chairman of the Budget Committee, who is the past chair-
man of the Nutrition Subcommittee of the House Agriculture Com-
mittee, is very concerned about this. I have had two or three con-
ferences with him just in the past couple of months. He has indi-
cated to some of us that he wants to look at this issue very careful-
ly when next year's farm bill comes up, at which point the food
stamp program is reauthorized.

Mr. SLATTERY. Some of you might be aware, last night one of the
networks, either NBC or ABC, ran a story about what Ewing Kauf-
man is doing in Kansas City to make available to his old high
school, Westport High School, college tuition for students attending
that school providing they stay in school, don't get pregnant, main-
tain a C average and be good citizens as he said.

In the last year since implementing that program tt e; a has been
a dramatic turn around in the dropout rate, drug abuse at the
school. Teen pregnancy is down. It has had a tremendous impact
on what is going on in that particular school.

Are we to the point in our history where we need to give some
thought to recognizing if young people in America are going to be
competitive and be able to realize their dreams and become what
they are capable of becoming in the next generation? Are we to the
point where we have to view college education as something that is
really required or education beyond high school is something that
is going to be necessary that the State is going to be paying for or
the Government is going to have to be paying for similar to what
we did two centuries ago with public education at the primary
level?

Should we try some projects, like in our Nation's Capital, saying
to the young kids who are disadvantaged in Washington, DC that if
you stay in school, if you don't use drugs, don't get pregnant, we
are going to give you the opportunity to go to college?

Has anyone given any thought to that sort of a concept and
doing it from the standpoint of helping those kids work out their
dream, helping then. dee visions of what the can become and giving
them the realistic expectation of being able to chase those dreams?
Are we at the point where we are ready for that?

Mr. Waiu.. I think our society is well on the way to the point
where a college degree is a prerequisite to family self-sufficiency.
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We at CDF have been looking at young families headed by persons
under the age of 30, and families headed by high school graduates
have had tremendous losses in family income. Only the families
headed by college graduates have held their own in terms of family
income over the last 15 years.

A college degree, even more than just college attendance for a
year or two, is increasinly a prerequisite. Programs like the Kauf-
man Program in Kansas City, which is needed like Gene Lang's
program in New York, are very effective. But we also have to
figure out how to improve the Federal grant and loan programs for
higher education so that all poor and near poor kids can go to col-
lege.

Dr. BRAZELTON. I think one of the points in Mr. Kaufman's inter-
vention which is so exciting, it was brought out by these guys, it is
not just providing the opportunity but it is giving the incentive and
the modeling that he gave them and the backup for why it is im-
portant.

I think just providing college education would be just like it is
right now in high schools. We are providing high school education
but we are the lowest on the totem pole in the world in terms of
what kind of education we are providing the kids. It goes back to
the question of how to provide incentive.

Mr. &Army. What you are saying i that the fact that this
human being comes out and says I was litre, I was one of you and
because of my efforts I succeeded and I made a lot of money and I
am coming back now to help you. If I could do it, you can do it.

There is a very important message in that example and you
think that if Government replaced that individual that very impor-
tant component of this would be lost.

Dr. BRAZELTON. I think it is a wonderful idea. I wish we could
provide that opportunity. Underlying that is a .uch more impor-
tant incentive that we have to provide kids enough feeling of
competence and role models to want to do it. I think this takes you
right back to the family.

Mrs. BOXER. If you will yield, I think the notion of the individual
and the one on one sets up something very special. We could also
do it with a community group. There are ways to make it a person-
al thing, it seems to me.

At this point I would like to call on Congressman Kennedy to
make whatever statements he has, to pose whatever questions he
has. At the next bell, we will close this hearing but because of you,
Congressman, this was your idea, National Children's Day is on the
map. We are very honored that you are here with us and we will
ask you to make your final statement Ind pose any questions that
you have.

Mr. KENNEDY. I appreciate your efforts Congresswoman Boxer in
terms of not only chairing this hearing but being a tremendous
supporter and more than anything a good pal and pulling this
event off.

I also want to thank Dr. Brazelton, in particular, for coming
down from my own district in Cambridge. Also, because I know it
was tough for him to get here today and I very much appreciate
your efforts, Dr. Brazelton.

t*
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I would also like to thank other members of the panel who are
members of the Children's Day Advisory Committee, Dr. Schiff,
Mr. Nazario, the PTA, the Children's Defense Fund and so inaay
people who have really put an effort into making this day an honor
for the people who are sitting right behind you and their counter-
parts around our country.

I was struck. I have two questions. Can you help me, Dr. Brazel-
ton, in answering the first one? We heard one of the young people
talk about all the problems of stress, the stress that they encoun-
ter, whether or not it has to do with drugs or sex or the pressure of
trying to keep up. I wonder if there is any advice that you can
give? One thing that always strikes me is that when the testimony
is really heartfelt and the lines are drawn so clearly, that people,
witnesses, tend to talk in very personal terms about the problems
that they are facing. I wonder if there is something we can learn as
a Congress in trying to help young people deal with the tremen-
dous stress and problems that they face? Do you have any thoughts
on how we might be able to address the concern in general?

Dr. BR.AZELTON. I think you can look at stress as a natural part
of life. You either learn from it or you go down with it. I would say
to Congress, just as I feel very strong about families, that young
people need a backup at a stress period, not a destructive approach.
I think we can do that. These guys have given us many, many
clues today. If we start looking at the survivors in our stressed cul-
ture I think we would find a lot of clues as to wnat Congress could
do to back them up.

Congress needs to do some symbolic things of saying we really
believe in people in our country, that would be a backup and at an
empowerment level. This is what I would like to see because these
guys are people who show you they have been empowered in some
way or another.

Mr. KENNEDY. They sure do. I have been very impressed. I want
to take a second to acknowledge the tremendous work Mr. Green-
stein has done and the testimony both rf:iu and the Children's De-
fense Fund indicate can really make a difference.

There are some prublems that come before the Congress where
people don't know what to do. These are problems where we do
know what to do. We just don't have the fortitude of a people to
spend the resources that are necessary.

I am so impressed with the witnesses this morning. But I also
think you have to recognize that, as Dr. Schiff has called for a na-
tional policy for children. Dr. Schiff, I don't know if you are aware
of it, but Claude Pepper had written legislation shortly before he
died, called the Young Americans Act which was modeled much
after his Older Americans Act. It is legislation I have since picked

We have had a number of hearings on this legislation. I wonder
if you are familiar with the act and if you think that it might ad-
dress some of your concerns in terms of the creation of a national
youth policy?

Dr. BRAZELTON. T am not familiar with that piece of legislation
but we are most anxious to work in that direction. We would be
happy to work with you and cther Members of Congress to that
end. We are going to be testifying before the Pepper Commission
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on October 24 on our national initiative which is going to try and
provide health care for all children and all pregnant women also.

Mr. KENNEDY. Thank you. I would like in conclusion to thank
each of the witnesses. There are so many more questions that I
have of you. I apologize for the very tight time schedules that we
are all on. I wanted to let you know that there are people up here
that care very deeply about the issues that you have talked about
and who are deeply appreciative that you spend your time and
energy talking about the problems of people who are voiceless in
our society whom the Nation turns its back on.

Our President stands up and says no new taxes, the Congress
won't appropriate the funds and as a result our children suffer. We
have to find the steel within our own characters to stand up to
those forces. You have given us great inspiration. Thank you, very
much.

Mrs. BOXER. Thank you, Congressman Kennedy. We have 8 min-
utes to get to vote. We want to tell you how much we appreciate
this. We spent a few hours here. We should spend more and we
will. T want to say to the young people: the issues you talk about
are really reflected in a document called the budget. That budget is
prepared every year. Every year the President sends down the
budget and the Congre s looks at it and makes some changes.

I would urge you to take your concernswe know what they are,
we know what the problems are, teenage pregnancy, dropouts, pre-
natal care, child immunizations, and you can translate it into very
important programs. Write to the President. He is working on that
document now. Tell him what you think. If you are not happy with
it, let us know and we will fix it all up.

'flank you for being here. Stay involved. Remember, anyone who
would like to make a statement for the record, we will be happy to
include it. Thank you for teaching us today. Thank you to all the
witnesses.

[The following additional material was submitted for the record:]
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OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. BARBARA BOXER, CHAIR, TASK FORCE ON
HUMAN RESOURCES

I as happy to welcome you all to this joint hearing of the

Budget Committee Task Force on Human Resources fltrid the Select

Committee on Children, Youth and Families, chaired by my friend and

distinguished colleague, George Miller.

As chairman of the Select Committee, Congressman Miller has

provided a voice for our society's most vulnerable members -- our

children. It has been my pleasure to serve on the Select Committee

and to work side-by-side with Congressman Miller in making

chi:dren's issues more visible.

"National Children's Day" has a festive ring, but our

observation of this day has its somber aspects. I know that some of

you are aware of the statistics:

--in 1986, nearly 70,,000 pregnant women received no prenatal

care;

--a 1986 survey of births in 36 hospitals found that 111 --

375,000 babies were born to mothers who used illegal drugs during

their pregnancies;

--nearly 40,000 infants die before their first birthday;

--the infant mortality rate in Washington, D.C. rose 50% in the

first half of 1989;
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- -over 20% of our children are poor;

- -a report released yesterday by the Select Committee shows that

over 45% of black children are poor; and

- -roughly 40% Of blacks and 50% of Hispanics fail to complete

high school.

These statistics will no doubt be dramatized by our witnesses.

As the Select Committee's report points out, the need for

comprehensive, remedial action has never been more urgent. The

President's plea to increase funding for the war on drugs by cutting

funding for programs such as juvenile justice illustrates the

problems we face in setting sensible priorities.

I am delighted to welcome cur child ambassadors from across the

country and a distinguished group of adult witnesses.

Our adult witnesses are:

--Steven Speach, District Superintendent of tne Oceansice

Unified School District in Oceanside, California;

-Dr. T. Berry Brazelton, nose inspirational r_estimcny tef-.:re

this Task Force in March helper inspire the Leadersnip e

for Children;

- -Ann Lynch, President !!'.e

Association;

--Tnumac 1:17.3rI-J, of '-e
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--Donald Schiff, President of the National Academy of

Pediatrics;

--Robert Greenstein, Executive Director of the Center on Budget

and Policy Priorities; and

--James Weill, Chief Counsel of the Children's Defense Fund

Our first witness is our distinguished friend and colleague,

Congressman Joe Kennedy, who deserves our praise for organizing

National Children's. Day and preparing a 70 State Report Card of

child indicators in order to help focus attention on the plight of.

America's children. Several of our adult witnesses were involved In

the formulation of this Report Card, and on behalf of this Budget

Task Force I commend them for their efforts.



OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. GEORGE MILLER, CHAIRMAN

SELECT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FAMILIES

Since 1983, the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and
Families has sought to give children and their families a voice
in Congress. Today, the Select Committee continues its tradition
by holding this hearing in observance of National Children's Day.
I am especially pleased that we have the opportunity to hold this
hearing jointly with the Human Resources Task Force of the Budget
Committee, chaired by my friend and colleague, Ms. Boxer, who is
also a valued and active member of the Select Committee.

Jt.l.t yesterday, the Select Committee released a new report
highlighting the current status of American children and their
families. Looking across the past decade, the report, "U.S.
Children and their Families: Current Conditions and Recent
Trends, 1989," finds that millions of American families have not
recovered from the recession of 1982-1983. Looking ahead to the
year 2000, the report finds disturbing evidence that the youngest
children in the nation are faring the worst. I expect that what
we learn today will confirm these findings.

More than any single finding in the report, it is the
combination of economic, social, and demographic trends
illustrated Jr1 the report which argues for new policy directions.
We can no longer get by with patchwork solutions. We need long-
term plans to reach specific goals. And we have to start early,
before children are in school. We have to start with healthy
pregnancies and give infants every opportunity to grow and thrive
and became well developed toddlers and preschoolers.

I introduced, along with most of m: Democratic colleagues on
the Select Committee, the "Child Investment and Security Act,"
which sets out a comprehensive, multi-year strategy to ensure
tnat every vulnerable young child reaches the school-house door
educationally ready, socially prepared, and as physically and
emotionally healthy as possibly Thinks to my colleagues on the
Budaet Committee, most of the o. oosals for expanding Head Start,
WIC, prenatal care, childhood immunization, and preschool for
children with disabilities were included in the Budget Resolution
for the coming fiscal year.

I applaud my colleagues for this action. But in the long-
run, a one year commitment won't do.

We need, at a minimum, a multi-year plan to guarantee that
every eligible young child has access to these proven cost-
effective prevention programs. And so that we don't abandon them
once they reach school, we need an additional plan to reach the
educational goals set by last week's historic Education Summit.
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For the most part, we already know what programs work. Now
we have to make the commitment. We have to provide the
opportunity for America's children to enjoy their childhood today
and to become productive, participating citizens in the 21st
century.

I would like to thank my colleague, Congressman Joe Kennedy,
for convening this week's activities in observance of National
Children's Day. He has compiled a report on states' progress on
behalf on children and brought together noted experts on child
poverty, many of whom will testify this morning. We appreciate
his efforts to ensure that children's issues receive the
attention they deserve in Congress.

And finally, let me welcome all the young people from around
the country who come as child ambassadors from 19 states to
celebrate National Children's afy and to express their concerns
about issues facing their generation. I look fcrward to hearing
from many of you today. IL addition, many of you have brought
statements to be included in clir official hearing record and we
welcome them.

cp
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NATIONAL
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CHILDREN'S DAY

Compiled by the
Honorable Joseph P. Kennedy 17
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NATIONAL CHILDREN'S DAY
ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS

David Blankenhorn, President
Institute for American Values

T. Berry Braze 1ton. M.D., President
National Center for Clinical Infant Programs

Robert Coles, M."1, Author. Clinician, Teacher
Harviz-1 University

Marian Wright Edelman, President
Children's Defense Fund

Dave Hackett, Executive Director
Youth Policy Institute

David Liederman, Executive Director
Child Welfare League of America

Mrs. Ann Lynch. President
The National PTA

Ann Murphy, Editor
Parents Magazine

Thomas Nazario. Author
In Defense of Children

Donald W. Schiff, M.D.. President
American Academy of Pediatrics

John Silber. Ph.D., President,
Boston University

Robert Sweeney. President
National Association of Children's Hospitals
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01j7.1C-, MASSA, L SC-%

Congress of the Ziniteb ftateS
*ouge of ittprttentatibeS

RI asbington, MC 20515
Dear Friend:

On October 8. 1989 our nation will IN: celebrating its first NatIwnal Children's
Day. For many children. this day will be marked by special family outings, events at
their state capitals. speeches made by politicians, a party with friends -- but for other
children. this day will slip by without nonce, without impact on their lives now or in
the future. This first National Children's Day Report Card has the lofty ambition of
trying to address the latter point -- how can we affect our children's lives now in order
that they may live better lives tomorrow. The purpose of the Report Card is to pro-
vide you with information so that you will understand changes that we must make
immediately not only in the way we spend our government dollars but in the way we
value and treat our children les., we sacrifice the future of our country.

Obviously. this Is no small task and in order to accomplish this I have formed
an Advisory Committee comprised of twelve well-respected people who are dedicated
to improving the lives of this very neglected segnent of our population. Together we
have put together a list of 25 indicators which tel a story about how America's kids
are doing now and what kind of future they will have tomorrow. These indicators will
by no stretch of the imagination the complete story. Taere is so much that we
don't know, simply because reliable state-by-state data is not available: data that
would tell us how many children are 'aome:ess, how many are illiterate, how many are
neglected and abused. how many are uninsured. Too many problems go unattended
because we don't have the data to support action. Clearly, this must change.

But there are dings we do know that tell us there is so much more needed to
be done to prevent teen pregnancy, high school drop-outs. infant mortality. childhood
diseases. child poverty -- yet we have not made any headway in reducing the incidence
of these terrible problems. In fact, many of these problems are only getting worse.
Twenty-Five perceat of children under the age of six are growing up in poverty, up to
50% of inner-city students drop out of high school. 40% of today's 14 year old girls
will become pregnant at least once before they reach the age of 20. We rank last
among industrialized countries in infant mortality and in our inner cities. our babies
are dying at rates exceeding those of third world countries.

The National Report Card examines the twenty-five indicators by lumping them
together in three main categories: health. education and welfare. Three different
Advisory Committee members have ...teen asked to comment on one of the three cate-
gories based on the information we have assimilated and on their own professional
and personal experiences. Although the data focuses on individual states. the evalu-
ations focus on the United States' performance as a whole. We as a people. have a
commitment to all of our children, not lust the children who live in the state in which
we reside. We cannot breathe a sigh of relief knowing that one particular state rates
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among the top ten in mapy of the categories. Our states are not separated by bounda-
ries that justify this kind of response -- one state's problems today can become an-
other states nightmare tomorrow. As a people. we must strive to make our nation
one in which every child can reach his or her full human potential.

I hope that after you have looked over this Information you will become con -
inced that children's 1351.1e3 must be a top priority in this nation. I hope you will
climb aboard and become an advocate for children in your communities and in our
country. One of the main reasons that children remain the most vulnerable and
neglected segment of our population is because there are not enough child advocates
who will vote with their feet. There are plenty of seats on this wagon whose destiny is
improve this the state of children in the U.S. I hope you will join us soon.

Sincerely.

22-518 0 - 89 - 3

Kri4/5
needy 3

DER OF' CONGRESS
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Dr. Berry Braze lton on
Child Health

The problems with health care to this country can hardly be addressed by statistics. As one
reviews the Indicators one could be lulled Into complacency by the Pact that our What mortality rate is
slowly but surely declining. Ow neonatal mortality and post-natal rate is slowly but surelydeclining. Our
ne matal wortality and post-natal mortality rates look respectable. The pockets of failure are predictable
- they coincide with the pockets of poverty and of uoirear_hable poor In Southern States. and In the ghettos
of our cities. In our country these pockets are unacceptable. Vaccine preventable diseasesare climbing,
AIDS cakes are heralding the breakdown in our societal values, low birthweight and teen births are
stationary or rising due to inadequate prenatal core - all of these are Indications of failure in outreach
to target populations in all of society. but particularly to these rttckete of poverty. More recently we have
been faced with an Invasion of an even more serious threat to Allure populations - the prec:pltous rase
In the number ofbabiae addicted at birth as many as 20% In Boston. 25% in Chicago. over 50% in hospitals
in Miami. indicates a major epidemic of failure in our disillusioned. depressed parentsto-be. These are
made up mainly of the poor whom we have never suocessfUlly reached. but (=renal scouting will show that
many are born to addicted middle class parents. Our society is revealing a failed value system. depression
in young adults which none of cur outreach systems are prepared to ram

Where does our present medical system stand as we rocs the future of children and young adults?
In my view, we need to address the issues of early detection. of prevention. and of new ways to oiler moral
and emotional support to families and children who represent the failures in our present system. These
are no longer claas.related so that we can blame them on poverty Inanition that accompanies
being poor and disillusioned. They represent all classes of children and young adults.

As our technology and research in optimizing physical care has improved. our ability torecognize
and treat emotional and cognitive failure in children and young adults as declined. as a society we do
not even support and reach out to new. young families at a time when their energies and optimism is high
abound a new baby. We are demonstrable the least family - and -child- oriented society in the world with
the possible iziception of South Attica. Bence. we MUM a major opportunity to enter the family system
at an optimistic time for supportive cooperation toward prevention of family breakdown and the
Inevitable emotional depression in Its children where nurturing needs ire not being addressed. In order
to nurture children. adults need nurturance. Our present deficit -model of medkasi care results in stressed
families turning away from the medical system. resorting to It for physical crises only.

These are not the major sources of failure for most families. Poverty. stress and depression are
more serious threats. and they are not reachable by a dlseaae.oriented medical approach.

What would I do to change our system?

I. Study and try to adapt the Canadian system - of a base rate of quality tare available to all.
supplemented by a private system for special consultation which =Wined medical personnel so
that they could be expected to be available In a one-toone relar.onship for stressed individuals.

2. Educate the public as to how to use and demand what they .seed from the medical system. t.e..
empower the participants with knowledge and expectations as well as an awareness of their
responsibility in a patient doctor relationship.

3. Educate medical personnel in how to maintain and utilize patient relationships and in the
importance of understanding cievelopmen cal Issues. In other words. change our present
approach to a preventative and supportive system - a positive model.
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4. Utilise multidisciplinary medical hems for supporting parents and children. M.D.' may not
be able to or all the wacimetanding and support which fernlike need.

S. Develop strength oriented approaches to outreach for target populations, poor. depressed and
arldienni persona In Reticular.

a. tinptisaise the values of early identification and early intervention. In our present system this
will demand a whole revision of medical training. Disease end Sallurewrientatioo is a band -aid
approach to the Winn in whist we ars annuli In our present nyeirns. The Nauru ethane addicted
babies - a higistaning symptom of Um breakdown of our present =Mid and moral systeme -
will cam this nation more than our present defense system. We must mien= what makes e
strong, healthy country.
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Dr. Donald Schiff on
Child Health

In the area of health. the report compares Incidence rates for infest mortality. neonatal mortality.
post-neonatal mortality. Infectious Mamas. pediatric ADDS and teen suicide. These it.dicators are
con:wend by public health ettarts to reflect the overall health status of children. According to the
report. the rates of mumps. palmate and teen suicide have Increased. While infant mortality. neonatal
and post-neonatal mortality have deaseasel slightly, they are attli unacceptably high. The Incidence of
AIDS in children has increased dramatically and will continue to do so.

What we would film to see in these data is seedy Improvement. What we see instead Is that the
rate of improvement In many categories has either remained atadooary or slowed. In many states. trends
in several categories are actually worsening. The reality is that eland health in America is not what it could
or should be. and too many children are suffering preventable health problems.

One of the reasons foe this is that children of today do not live in the same world as children of
a decade ago. Today's children are poorer. cos fifth live in poverty and 21 permit live In single parent
bousebolds. Today the lauding cause of deeds tbr children above one year of age is preventable injuries.
Reported eases of child abuse and neglect rose a drastic 23 percent In one :var. from 1988 to 1986. The
rates of preventable diseases. specificany measles. mumps. and pertussis. are all Increasing for children
under two Tsars old. partly because inany parent, cannot afford to immunize their children. The result
is only 40 percent of cluldren uncle: Our are adequately immunized. leaving thousands vulnerable to the
serious threat of infectious diseases Mitch could have life-long consequences.

While there n no single answer to solving these problems, there are several key steps that must
be taken. We must emphasize and increase support for preventive care while assuring quality care for
acute and chronic illnesses. We must also ensure that every child In this country cnn obtain the health
care services they need.

During the last decade. support for preventive programs. such as immunizations and the WIC
supplemental food program. have not kept pace will the growing need. For example. leas than half of
the 7.4 million women. infanta and children eligible for WIC are able to participate because of handing
limitations.

The American public and our elected leaders must realize that providing preventive care not only
makes good medical sense. It makes good economic sense. For eteciple. although the benefits of prenatal
care have been emphasized repeatedly. our nation will have spent 82 -5 billion to care for more than
330.000 low birth-weight babies born over the last decade to mothers who did not receive prenatal care.
This 52-5 billion would have fully =reunited 33 million children. provided 88.7 million food packages
through the WIC program. provided coroprebensive prenatal acre to 3.5 million women. or provided
comprehensive pediatric care to 4.5 million children. In our estimation. this is a clear case of short-
sighted. misplaced priorities.

Obviously, the benefits f pr Iventtve care are lost if children and pregnant women do not have
area to that care. Among the n imeraus barriers to the health care system, the most fuodscnental is the
absence of health Insrer:ice. Studies snow that children without health insurance are ill more often. go
to the doctor less often and have poorer health.
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Robert H. Sweeney on
Child Health

The report cord on the selected health indicators that was compiled for Children's Day makes it
quite dear that, after almost 50 years of whetstone gains. the health states of the nations children has
remained stable or begun todeeriorate In repent years. The data supporta our worst fears - the surgeon
General's 1990 Health Objectives for Children now appear to to virtually unobta irsble. a stark reminder
of the utmattelhceore health statue of too mangy of the nation's children.

Rates ibr Whet mortality. teen pregnancy. low birth weight. death by accidental injury. HIV
infection. and tam suicide are 11 indicators of this failure. Between 1982 and 1988. the rates each of
these Indicators for the Unites States as a whole. and fee wan, individual states. have shown little
Improvement. In some states they have worsened.

These Indicators suggest that the health =regrew alone is not capable ofoverconaing the variety
of Santee - societal. cultural. technological. economic, and polit cal - that have an Impact on children's
health stanza talcum:tic status is a primary determinant If access to care and subsequent health status.
One third ofall children born todaywill spend wens time living below the federal poverty line. If this tread
continues. one child in tour will be raised in poverty in the 1990e. and one child In three by the turn of
We century. The children in poverty are children of the working poor: they live in both urban and rural
areas of the country: they are homeless 'Andrea: they are disproportionately minority: and they are all
ages - from infaors to adolescents. This lose not speak well tbr their Waits care needs.

Poor children must overcome a *slasher of financial and structural harriers to receiving
appropriate medical care In a timely feelsion. Approximately 12 million children do not qualify for either
public MOM programa or private health insurance/ Health care services and providers are poorly
distributed in rural and inner city areas. Education programs on dimes prevention and health
promotion are Inadequate to meet the Deed . Alternathei type of care Including borne and community-
breed health care frequently are not accessible. When many children finally gain access to care. often
from children'a hospitals. they are s.citer than they should be. suffering from preventable dia-noes. which
with earlier access could have been created more easily and affordably In an ambulatory setting.

The financial barriers to health care for these children are becoming more evident. despite some
recent improvements In the Medicaid program. Increasingly, private employer -bared insurance is
becoming limited in both coverage and eligibility as well as more costly for the employee. Often.
dependent coverage is too expeneve for low-i.lcome Wadies to afford. or it Is cot Mitred at alt. Too
frequently. preexisting conditions and cataerophic heslth care expenses are not covered.

The Medicaid program. the federal health safety net for children, serves them poorly and
disparately among the states. According to a new NACHRI study that will be released in mkt-Octoixr.
1989, inadequate eligibility levels under Medicaid deny coverage to almost half of all poor children. In
addition. because the applications process Is too difncult to complete. many children who are eligible for
Medicaid do not receive the benefits to which they are entitled. Because of arbitrary restrictions on
covered services or services which are not covered at all. plus difficulties In finding providers who are
willing to accept Medicaid's inadequate payments. many children who are eligible do not have access to
the serviette they needs. Inadequate reimbursement results to providers who serve Medicaid children.
Including children's hospitals. Incurring large financial losses. This experience suggests that they will
have serious difficulty providing quality care in the nature. In 1987. an average of 25 cents of every dollar
of cost which childrui's hospitals spent on treating Medicaid children went unpaid by Medicaid. The
hospitals are forced to look elsewhere to recover these costs through charges to other payers. through
postponement of needed Improvements to iservices, or through diversion at endowments and charitable
OIL
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What can be done to ensure the health of our children? For many. securing children's access to
health care lean Issue ofcompassion. For the nation leaders. It thould make great economic sense.
Ensuring children's health care needs Is so Important to the future well-being of our elm:non:1y as Is their
adequate education. housing, and nutrition. First. there must be a concentrated eabrt within both the
public and private sectors to promote healthy behaviors and lifestyles by providing role models as well
as eulturialy-aensittve educational programs In the churches. schools and local organization.. Second.
we must challenge both our graduate medical education and health cue delivery systems to encourage
health practitioners to work in rural and Iniser-cay areas where the need Is the greatest. Third. and
perhaps most important. we must and a way Measure that all U.S. citizens. Indudlog our children. have
access to health care services by providing the resources required to make them available.

The debate over the need for a new national health care system la rapidly gearing up as the
business ommunity. confralhog hire costa Joins the health care community In =pressing frustratioa
with the Inadequacies of our current system. NACHRI believes that any reform of the health care system
must atm/then public programs to guarantee access to care ihr those least able to afford It. while not
encouraging& abaft away from private sector coverage. This Is not so much philosophic as It is pragmatic
rexgrialon that the annual thawed deficits preclude any other alum. Any reform of public programs
must be simea at correcOng restrictive efiebiiity requirements. difficult enrollment processes. limits on
essential agrarians. am .nadequale reimbursement levels. Reforms In the private sector must address
comprehensive benefits including preventive and prenatal care. home- and community -based care. and
catastrophic illnesses to addition to rehabilitation services. dependent coverage. and the Inclusion of
coverage of precasting cooditloos.

Cbadren's health care needs can only be met through enlightened social policy. The fain ilys
(liniment of Its responsibility to Its children must to supported through opportunities to east an
adequate wage and employment benefits, the availability of and acme to health care services. tax and
fiscal policies supportive of family needs. and direct provision of resources for families unable to meet
their own need.
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David Hackett on
Child Welfare

The majority of the poor in this country the sick. the illiterate, the homeless. thehungry share.
for the most pert, a single characteristic. They are children.

In fact, children are Me becoming the poorest segment of our population. In 1986 one-third of
children born Into young families lived in poverty. Families with children are nearly seven times more
likely to be poor than families without children. One in five children was without health care in 1986:
the United States ranks eighteenth in Infant mortality.

The poverty of our children is our nation's greatest shame. It is also our greatest challenge. It
is imperative that we act now to bring our children out of the despair of poverty and provide them with
viable opportunities for the future. Because. indeed. their future is the future of our very Elation.

It is through empowering youth to influence policy and tight for change that we can bring our
children out of poverty. We must provide young men and women who have a stake In and a commitmentto the future with feasible methods for understanding, changing and controlling policy issues.

Youth can be given the opportunity to share in responsible planning by implementing a three-
stage approach: through collection of information: discussion, debate and dissemination of proposed
solutions in a forum situation: and finallyu participation in neighborhood development azcl evitilizanon
programs.

The first step in influencing change is to gather information. Only then can one make informed
decisions on issues. High School and college students are particularly skilled at research and
information grthering. a primary focus of their classroom training. These skills. learned in the
classroom. could be applied outside, and students could eeamicie issues from all sides. Investigating the
scope of the problem. past and current policies and proposed solutions. By educating themselveson the
issues. young men and women could lay the foundation social change.

Once information has been collected, youth leaders could organize forumsand discussion on
proposed solutions to social problems. These could be either large panel forums or small group
discussions held on a community level and involving neighborhood activists. college and non-college
bound youth. Youth leaders could also disseminate pertinent information to the media and to nonprofit
agencies. In this way information could be focused and directed toward eventual action.
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David S. Liederman on
Child Welfare

The grim statistics on the plight of children In this country speak for themselves. The plight of
our nation's children is worse today than In 1970. We've seen an unprecedented Increase in drug and
alcohol abuse. Rates for high school drop-aura are higher. The homicide statistics are chilling. In 1988.
the last year for which we have reliable =decal data. !bur to five people under 18 were murdered per day.
Equally chilling, three to four people under lb were arrested for murder every day. Teenage suicide and
unemployment are up precipitously and childhood poverty now claims one of live children under six. a
proportion hairier than Mac. In seven other Industrial democracies. Including the United Kingdom and
West Germany. Yet. we have no unified national plan or policy for our children and youth.

The business community now realizes the dire straits in which our children find themselves and
It Is high time that the Federal Government began to provide leadership for public and private sector
partnerships at all levels to address the situation.

That Is why we are supporting H.R. 1492. the Young Americans Act. It is the only piece of Federal
levied= that places children. youth and their families on center stage before decision makers at the
Federal and State levels. It acknowledges what the business community already knows: if you want to
get somewhere. you've got to plan where you want to go and bow to get there. The Young Americana Act
use this common business sense by setting a course and establishing a plan of action for our nation's
children and youth.

H.R. 1492 was Inspired by another act of Congress which ham worked so well for an older
generation the Older Americus Act of 1965. The Older Americans has proven conclusively that when
Federal. State and local efforts are coordinate-a and pubi.'ciprivate cooperation encouraged. problems can
be solved. Government. In partnership with private daimon made a difference for the elderly In 1965
through the Older Americana Act We aced to do the we for children and youth in 1989. The 101st
Congress owes children and youth the setae commitment It has already successfully made to older adults.
who are also vulnerable became of their age-

The Child Welfare League Of America. a national 'association of 550 leading public and voluntary
agencies which help 2.3 million needy and troubled children. has been at the forefront of efforts to
Improve the plight of Children for over 70 yews. MLA's Children& Camp aign. a national network of child
advocates who take action In support of children has been working bard over the last three years to
mobilize the public which is calling for a greener Investment In children. And the public is responding.
The statistics. grim as they are. can be changed and the HMI of children improved. We must make
Investment in children the rule across America. We must begin now. our nation's future depends oti it.
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Ann Murphy on
Child Welfare

As disturbing and. In a few exceptional comes. as Inspiring as the data on child welfare are. these
statistics do not permit us to know much about the children and the families behind the numbers. At
PAII.ENTS Magazine. we receive hundreds of letters and phone calls from young parents - primarily
mothers - who are struggling with far less severe problems than those reflected In the child welfare
report. but who share one fundamental characteristic: Their children are the most Important thing in
their lives and they desperately need to 'mow that they are providing them with the best care possible.

In the 1950's. the definition of ideal child care - like the definition of the typical American family
- centered on a mother who stayed at home with the kids while Dad went off to work. With approximateiy
two-thirds of mothers in the work force. coupled with the large number of fernaieheaded households.
the -typical" American family has undergone a dramatic change since the days of "Ozzie and Harriet."
yet the United States government has no official policy on maternity leave or child care that reflects this
dramatic shift In the structure of the family.

On a purely practical level. this means that the typical working mother spends an unconscion-
able amount of time worrying about child care and often settling on second-rate help. If she is poor. she
has evert fewer options. Her children. if not cared for by a relative or friend. will wind up in an
overcrowded, understaffed. potentially harmful facility.

On a less tangible level. many parents today impedance the changes .n our society as a threat to
the values with which they were raised. The neighbors they recall from their childhood were probably
a lot like their jpsrents: today their own neighborhood is made up of all types of families with different
ideas about raising kids. And while their parents could be fairly certain that their approach to child
rearing matched that of the Joneses nett door. today's parents suffer from a loss of consensus about the
troubling problems they and their children face drugs. premarital sex. AIDS. crime.

In order for any child welfare program to be succesaful. It must address the isolation and need
for community that many parents experience. We must recognize that a pregnant woman needs help
from the minute she conceives. because regardless of her socioeconomic or educational states. she is
almost certainly going to feel insecure. apprehensive, even frightened. She needs the early prenatal care
and counseling crucial to havinga healthy baby. And once her child is born. she needs a support network
even more. When she goes beck to work. there should be a reliable. caring. quality child care program
in her neighborhood. And. most important. her ...had should grow up with a sense of belonging, not only
to his family. but to the community and scr:lety around

Until we are willing to recognize that the fundamental structure of the family has changed and
that the need for community-based support has grown. we will continue to shortchange young parents
and. as a result. potentially handicap the next generation. As long as we conatantly monitor the factors
that are eroding our families. we stand a chance to promise our children a brighter future. I applaud
your efforts to make every state accountable for the welfare of American children.
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Thomas Nazario on
Child Welfare

Figures and statistics me-out the plight of children. of course. never tell the real story. You
never see their feces You never near about the lives they lead and the figures Memeelves.almost
always scamp to blend together. When talking about child welters this is particularly true: on one
hand one wants to understand. yet on the other. one Just can't visualize the mumbers or come to
grips with the suffering of children. So we just toss It aside. This is something we no no longer
afford to do. Hence. In an effort to make better sense of these ngures.1 will paint a picture. Please by
to bear with me.

There are 64 million children (persons under 18 years of age) in America today Sr about 3.11
million new children are born in the United States each year. That means that about 10... A children
are born each day: or about 1000 every two hours and twenty minutes; or in about the time It takes a
person to see a movie or *web a Monday night football game. One thousand children are easy to
visualize. They might All up a good size school or auditorium. church hail. or congressionall heating
room. What would these 1000 children look like and what might we emect to happen to them over
the course of their childhood?

First. of these 1000 children about 11 or 12 will not survive their first year of life. They will
die as a result of our infant mortality rate which each year takes a little over 39.000 of America's
newborns. Them children are disproportionately Black. Hispanic. and Native American and are
more likely to be bore to a teenage mother or to mebers who are poor and have little or no access to
prenatal care. Many of these children could been been laved. Stooge!. of the surviving childre. 88
would have been born drugs and/Or alcohol. Often them ballet problems are very serious and will
stay with them their entire lives. Also 245 of the children will live in poverty over a substantial part
of their young lives. At any given time. almost one In four of all children UMW age six live in poverty
In America. For children who happen to be Black. their chances of living within a family whose
Income fails below the poverty line is 1 In 2. Additionally. the average amount of the time that Black
and minority children live to poverty is substantially longer than that of a comparable white child =-
perm:icing poverty. experiencing poverty.

The amount &Aka to Families with Dependent Children In any state is net designed to take
kids out of poverty and many Camillus who would otherwise be eligible for this belpdo not recieve IL
Children who live In poverty are more Wed), to suffix serious illness. abuse. neglect. pregnancy. and
drop out of school than children who are not poor. Also. because of the many ancillary problems
associated with poverty these children are More likely to spend at least some time In a Juvenile
detention center. About 20 of these random 1000 children are likely to be arrested agree time during
their upbringing and with homicide now being the second or third leading cause of death for children

erimen the ages of 1 and 18.2 to 3 of this sample of children will be killed over the course of their
upbringing. Moreover. Children who live In poverty are also lir more likely to be functionally illiter-
ate when theygriduate from high school: and nod themselves unemployed as they enter their late
teens. About 130 of 1000 children will bear this fate.

Finally of these 1000 children. almost 200 would be born to unwed mothers. 144 of whom
would be teenagers themselves. Of these young mothers. 72 will never complete high school. Also
even as teens who marry as a result of prepia0cy . studies show that these marriages are two to three
times more likely to end in a seperatloci or divorce than marriages watch are not pregnancy related.
About ooe.fourth end within five years. As to dime teens who don't marry. studies show that as a
group. single mothers and their children ae the segment of our society most likely to be poor. Sev-
enty-five percent of single mothers under the age of twenty Ave live below the poverty line. and among
mothers under the age of thirty who have not finished high school. 90 percent live In poverty.
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This. of course. Just scratches the aurface of some of the problems arenciated with children
and child welfare In America. Other areas of this report are Nu as significant. particularly those
Issue* that rotate tO health care For exempla. you might be surprised to learn that 50 out of 1000
children develop a mime drinidog problem over the course of their upbringinstbat 150 In every
1000 children will be abused or neglected over the course of any given year; that 165 out of every
1000 children have no regular source of medical we: and that manly 600 of the 1000 children will
take at least cam or more akgal drip bekars they leaves their childbeval.

Remember these numbers only reflect the percentage of children affected out of every 1000
thildre in Afftertali. There are 64 million children out there. That Is the picture we are facing and
that la the challenge for today.
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David Blankenhorn on
Child Education

The Idea of "ranking" the 50 states according to the criteria established - with the goal of
discovering how "weir or -poorly the various states are doing In relation to one another - lean idea that.
In my opinion, has serious flaws. The bottom line is that It Is difficult to capture. the relative priOrmance
levels of state and local governments by these twee of Instruments.

That said. here's what I think about the data you have gathered.

Standardized test scores seem to be either stagnant or declining. Graduation rates seem to be
increasing slightly. but they remain shockingly low. This tells me that we are doing a poor job of educetIng
our children.

Your other indicators - pupil/teacher ratios. per pupil emenditures, and teacher salaries - tell
me nothing about the quality of education.

To understand why. we only need to look at merit studies comparing Catholic schmis to public
schools. Catholic school students. as groups. outperibrto public school students by a country mile in
every category that social emendate can think of. Yet if we look at spending Issues. such aa per -pupil
expenditures and teacher salaries. the public schools are Car. far ahead of the Catholic schools.

What explains this paradox? It cannot be explained by saying that Catholic school students are
simply a different population -more affluent. for example. or leas likely to be from a dIscrionnated-tujainet
minority - since the studies I am citing hold these factors constant. It turns out. for example. that low-
income minority students from Catholic schools do far better than low-income minority students from
public schools.

I can only conclude - as have social scientism. such as James Coleman. who study this Issue -
that spending Is not the main Issue. What seems to matter is what might be called the social ecolojy

of the school and of the family. This concept refers to Woes such as:

Who Is more "to charge' of the school - students or adults?

Are students proud of the school?

Are students expected to achieve?

Are there clear standards of behsvior? Are those standards enforced?

Are parents involved In the school?

Where does the buck stop? Who Is finally accountable for the school - the principal or the
bureaucracy?

Do students take their cues - their sense of what to do - mostly from parents and Camay, or
mostly from each other and from outside Institution such as the media?

These Issues are less about spending than they are about social norms and what we expect of our
children. They sound hopelessly corny and old - fashioned. and they are very hard for statisticians to
measure and for educational bureaucracies to write reports about. But to me. at least. they are what
matters.
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Dr. Robert Coles
on Education

Our churls new adequate schools schools In whicts they learn hoer to reed and spelland write.
add 3 nd subtract: schools in which they learn astf-respect and acquire respect for others. Schools in
winch their minds grow. dude moral Ilia besonies 'troops: school* In which they cams to appreciate Mk
counters virtues sod achievements. but also the etruggimi and ectscrnplishments of others, the world
over. Our children also need a solid home Me - a lib In which they ciao eat good teat weer adequate
does.m. take lbe granted the shelter ofa home. a rootover their heeds. some that are sate and protective.
Children need. as well. a neighborhood that offers them Barney. that welcomes them: the pleasures that
go with friendships made. hobbles pursued. games played. Finally. our children need not only a sound
body (the medical care that Insures It) and a sound mind land the It molly nib that nourishes It). buta Ills
of the spirit - the values and Ideals which they can uphold. which they can belie v.. in, whichcan Inspire
then.
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Ann Lynch on
Child Education

The National PTA. an organization comprised ofover 6.6 -tats. teaciaers and other child
advocates is devoted to assuring that our children and our Inmates are at the top of the national. state
and community agendas. It la symbolic that the Select Committee co Children. Youth and Families and
the Budget Committee's Task Force on Human Resources should jointly be conducting a hearing oa
school improvement commemorating National Children's Week. This symbiosis between the people who
collect the data and provide in: bemoan: to authorizing =Manatees and the people who play the bills and
allocate the mecums is a critical policy link between planning and implementation. A National Report
Card on children will Amber raise America's awareness about our children, and ow spark our nation
to Anther action.

The National Report Card can build on dozens on corroborating reports and stalled= compiled
over the *pan orate last half-decade about the education. eatery. health. protection. and caring conditions
for children and youth. In rect. America needs to be reminded daily about bow it treats its young people.
which segmints of Its youth population need special help. and whether we as a nation are assuring basic
services for every child. Information about the (=ditto° of our children is as Important as the data
collected. for years. about the health of our economy. labor force. and housing market.

In our zeal to collect statistics and develop Iodic:norm. however. especially 17 determining the
health of our public education ystem. we must be sure that what we are measuring is not conflising and
is related to masnIngIbl school Improvements.

For Instance. the National PTA bas been critical of using standardized teats as the sole
measurement of academie quality. Proponents of tests assume that standardized scores are Caw
and vend aa well as the beet mains to manure achievement. Not sot That quality of our
educational system should not be reduced to a aeries of multiple-choice guanaco..

The National PTA urges caution when making state by ate -oniparisons. Many variables
contribute to the diversity of our educational institutions an is and among localities
including per capita Income. the number of special needs children. educational level of adult
populations. percent of student* in poverty. background variables of etudes:its who are disedven-
taged and cheracteristlai of ten:Ming workforce. Thew factors must he weighed Into whatever
indicators are developed.

'The National PTA believes the data collected must make sense and help lewd the way to better
schools. In an attempt to Improve education. state decision makers should not flounder in a sea
of unrelated data. For Instance. If a state Is ranked 15th In pupil-teacher ration. 30th In high
school gradual= rates and 40th In 3AT scores. what must day do to Improve? What indicators
make a difference In Improving schools? What must a state do to become number one?

But let us not permit America's preoccupation with numbers and data to divert us from the main
task: meaningful commitment as a nation in guaranteeing universal quality education for all of our
children. Thus far. the 1111brill00212 about ealucetion effectiveness has not concentrated on Indicators of
quellty - but rather. Indicators of quantity. Generally. emellence has come to mean more or lees of
stenethimp more graduation requirements. more math. more homework. more teats. longer school days
- without an understanding about how these initiates make a difference In the quality of services. A
National Report Card can move us Into the second phase of educational reform which must Oxus on
quality as well as the quantity Indicators. The National PTA believes that quality Indicators are hosed on
the following!

79



75

1. A nation with political leadership at all levels to improve schools. and with the courage
to make choicer for a child and youth constituency that does not vote. For certain. a
society that ban the will to send a person to the moon. built thousands of milesof Interstate
highways and bad out savings and loans Institutions can certainly ball out our schools
and children as well:

2. A federal government that Joins the local and state education agencies in being a full
partner in education! reform. Fully &indict such programs as Head Start. Chapter 1.
Mutation for ail Handicapped Children. and providing Incentives to encourage skilled
professionals into teaching is a critical role:

3. A comprehensive parent involvement program In every school including opportunities
for parent to become Involved in deeision-maiting. parenting skills. volunteerism and
home-school programs. The one major factor in school improvement Is parental support
of their children and schools:

4. An equal educational opportunity for every child no matter sphere their place or
residence or what their parent's income. vast resource inequitka are creating a two tier
system of schools based on community and parental wealth.

5. Preschool opportunities for children who need early intervention dcperiences. We
must assure that each child who enters kindergarten starts the academicrace at the same
place. The National PTA supports H.R. 3.

6. A comprehensive school program that recognizes the need of the whole child and
provides counselling. health. and nutrition services coordinating the various community
agencies. We must stop the turf bickering between agencies thatserve out youth. and start
developing cooperatives.

7. A principal who Is an instructlooal leader and teachers who are caring, competent, and
committed. We must also develop strategies to attract more minority teed:sera who are
proficient in math and science.

It Is appropriate to commemorate future National Children Weeksby taking& pulse of our efforts
through a National Report Card. Let's begin the work. Simply stated. the struggle for quality education
will ultimately be won or loot in the thousands of classrooms somas the ootnatry. If indlcstors are to
inform Reboot improvement, they must reflect those "Inuingibler that are bard to measure. but more
accurately reflect school quality than SAT a:WM Lastly, educational reform is but one factor of what
should be a major plan to better the live, of our children. Children will not succeed In school if they do
not have a home or If they are hungry or have no scow to health care. We have a lot of work to do: if
not now, when?
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John Silber on
Child Education

" In fibs Report Cared data. I Ibund that among the various measures aim:el:matures on education
only the pupil - teacher ratio shows no significant matistical relationship with test pet-Vince= or gradu-
ation rates. The massive amount of money being spent per pupil In cities like Boston. New York. and
Chicago Is not achieving result. because It la not being spent in ways that work.

The United States ought to have the nest successful system of public education In the world. Its
people m,re deeply about their children and are =evinced of the imprIetance of education to then-
develoexoent. Moreover. the cotnury's wealth Is sufilcient to support a first-rate program of broadly
distributed public education. And we spend fir more per pupil than
any other country In the world.

but in tact public education is In disarray. At least 30 million Americans are emotionally Illiterate.
some of them even Wise having earned college deers's'.

This problem needs to be addressed comprehensively and with an understanding that loci easing
the eepentaure on conceptually flawed programs cannot Improve Matters and may make them worse.
If* dollar Is being spent on the wrong thing, we will be lucky if spending two dollars on the same wrong
dung date not Wrens our problems.

Education begins Wins 'Earth. If a carrying mother is malnourished or undernourished or
engages in substance abuse, her child may well be horn retarded. This retardation. which will have
unthrtunate consequences for the child and its society. la entirely preventable. We mead a comprehensive
program of nutritdoal education and supplement to ensure that every Amurion is born with a fully
lianctioning Wain.

But children are at risk not only in diessiath but In the years of ilik. Among the millions of families
In the underclass. the family la essentially extinct repLeased by a kind of perverse daycare In whicb
children bear children and then. after a Cashion. raise them. If we are to prevent the permanent
establishment of the underclass. an outcome which would mock the principles on which the nation
stands. we must establish a national system daycare that will Ina single generation rescue millions of
children fecal the underclass. along with programs to educate teenager mothers to take their place as
productive citizens.

But there is lithe point in rescuing the children of the underclass if they are to be turned over to
failed public schools. The dimmer area that is public education in the United States is the more
Intolerable because we once had highly efliective and comprehensive system that educated fully even in
the backwoods. To restore that system. we must break the monopoly on teacher certification held by
Scheele of education. open the teaching profession up to mothers who hove raised their families and to
retired professiooaLs in the sciences and other professional areas.

We need. moreover. the implementation of national uniform maminations like the British "A-
lever and "0-lever examinations. which allow educational institutions and *Cadent* measure themselves
accurately and only with such a standard can our teachers and schools be accountable to students and
parents. When parents see that their children are doing me curably worse than the national norms they
will have strong evidence on which to demand better performance trom their schools.
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We need a conference of the governors and commissioners of education of the 50 states to discus*
how state governments and the federal govertuner can work together to recruit to the teaching profession
the individuals who are most qualifIri to teach. The present situation. la which all too often the state
governments and the wheels of education are gatekeepers who admit the least qualified and drive away
the bast qualified. Is a ecandal which Justifies dramatic action by the federal government_

In Metier education. the federal govetnnient's program of student financial aid Is chaotically
organized. The Pell Omni provide funds to students who satisfy the means test, but these Rinds will pay
a substantial portion Of the fees Only at state and proprietary school.. The program therefbre discourages
these students from seeking admission to independent college.. even when they, and the society- would
be benetitted by study at an Independent institution. what Is more. this program does nothing for middle
classes students. All that Is oared to the middle dam are the various federal loan prograzna, which
encourage 1f$ -year olds to take on a massive burden of debt that encourages equally massive default and
*catenates bar.icruptcy. The cost of defaulted educational loans has in recent years oaceer that of
armed robbery. The mesas testa generate an =pennies and ineffective buf eaucracy that has been unable
to prevent fraudulent applications and awards. The federal government has estimated that 35% of
parental financial statements contain some element of fraud.

The federal government ought to replace its current ill-coordinated and ineffective financial aid
programs with a comprehensive tuition e- ownient fUnd from which students can secure advances to pay
their tuition charges and Into winch to will later make repayments through payroll withholding at a race
conditioned on their after college income. The Income-Contingent Loan program (ICI.) initiated under
the last administration superficially takes that approach. but its technical flaws make It even lees
satisfactory that casting loan programs. Although the program was designed to make borrowing lore
onerous. graduates with low Incomes and bigh debts can find tbeauleives with repayment schedules more
devastating that those Imposed by conventional loans.

A properly administered educational blast fluid would. within less that 20 years. become entirely
self-supporting and end any need for federal student financial aid. It would be a supreme emunple of
applying the nvestment approach to federal social programa. Like a day care initiate for the underclass.
this program would have major startup cons. Depending on precise designs. a fully-funded program
would cost between 810 and $15 billion annual; y. but only for about 15 years. after Mitch it would require
no further appropriation. But like the day care program.. natioc tuition endowment would provide
a massive payback - In this case. one specified by actuarial tattle.. d guaranteed by the IRS. By 2000,
every qualified American would be able to nuance his or her higher education without federal funding.
Such a program would be more effective In guaranteeing equal educational opportunity than any
proposed by the Dernocmts. and require. more responsibility on the part of the recipient that any
proposed by the &MUMMA&

We need to understand that the problems laying our schools waste are In large pert conceptual.
that prevention is always better than remedistIon and often works when remedlation will not. Problems
4bould be addressed as early as possible. Par example. If we prevent gratuitous retardation through
nutrition in the nine months beibre birth. we will not have to deal with it through welfare of the criminal
justice system over most of a lifetime.

And some problems that are not strictly educational have profound effect on education. Drugs
are an maniple of this Public policy may in time reduce the drug problem to manageable problems but
some of the pressures on education are not amenable to public policy. Television. a profoundly education
force sometimes for good. but meetly for the bad - is a case In point. Television's evangelization of the
young into a culture of gratuitous violence and Instant gratification can be ended. If at all. only when
parents begin boycotting the sponsors of objectionable programs.

To a large ettent a society Is what its education la. That Is why the Improvement of American
education is a matter of supreme Importance.
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State-By-State
Reports
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CHILD INDICATORS

1. Infant Mortality Rate: refers to the number of infants who die In their first year
of life per 1000 live births. Years =aro. d are 1982 and 1986. SOURCE: The
Health of America's Children: Maternal m d Child Health Data Book. The Children's
Defense Fund, Washington, D.C., 1989.

2. Neonatal Mortality Rate: refers to the number of babies who die in their first
28 days of life per 1000 live births. Years examined are 1980 and 1986. SOURCE:
The National Center for Health Statistics, Hyattsville. Maryland.

3. Post-Neonatal Mortality Rate refers to the number of babies who di between
28 days, and their first year of life per 1000 live births. Years examined are 1980 and
1986. SOURCE: The National Center for Health Statistics. Hyattsville. Maryland.

4. Vaaine Preventable Diseases: refers to the number of reported cases of
,..iseases for children aged 0-19 per 100,000 children of the same age group. Years
used are 1980 and 1987. SOURCE: Centers for Disease Control. Atlanta. Georgia.
Population data from the Bureau of the Census. Washington. D.C.

a. Measles
b. Mumps
c. Pertusais (Whooping Lough)

5. AIDS Cases: refers to the cumulative total numbers of reported AIDS cases
through July 1989 for children less than 13 years of age. SOURCE: HIV/AIDS
Surveillance Report. August 1989, Centers for Disease Control. Atlanta. Georgia.

6. Teenage Suidde Rate: refers to the number of reported suicides for children
aged 10-19 per 100,000 children of the same age gro' p. Year.. used are 1983 and
1986. SOURCE: The National Center for Health Statistics. Hyattsville. Maryland.
Population data from the Bureau of the Census. Washington. D.C.

7. Low Btrthwelett Infants Born to Teens: refers to the percentage of infants
born to teens that weigh less than 2500 grams. Years used are 1984 and 1986.
SOURCE: The Health of America's Children: Maternal and Child Health Data Book.
The Chileren's Defense Fund. Washington. D.C.. 1989 and 1987.

8. Teen BLitt Rate: refers to the pei centage of all births to mothers under age
twenty. Years used are 1984 and 1986. SOURCE: The Health of America's Children:
Maternal and Child Health Data Book. The Children's Defense Fund. Washington.
D.C., 1989 and 1987.

9. AU Low Birthweight Infanta: refers to the percentage of all infant, born that
weigh less than 2500 grams. Years used are 1982 and 1986. SOURCE: The Health
of America's Children: Maternal and Child Health Data Book. The Children's Defense
Fund. Washington. D.C.. 1989.
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10. Infanta Barn with Late or No Prenatal Cart: refers to the percentage of infants
born to mothers who received prenatal care in their third trimester or none at all.
Years Used are 1983 and 1987. SOURCE: 1983 data: The Health of America's
Children: Maternal and Child Health Data Book. The Children's Defense Fund,
Washington. D.C.. 1989. 1987 data The National Center for Health Statistics.
Hyattsville, Maryland.

11. Injury Death Rate: refers to the numbers of deaths for 23 causes of childhood
injuries for children ages 0-14 per 100.000 children of the same age. Years used are
1980-1985 average. SOURCE: Childhood Injury CiateBy-State Mortality Facts.
The Johns Hopkins Injury Prevention Center. The Johns Hopkins University School
of Public Health. Baltimore. Maryland, January 1989.

12. Use of Nutrition Programs: refers to the percentage of the financially eligible
population that is actually served by the Special Supplemental Food Program for
Women. Infants and Children. Years used are 1986 and 1988. SOURCE: The Health
of America's Children: Maternal and Child Health Data Book, The Children's Defense
Fund. Washington, D.C.. 1989 and 1987.

13. Children in Poverty: refers to the percentage of children under 18 who live in
families oicomes below the federal poverty level. Years used are 1979 and 1983-
1987 average. SOURCE: 1979 data: Children in Poverty. Committee on Ways and
Means, U.S. House of Representatives. May 22. 1985. Coninur.ee Print 1983-87
average: A Vision for America's Future: An Agenda for the 1990's. The Children's
Defense Fund. Washington. D.C.. 1989.

14. Public Assistmce Payments: refers to the LOWISMUM hid to Familien with
Dependent Children provided In each state as a percentage of the federal poverty
level Years used 1980 and 1988. SOURCE: Congressional Research Service. The
Library of Congress. Report for Congress. Aid to Families with Dependent Children
(AFDC): Need Standards, Payment Standards and Maximum Benefits for Families
with No Countable Income. Washington. D.C., September 7. 1988.

15. Unemployed Youth: refers to the annual unemployment rate of the civilian
non-Institutional population. for youths aged 16-19 who are in the labor force either
employed or looking for work. Years used are 1979 and 1988. SOURCE: U.S.
Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Washington. D.C.

16. Juvenile Custody Rate: refers to the number of juveniles in public facilities per
100.000 children 10 year, and up to the statutorily defined maximum age of juvenile
court jurisdiction in each state. Years used :re 1985 and 1987. SOURCE: U.S.
Department of Justice. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention.
Washington. D.C.
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17. Children Homicide Rate: refers to the number of children aged 0-19 whose
deaths are due to homicide and legal intervention per 100.000 children of the ranee
age. Years used are 1983 and 1986. SOURCE: The Nation, Center for Health
Statistics. Hyattsville. Maryisnd. Population data from the Bureau of the Census,
Washington. D.C.

18. Out of Wedlock Births: percent of infanta born out-of-wedlock. Year used is
1986. SOURCE: A Vision for America's Future: An Agenda for the 1990's. The
Children's Defense Fund. Washington. D.C.. 1989.

19. Pe reent of Children, in Female-ileaded FaillibM: refers to the percent of
children under age 18 who live in hcasseholds headed by women with no husband
present. Years used are 1970 and 1980. SOURCE: Congressional Research Service.

20. H1 School Graduation Rate: refers to the percentage of students that
graduate from public high school (adjusted for migration and unclassified students).
Years used are 1982 and 1987. SOURCE: U.S. Department of Education.
Washington. D.C.

21. Pupdaeacher Ratio: refers to the number of pupils for every one teacher in
public schools. Years used are 1982 and 1988. SOURCE: U.S. Department of
Education. Washington. D.C.

22. Correa Dollar Expediture per Pupil: refers in the amount of money spent on
each pupil in public schools. Years used are 1982 and 1987. SOURCE: U.S.
Department of Education. Washington. D.C.

23. Pupil Expenditure (as a % of Income per Capita): refers to the amount of
money spent on each pupil in public schools in each state divided by the average
income per capita of that state. Years used are 1982 and 1987. SOURCE: U.S.
Department of Education. Washington. D.C.

24. Average ?coacher Salaries: refers to the average annual salaries of all public
school teachers. Years used are 1987 and 1988. SOURCE: U.S. Department of
Education. Washington. D.C.

25. ACT Scares: refers to the average score received on the American College
Testing Program (exam taken in 28 states). Years used are 1982 and 1988.
SOURCE: U.S. Department of Education. Washington. D.C.

26. SAT Scores: refers to the average score received on the Scholastic Aptitude
Test (exam taken in 22 states). Years used are 1987. and 1988. SOURCE: U.S.
Department of Education. Washington. D.C.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF KRISTIE JOY DRURY

Hello, Members of Congress, my name is Kristie Drury.
I represent Oklahoma. I live in Tulsa. I'm 11 years old
and in the 6th grade at Danvers Elementary. Ever since
Kindergarten I've been mainstreamed in school and I think
that's very important because I get the chance to do most
everything everlone else gets to do.

I' active in Girl Scouts and started band this year.
It's hard to play the flute but my Mom says "Never give up
Kristie, you can do anything you want," and I believe her.
I like to ride horses at a therapeutic riding center at
Broken Arrow, O. I also would like to play tennis. In
July the Spina Sifide Association had their yearly
conference and they hrwed us how to play tennis. It was
fun.

That's just the stuff I can do. There's things I can't
do and I would like to see some changes made. I think we
need more adaptive P.E. so we can have as much fun an the
next guy. I also think we need more curb cuts. Whenever I
go someplace with my Mom and Dad, i.e always have to lift my
cart to get up to the sidewalk.

I think we need more education for teachers about our
disabilities and special needs. One of the most important
reasons I've been able to be mainstreamed is because my
school has a full-time nurse. I think that's important
because most schools don't have a nurse to help kids like me
with their special need.

In a way it's like AIDS, nobody knows enough about our
disabilities to do anything about it. But we're going to
show them what we're made of. After all, we are part of the
next generation, the senators, representatives, presidents.
You've got to make the laws better so we can live better
lives and help other people understand that we're not really
any different than they are.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF FELICIA DIXON

I am Felicia Dixon, a sixteen year-old single mother. Presently, I am an eleventh

grade student in the Hazlehurst High School My family and I have lived in Hazlehurst,

Mississippi-a small, rural towntor alt of my life.

I have a six month old daughter, Denetriotta, who we call Ne-Ne It was difficult and

embarrassing when I first discovered that I was pregnant. My parents were upset and

angry. I was very lucey because my family has given me and my baby support, love and a

nice home. I am very thankful that my mother takes care of my baby while I go to school

However, even with my family's help it is confusing being a se)gle. young, inexperienced

mother, It is also difficult being dependent upon your parents and not being able to provide

for your baby I would like very much to have a job, but no one wants to hire r ,o because

I am too young and do not have any job skills

I am also fortunate in that my school provides a Teen Parenting class and Daycare

for teen parents children. This will be helpful in learning child development and how to be

a good parent

There need to be more teen parenting classes and Daycare services for babies of

teen mothers. Mary teen mothers do not have Daycare at school and they do not have

anyone to keep their babies so they drop out of school Schools and teachers need to be

more kind and helpful with teen mothers It is very hard to slay in school and study when

you have a baby to take care of and you do not have a good family Mc

Often, they do not have transportation to schcol or daycare Transportation is often a

big problem for the teen mothers In my area some mothers must tiavei twenty live miles

to school or to the Health Department
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Health care is another problem for the teen parent. Teen parr, its cttcri do not have

the money to pay for services. The Health Department is often crowded and it takes

several days to get an appointment. For many young people. leaving school to gc to the

Health Department is difficult and aredarrassing A school-based health program could serve

teen parents and their children anJ also provide contraceptives for preventing teen

pregnancies. Many young girls have abortions becauSe they think that they are too young

to have a baby. I, personally, do not think that abortion is the answer. If the young girl

does not want the baby, she should give the baby up for ar..option Counseling serv,..:es to

the pregnant teenager wouii help them in making good d.cisions

Teens have many problems with contraceptives. Teens do not think that they will get

pregnant anu often do not use contraceptives. Schools should teach sex education before

girls get pregnant and encourage both boys and girls to use contraceptives.

Many teen mothers live in terrible situations where there is prostitution and drug

abuse. Some mothers and their babies do not have a place to live and others are living in

homes where they are abused Communities need to provide she'tcred homes for teen

mothers who do not have families to help take care of them These mothers need a place

to live and raise healthy babies.

One of my biggest problems e.-id one that faces most teen parents is employment

Teens need part-time jobs while they are in school or job training programs so that they

can get for working. Teens want to be independent and support their babies but they

do not have the job opportunities or job skills.

I have written mostly about teen mothers, yet teen mother's babies have fathers

These fathers need to provide child support for their babies. If they do not have jobs, they

need job training and employment It the fathers refuse to support their children, laws
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requiring cl'.!.d support need to be ,ntorced more than they are at present.

I am thankful and blessed for my family and healthy baby Having a family to support

and care for you when you have a baby, is most important wrier; you are young ano single

Many young mothers and their babies are not so fortunate to have a family to help them

and they need many seNices In my opinion, it is very important that all teen motner have

day care, transportation, good health care, education, job ...aininq and skills Providing

these services will help to make better families better communities and a better America

1.17
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PREPARED STATEMENT ')f LEE OAKMAN

Chairpersons, Committee Members, Senators, and Representatives:

Thank you for this opportunity to speak with you on

behalf of the Youth in Minnesota.

Today we have six youth, representing the State of Min-

nesota. We are no way different from the other people our age

except we have been given the opportunity to shine through our

involvement in various volunteer and leadership organizations.

These organizations are sponsored by our communities, churches,

state, and/or federal government.

The wants of today's youth might best be indicated by

a Report of Work Group Discussions entitled, What Do Minnesota

Youth Want and Need? This report, conducted by the Minnesota

Department of Education, lists a few of the major needs of

Minnesota students.

Weneed to have visions of what might be possible

for us to be and to do.

-- We need to participate as citizens, as members of

a household, as workers, and as responsible members

of society.

-- We want to be able to have options in the way we

learn and meet our special needs.

-- We want to gain experiences as decision-makers.
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Many of these needs and wants can be met through involve-

ment in various organizations such as Fresh Force. This organi-

zation in Minnesota invites youth to develop and participate in

community betterment projects. Some of Fresh Force's activities

include tutoring, helping handicapped children play and learn,

and monitoring public parks.

Youth It lership is another area in which young people

can excel. When given the opportunity and trust, youth can per-

form well above what is expected of them. The Future Homemakers

of America organization, also being called Future Leaders of

America on some local levels, promotes teens to take action for

recognition. This organization, with which I am involved, en-

courages students to speak publicly with other youth about prob-

lems affecting them in today's society. Some of these presenta-

tions have been on the following topics: stLess, self-esteem,

substance abuse, teen pregnancy, teen suicide, and wisdom accept-

ance of the elderly.

Kids Incorporated is ar. organization which focuses on

the need in the rural community for special education se/vices

for the learning disabled. One of Kids Incorporated's programs

is Camp Buckskin, which provides a relaxed learning environment

for emotional and learning disabled youth.

Cultural awareness is also an area in which we need to

expand. This program promotes greater understanding of attitudes

and values of other individuals in our global society.
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Active involvement in crime prevention is another form

of community service. Various organizational and leadership

skills must be incorporated for involvement in this activity.

Through programs like these in Minnesota, youth have been

developing conmunication, leadership and organizational

and self-esceew, all of which will be essential for our future.

We need to continue and inci'ase funding for vocational and

volunteer organizations. This funding is to support their pur-

pose and adequately compensate qualified leaders.

We most ensuve that today's youth continue to take an

active part in our future. Young people have much to offer in

areas such as the arms, politics, athletics, music, or thought.

Today's young people are not necessarily the problem; they are

the solution:
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF RONALD MENARD

My name is Ronald Menard and I am a Senior at Cathedral
High School in Boston, MA. I am one of over 9,000 peer leaders
who are part of Governor Dukakis' Massachusetts Peer Leadership
Network.

I want to speak with you today about what it is like to
live in and to go to school in an inner city neighborhood that
is plagued with violence and more importantly what we as peer
leaders are doing to turn this around and prevent violence from
happening.

Homicide is the second leading cause of de. for
adclescents. Too often the lives of teenagers wasted over
incidents most of us consider trivial-- an :1su1t, a rumor, e
long stare. For many young people, saving face is
all-important. They know of only one way to resolve their
anger, and that is by striking out, often with serious
consequences. The havdest fact to consider about adolescent
violence is that the victims are not strangers or even
enemies. They are acquaintances, buddies, and best friends.

At Cathedral High School in Boston and like many of the
over 200 schools with peer programs in Massachusetts, all
students take a course in Adolescent Violence prevention. The
Violence Prevention Program is designed to:

o talk about anger as a normal emotion

o alert students to the risks of being either a victim or
perpetrator of violence

o discuss the potential gains and losses involved in
fighting

For example, students may fight to save face. However,
students also recognize that fighting can lead to school
expulsion, arrest, jail time or getting hurt themselves.

o the program offers positive ways to handle anger and
frustration by teaching interpersonal and coping skills.

As a peer leader, I have asked younger kids the question,
-what do you think of when I say the word VIOLENCE?` The
answer is always a description of our society. Rambo, Clint
Eastwood, Miami Vice, cartoons, street crime, war, apartheid,
child abuse, drugs. This is what surrounds us.
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Violence prevention education works. I have noticed a big
change in my school and my neighborhood since our violence
prevention ?rogram began. Before the program there were fights
at the sulway station ever', afternoon. Now fights are a
rarity. This is because fellow peer leaders took a chance and
acted as positive role models showing that there are better
ways to deal with anger than to fight with one another. People
lose friends by fighting.

The answer does not lie in more police or more prisons.
The answer lies in education, like the program at our school,
in better opportunities for education in general, in more
programs for kids who live in the city and need places to go
after school and people to provide positive, role-models for
them.

Kids need to feel good about themselves and to have a
vision of a prosperous future in order to make good choices.
We need skills and role models. We need a chance and I would
ask you to give us that chance by taking a hard look at society
as it exists and to stop blaming kids for making poor choices
without offering them opportunities to learn better ways to
take care of themselves such as peer leadership.

In order to continue these programs we need continued
funding. Congress has made a commitment to us young people
with the Drug Free School Act. And Bush has commited a 120
increase for every student for prevention education but we need
more. Prevention education should be considered a priority in
this country and to do it right it is going to take more than
120.

Thank you for your time.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MARIE VOLLSTF.DT

On June 4, 1987, a young girl walked into the
police station, determined to do everything possible
to keep her abusive tvaily from sabotaging her life.
It is a step no one vents to think about, yet so many
must for survival.

Just like many children all over the world, I took one big step

towards life. After making the police reports against my father and

brothers for sexual abuse, I was placed in the cars of Children's

Services Division (C.S.D.). C.S.D. provided me with substitute

care, which meant I moved in with a family completely opposite of

what I had kncwn for fourteen years.

For all I knew these people I moved in with could be exactly

like my own family. My trust was a gift bestowed upon no one. In

the foster home I felt as though I was an alien only visiting this

planet. I was used to pain and abuse, not a family which cared

enough to take me into their home.

As I went through the court system testifying against my

family, I moved to another foster home that could meet my needs of

physical protection. A pattern of moving from home to home began to

take place.

I have now been in foster care for two-and-half years. There

are many important issues involved with foster care which I have had

to deal with. I have started a support group for foster children,

and I as president. Through this I have counseled many kids in

foster cars, as well as those in natural homes, expanding my own

knowledge and understanding.
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The first experience I had from ,D, was moving from .roster

home to foster home. When I left ay I felt abandoned and

unwanted. I had a hard time trusting people even under favorable

conditions, but when you are moving around constantly, it is too

such to ask. I, like most, decided I was not going to get hurt

anymore. Once was enough. I became a fake person again, with a

mask to hide any feelings of pain.

As we go out to face the world for the first time, with hope as

a "real" person, we realize, harshly, we are no longer considered

"normal". Society looks at foster children, without their "real"

family, standing outside - alone. They decide that there most have

been something wrong with us, which caused our parents to reject us.

Society pictures us as the dirty children that steal and run rampant

throughout the city. go one seems to realize that all children

start out as babies, and babies can take only so such pain and

neglect, bafore they close themselves off from the world of pain

forever. Through the elms of many foster children the world is full

of pain, with love enough only for "normal" children. Much of the

time there is an overwhelming thought of worthlessness that keeps

you striving for the love yol're not sure exists for you. Society

can offer pity such easier than acceptance.

All of us need a stable environment. Foster Children need this

even more because more than most, we must be in control to protect

ourselves from being hurt. Starting out with a shaky foundation

gives you little hope when you begin to rebuild your shattered life

anew.



I have yet to meet a child in .ex care who can say, "I'm

o.k." Neglected by their biological imilies and labeled by society

as second-class citizens - failures, the situation takes its toll

on their self - esteem. roster children begin viewing themselves as

bad, unwanted, and alone. Our dreams and aspirations drop because we

begin to see ourselves as failures. The children start becoming

what society zees; we often become a self-fulfilling ,.,'phecy. The

reaction of others is the mirror, in which we look. At first we are

hopeful, yet now we are condemned by the reflection we see in

society's mirror. I dream of the day we can look into our own

mirror and realize what all of us truly are: the future. Unless

children are taken care of there will be no future.

Today I an a happy sixteen year-old girl. My foster parents

are my parents. I as fortunate to find a home willing to help me

rebuild a strong foundation. With the shortage of foster homes, and

the recent increase of homeless children, many kids will never have

the chance I have gotten. I know there is much pain in the world

and desperate need, but today I have faith in the future.
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ABED STATEMENT OF JENNIFER GAMBLE

I began researching the homeless problem last fall after having seen many
homeless people in Washington, D.C., and witnessing a soup line outside of the Rescue
Mission in Martinsburg. At that time I realized that the homeless problem was not just
limited to large cities, but that it was right in my hometown.

I felt that I wanted to identify one specific need of the homeless population. I
then wanted to find a way to solve that need. I spoke to staff members at the
Department of Human Services and asked them to tell me what was needed. The
specific item which they found was the need for manual can openers. Many of the
homeless were being housed in motels. These people bad ample food which had been
dorated, but they had no means of opening the cans. My goal then became that of
trying to raise ,:nough money to purchase thirty manual can openers.

I decided to create buttons which contained the slogan "No Place Like Home." I
also stenciled a small black house in the center. My parents gave me the money to
purchase the first hundred buttons. I decided to market them through the Eastern
Panhandle Training Center. The first batch did not make it home. My project was off
and running. Sales began to skyrocket, and the next challenge was to keep up with the
demand.

Eight hundred and fifty-two buttons later, I have helped to raise the level of
community awareness pertaining to the homeless. I have purchased thirty can openers,
held a Valentine's Party for the children at Bethany Shelter, provided seventeen Easter
baskets for homeless children housed in Bethany Shelter and Willowbrook, provided
$130.00 worth of basic supplies to assist with the opening of Willowbrook Shelter,
replaced a storm damaged door in Bethany Shelter, provided diapers, paper products
and medicine for the homeless of Martinsburg. With the additional money I have
opened a special checking account at the Farmer's and Merchant's Bank in Martinsburg.
When a homeless person has a special need I am contacted by the shelter or
Department of Human Services and I obtain the needed item.

As part of my research on this project I decided to survey U.S. Congressmen and
Senators. I made up a survey and it was distributed by Cong,essman Harley Staggers. I
asked the members of Congress to rank the problems of homelessness in relation to
other national issues. Out of the nine items which were listed they ranked homelessness
number 5. I received a total of 52 letters.

CONGRESSIONAL RANKINGS
FEBRUARY 1989

1. National Deficit
2. Education
3. National Dek use
4. Environment
5. Homelessness
6. Drugs
7. Aids
8. Abortion
9. Handgun Control
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On June 28, 1989, I was recognized by Governor Gaston Caperton for my work
with the homeless of my community. I was presented with the Distinguished West
Virginian Award.

I am so happy and proud that my community did make a difference in the lives of
tht homeless. I have been blessed to have been born in a family rich in love and
support. They gave me the guidance to help others who are not so fortunate. I hope to
insp.-P other communities to use my project idea. If every city in every state would
make the effort we could conquer this problem. I do believe that the future begins here
and now.

127



123

PREPARED STAlr,MENT OF DR. DONALD W. SCHIFF

Chairman Miller, Chairwoman Boxer, and members of the Select

Committee and of the Budget Committee's Task Force on Human

Resources, good morning. I am Dr. Don Schiff, professor of

pediatrics at the University of Colorado Medical Center and

president of the American Academy of Pediatrics. The Academy, an

organization of 38,000 pediatricians specializing in the care of

infants, children and adolescents, is pleased to have this

opportunity to testify on the statul of child health in America.

You have convened this hearing to begin to examine the needs of

infants, children and adolescents and how those needs might be met

in fiscal year 1991. The Academy commends your foresight in

beginning now to look carefully at such needs. The fiscal

challenge of recent years has been how to provide sufficient

monies for critical federal programs for our children during a

time of fiscal retrenchment with the prospects for expanding

existing programs or c :eating new ones being bleaker still.

For some time now the Academy has pointed out that the United

States needs a national policy for its children -- a policy which

would recognize and affirm our commitment to future generations.

Such a policy should state that the "health" of a child goes

further than the medical status. We have learned that to grow

into productive adults, children need nurturing; they need a good

education; they need nutritious food; they need an environment

free of harmful contaminants; they need a safe place in which to

grow and develop. By incorporating these needs into a s.etemeni.
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of concern and commitment, Congress would be dedicating itsel( to

future generations.

There is Borg good news to report. Through advances in medical

technology and services, many severely-ill or low birthweight

infants now survive. Children with a broad range of disabilities

are being treated outside the hospital setting and are attending

school. Through immunizations and other preventive health

services, we keep our children from experiencing many illnesses

which plagued previous generation,. So, mdrlically speaking, we

can be proud of our accomplishments.

We know all the statistics, and I do not wish to detail them in

this statement, but a child is not a statistic; he or she is much

more. The infant born today of drug-addicted parents living in

poverty faces the prospect of possible abuse or abandonment by

those parents. Teens are confronted with frequent opportunities

to use and abuse drugs, alcohol, sex, tobacco, fast cars, and

guns. Many children are left to take care of themselves and

younger siblings because their working parents cannot find or

afford child care. Other children attend schools that are

overcrowded or cannot provide a stimulating educational

experience. We must ask ourselves, "Are these enriching

experiences? Are we doing all we can to provide for our children?"

As a nation we must shift ,.iblic policy to reflect our commitment

to children by providing the critical federal support needed for

health, social, and educational programs. We believe the time has
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come for political leaders to not only declare their verbal

support for infants, children and adolescents, but they must also

commit the necessary fiscal and administrative resources.

The Academy has determined that its number one priority for this

year, and for the next several years, is to achieve access to

quality health care for all infants, childien and adolescents. As

this nation moves forward with the design of a national health

plan, our children must come first. Resources may dictate a

phased in approach and, in our opinion, this should be the age

group of 0-21. Tough choices, but very necessary.

As child advocates and els_ as Members of Congress, you are faced

with a dilemma, and that dilemma is how to make the very difficult

choices you must make when you begin to look at the budget and

appropriations cycle for fiscal year 1991. We ask that you begin

to view the child as a whole person, with a variety of health,

educational and social needs. It is shortsighted to increase

funding for one program area benefiting children by taking money

from other child health, social or educational programs. All are

important. All are intertwines..

We know such investments are prudent. For example, the federal

immunization program has been a stunning success story, as

evidenced bythe millions of children ho are protected against

common, preventable infectious diseases. We know that expanding

prenatal care services will begin to pay off in reduced infant

mortality and morbidity. By focusing on preventing injuries
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before they occur, we will save millions of dollars in hospital

and other medical coats. However, we cannot remain complacent.

We must be attuned to changing needs and opportunities. The

following should be priorities in your considerations:

Immunisations:

The childhood immunization program must keep pace with new

developments in recommended immunizations, increased use of

public health clinics, and the rising costs of vaccines. Public

policy now recommends a second dose of the measles, mumps, and

rubella, yet there have been no new dollars allocated to public

health clinics for this purpose.

Maternal and Child Health Block Grant:

The programs funded through the maternal and child health block

grant remain an integral part of ensuring improved health for

mothers, infants, children and adolescents. These programs

provide services where a need would otherwise go unfulfilled.

This block grant needs increased funding to continue its stated

purpose d keep it from losing ground as a result of the

decreased funding it has, in reality, received over the past few

years.

Injuries:

Injuries are the greatest killer and crir,pler of children over age

one. Over the last several years Congress has provided monies to

improve pediatric emergency medical services and for the Injury

Control Program through the Centers for Disease Control. These
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programs should be strengthened, not diluted.

Family Planning:

Title X, family planning services, continues to be an important

part of our struggle to solve the teenage pregnancy crisis. With

young people becoming sexually active at an early age, and with so

many of them becoming pregnant as a result'of such activity,

access to information, education, and medical services is crucial

to adolescent health care.

AIDS:

We have all learned about the tragedy of AIDS, especially the

cases of AIDS in infants, children and adolescents. As we attempt

to find methods to prevent the spread of this disease and to treat

those already infected, we must not only find ways to educate

women of child-bearing age, but we must find ways to take care of

the children who have the disease.

Child Abuse.

Child abuse is clearly one of the most difficult issues facing our

society. Moreover, the problem is self-perpetuating. Without

treatment and attention, abused children are more likely to abuse

their offspring and other children. We have begun to learn much

about this severe problem and are now beginning to implement

programs, apprrsches, and practices to help those children and to

prevent its recurrence. In view of this, we need to continue to

give the program our full support.
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Child Zara.

With the increase in single-parent families and families where

both parents work, we recognize the need for affordable,

high-quality, safe child care. The disparity between the states

in child care standards is evident through a survey recently

released by the Academy and the American Public Health

Association. The federal government should accept the

responsibility of improving this disparity by implemen'ing a child

care program which would improve child care standards. Congress

should pass the Early Childhood Education and Development Act,

H.R. 3.

Nutrition:

The benefits to mothers and their children enrolled in the

Supplemental Feeding Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC)

are clearly seen in such crucial areas as improved pregnancy

outcomes, enhanced cognitive skills in children, and decreased

nutritional deficiencies. For many participants, WIC is their

only access to the health care system. Although the impact of

these benefits is immeasurable, the cost in real dollars for each

participant per month, is an average of $42. Yet, despite the

enormous advantages of WIC, the program's inadequate funding

prevents half of the 7.4 million women and children who are

eligible from enrolling. We strongly urge you to fully fund the

WIC program, a true lifeline for many low-income families.

Head Start:

Head Start and other preschool programs and educational programs
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help many low-income, minority and disabled children to attend

attend,school and to cope with the challenge school sometimes

presents. All our children deserve to receive the best

educational beginning possible, not just those children whose

parents can afford it. Unfortunately, many poor children are

denied a good start due to limited space and federal funding for

these educational programs. Head Start, for example, services

only 18 percent of the 2.5 million children who need the program's

services. Expanding educational programs for the poor and the

disabled will encourage these children to succeed and will provide

America with a stronger, better educated workforce.

Research:

In every aspect of a child's life, there remains room for new

knowledge; we can always learn more. The Academy has long

supported biomedical and behavioral research programs, through the

National Institutes of Health, through the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and

Mental Health Administration, and through a myriad of specific

categorical programs. Injury prevention research, for example,

has taught us that lives can be saved if we take the proper

precautions when we drive and when children play. We have learned

that a pregnant woman should not drink alcoholic beverages nor

smoke during her pregnancy. We need to know how to prevent a

child from being born with cystic fibrosis; we need to know more

about the long-lasting effects of crack cocaine on infants born of

drug-addicted women. Congress does know the value of biomedical

and behavioral research. Our concern is that many of the

research dollars are not being devoted to research which would
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benefit our infants, children and adolescents. we ask you to urge

your colleagues to recognize this need and the importance of such

research.

I realize that this statement highlights a long list of programs

and concerns that need your attention and am very cognizant of the

fact that public policy action in these areas will be driven by

budget decisions. That is why children so desperately need your

commitment and leadership. I thank you for this opportunity and I

pledge the support of the 38,000 members of the Academy in working

with you to assure our children a high ranking on our nation's

agenda.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF THOMAS A. NAZARIO

The Scene

There are approximately 64 million children under the age of
eighteen in the United States. They constitute almost one-third of
our population. Over two-thirds of them live in metropolitan areas.
though a greater number of then live in suburbs as opposed to inner
cities.

O Nearly 62 million of our children grow up in families
-about 30 million families of all kinds. Nevertheless,
approximately 900,000 children grow up in foster, group,
and institutional care, and over a million run away from
home each year.

o 14 million children are poor. Some are on Aid to Families
with Dependent Children, but all suffer from a
disproportionate number of health and educational
disadvantages as a result of their economic status.

O Almost 10 million children, or about one in seven, have
no regular source of medical care, and approximately 20
million children under the age of seventeen have never
seen a dentist.

o Over two million children are reported each year as being
suspected victims of child abuse and neglect and about
five times that number of children go unreported.

O Also, mental health services are nut available to an
estimated 80 percent of the children who need them.

In addition, it is important to realize that often as children
grow from infancy to early adolescence, their problems intensify.
Many are confronted with pressures, influences, and decisions that
they are not equipped to handle:

O Over 1 mill", school-aged children are not in school,
and of r' enteen-year-olds who stay in school, 13
percent neti.:=.11y illiterate.

O Each yet ),000 teenagers become mothers. The vast
majority of them do so long before they are prepared for
the responsibility of raising a child.

O Almost three times as many youngsters committed suicide
during 1977 as did in 1950, an increase of 4.5 to 11.8
per 100,000. Only accidents and homicides outrank suicide
as causes of death in this age group.

O An estimated 3 million youngsters in the United States
have a serious drinking problem, and of all teens who
start drinking, one in ten become alcoholics later in
life, if they are not already.

Ironically, one of the fundamental problems that all childr
share is that they are children. As such, but fur today and the
hearings they have had little control over the conditions in thei
lives or the identification of their needs, and as a group they
contribute almost no input to the search for solutions to the
problems they face.
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121111211111UNLIQYZICEI
Believe it or not, children today asks up the single largest

group of America's poor and are six times likelier to be poor than
even our elderly. Unlike the elderly, however, children have no
political clout, are largely powerless to improve their own lives,
and suet rely on adults to provide for them.

Unfortunate yet true, nearly one in four (22.2 percent) of all
children in the United States today is poor or lives in a household
that falls below the poverty line; and of all persons living in
poverty (about 33 million Americans), two in five are children,
nearly 14 million of them in all. This figure has increased
(particularly in recent years) such faster than our population. Not
only is the number of poor children increasing, but the children
are getting poorer. To illustrate this, in 1968 the poorest fifth
of all families in the United States had about 91 percent of the
money they needed to meet the same needs. Fifteen years later,
that same group of families and their children had only 60 percent
of the money the needed to meet the same needs.

Unfair, but also true, is the fact that a child's chances of
growing up poor in America are enhanced if he or she happens to be
Black or Hispanic. In fact nearly 50 percent of all black children
in the United States (or one in 2 black children, about 5 million
in all), and 39 percent of Hispanic children who are either
Mexican-American, Puerto Rican, Central American, Cuban, or of
other Spanish descent - -or more than one in three Hispanic children,
and about 2.4 million children in all) live in poverty. At the same
time, the chance that a white child will experience poverty,
although still unacceptably high, is only one in six. Different too
is the length of time minority children (as opposed to white
children) remain in poverty. For example, the average length of
time that a black child will spend in a family whose resources do
not exceed the poverty level is five years. White r.thildren, on the
other hand, experience that same poverty for only ten months. Long-
term poverty is more devastating and has more lasting effects.
Short-term poverty usually is associated with changes in marital
status and family earnings.
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SOPIE FACTS MOUT POOR CHILDREN

- Although fourteen million children in the United
States live in poverty, some twenty million children go
hungry at least some time each month. This often occurs
because food stamps have run out, local emergency assistance
is not available or the child's family simply doesn't have
enough money each month to keep their children fed.

- As a direct result of poverty, at least a half
million children in the United States suffer from
malnutrition. Reported conditions include iron deficiency
anemia, stunted growth, kwashiorkor (condition associated
with severe protein deficiency) and marasmus (caused by a
severe caloric deficiency). The two latter ailments are
generally associated with children found in underdeveloped
countries.

- Again, largely due to poverty, some five million
children in the United States live in unsafe, unsanitary,
rat infested tenements or housing projects in inner cities.
Other poor children lack adequate or safe bathing and/or
kitchen facilities and are forced to live near toxic waste
dumps. Additionally, of all those who are homeless and live
in shelters in the United States, twenty-two percent are
children.

- Poor children are three to four times more likely to
drop out of school than children who are not poor. With
Hispanics, the national drop-out rate is 50% ana for those
Hispanics living in large cities their drop out rate is even
higher.

- Poor children are three to four times more likely to
become single mothers before they reach adulthood than
children who are not poor. This, of course, often brings
forth a whole new generation of poverty.

- One in three of all poor children have no medical
insurance, and because of their families' economic sit-
uation, receive little or no access to routine medical care

- Poverty kills. Although the exact number of children in
the United States who die each year as a direct or indirect
result of poverty is unknown, few knowledgeable people argue
with the figure 10,000. More specific causes of death
include poor prenatal care, poor infant care, low birth
weights, long-term malnutrition, exposure and/or neglect.
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Other factors which greatly increase an individual child's
chances of being poor in America are whether or not he or she is
young (25 percent of all children under six are poor); whether the
principal or sole breadwinner in the household is a woman (as a
group, single mothers who head households have family income equal
to only about 40 percent of what more traditional two-parent
households earn each year, and on the average they have annual
incomes which sit at or near the poverty level); whether a child
is illegitimate or has parents who are divorced (these children are
far less likely to receive support from their fathers); whether a
child is a member of a large sibling group (children in large
families are more likely to be poor than children in smaller
families); and whether a child has parents who are themselves very
young or have not completed high school (these parents, of course,
have the greatest difficulty finding decent jobs, and jobs which
pay only minimum wage seldom can keep families out of poverty).

Finally, the following statistics give some idea of just how
wealth is distributed among American families: In 1986 the poorest
20 percent of families received 3.8 percent of all income, the
middle 60 percent made 50.2 percent of our income, and the top 20
percent of our families divided up the remaining 46.1 percent of
all of America's income. At the same time, our government spent
$1,100.50 per person on national defeno. and $464.87 per person on
programs to aid low ine.ome families and children.

& PI 3E 01_1000 CHILDREN

Figures and statistics about the plight of children, of
course, never tell the real story. You never see their faces. You
never hear about the lives they lead and the figures themselves,
almost always sr.em to blend together. When talking about child
welfare this is particularly true; on one hand one wants to
understand, yet on the other, one just can't visualize the numbers
or come to grips with the suffering of children. So we just toss
it aside. This is sorething we can no longer afford to do. Hence,in
an effort to make better sense of these figures, I will try to
paint a picture. Please try to bear with me. Again, there are
64 million children (persons under 18 years of age) in America
today and about 3.8 million new children are born in the UniteJ
States each year. That means that about 10,400 chi ren are born
each day; or about 1000 every two hours and twenty minutes; or in
about the time it takes a person to see a movie or watch a Monday
night football game. One thousand children are easy to visualize.
They might fill up a good size school auditorium, church hall, or
congressional hearing room. What would these 1000 children look
like and what might we expect to happen to them over the course of
their childhood ?
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First, of these 1000 children about 21 or 12 will not survive
their first year of life. They will die as a result of our infant
mortality rate which each year takes a little over 39,000 of
America's newborns. These children are disproportionately Black,
Hispanic, and Native American and are more likely to be born to a
teenage mother or to mothers who are poor and have little or no
access to prenatal care. Many of these children could have been
saved.

Second, of the surviving children, AA would have been born
with their health impaired as a result of their mother's use of
drugs and/or alcohol. Often these health problems are very serious
and will stay with them their entire lives. Also ZIA of the
children will live in poverty over a substantial part of their
young lives. Again, at any given time, almost one in four of all
children under age six live in poverty in America and for children
who happen to be Black, their chances of living within a family
whose income falls below the poverty line is 1 in 2. Additionally,
the average amount of time that Black ;bad minority children live
in poverty is substantially longer than that of a comparable white
child experiencing poverty.

The amount of Aid to Families ,fith Dependent Children in any
state is not designed to take kids out of poverty and many families
who would otherwise be eligible for this help do not receive it.
Children who live in poverty are more likely to suffer serious
illness, abuse, neglect, pregnancy, and drop out of school than
children who are not poor. Also because of the many ancillary
problems associated with poverty these children are more likely to
spend at least some time in a juvenile detention center. About 22
of these random 1000 children are likely to be arrested some time
during their upbringing and with homicide now being the second or
third leading cause of death of children between the ages of 1 and
18, 2 to 3 of the children will be killed. Moreover, children vho
live in poverty are also far more likely to be functionally
illiterate in high school; and find themselves unemployed or
unemployable as they enter their late teens. About 112 of 1000
children will bear this fate.

Finally of these 1000 ..thildren, almost 222 would be born to
unwed mothers, laa of whom would be teenagers themselves. Of these
young mothers /2 will never complete high school. Also even as to
teens who marry as a result of pregnancy, studies show that these
marriages are two to three tales more likely to end in a separation
or divorce than marriage, which are not pregnancy related. About
one-fourth end within five years. As to those teens who don't
marry, studies show that as a group, single mothers and their
children are the segment of our society most likely to be poor.
Seventy-five percent of single mothers under the age of twenty five
live below the poverty line, and among mothers under the age of
thirty who have not finished high school, 90 percent live in
poverty.
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This of course, just scratches the surface of some of the
problems associated with children and child welfare in America.
Other areas of concern however are just as significant,
particularly those issues that relate to health and child care. For
example, you might be surprised to learn that Ag out of 1000
children develop a serious drinking problem over the course of
their upbringing: that 00 in every 1000 children will be abused
or neglected over the course of any giver year: that ill out of
1000 children have no regular source of medical care; that 22r. out
of 1000 children get no or in adequate child care and that nearly
Agg of the 1000 children will take at least one or more illegal
drugs before they leave their childhood.

Remember, these numbers only reflect the percentage of
children affected out of every 1000 children in America. Then. *re
64 million children out there. That is the picture we are facing
and that is the challenge fol. today.

Children in potty
Re.earwl. at The Urban Institute fnund that a letter
rtertent..t:e of children prow up poor to the L'inited
States than in seven other industrialized nations

Pem Print rlt cn.irPer.
COLIN, y Moll Iwo* the po.rty kr4

IIIS%edies If 3.1%

Siwiiserbid V 5.1

lerft, The VelOgreble car v&111 Worry Awn. alsoberm P C

141



137

FREFAIED STATEMENT OF FILITEN F. REACH

Dear Congresswoman Boxer and Task Force Members:

It is a distinct honor for me to have the opportunity to speak to you tcday. I

appear before you as the Superintendent of the 18,000student Oceanside Unified
School District. I am also president of the California Impact Aid Association, which
represents 300 school districts and over 2 million students in federally impacted
schools.

Ws aro deeply appreciative of the assistance of the federal government in
helping us meet the divers* needs of the children and their families in our community.
Oceanside has an estimated 117,000 residents, and the number increases every day.
We are a community comprised of a broad range of families from very diverse socio-
economic and cultural backgrounds. I'd like to 'ski a moment to discuss with you
some of the special and urgent needs of children from three significant and distinct
populations within our district.

Some 5,000 children corns to our schools from families affiliated with the
Marine Corps facility at Camp Pendleton. They are families who make vast
contributions to our district, and we enjoy outstanding cooperation and support from
the military authorities at the base. Through frequent moves, many base children
never know the continuity of one classroom and one neighborhood.
Their own homes often lack a father and male model for long periods of time. They

many times require special attention to maintain their academic and personal
progress.

Agriculture remains a major economic force in North San Diego County, and with
agriculture come migrant families. Many of them are homeless. Others live two.
three, even four families in a single home or apartment. Adults in these families may
neither speak English nor be literate in Spanish. This fall we enrolled teen-agers 1

OUT high schools who had never been to school before. Health care usually has been
inconsistent or non-existent. In the past two years, we have conducted tuberculosis
testing for hundreds of students in two schools because new classmates were
afflicted with the disease. Hepatitis also is a continuing concern.

We see large numbers of children in pain and at risk for a third population of our
community. This is the lower working class for whom economic survival is often the
primary or seemingly the only priority. Their attitude towards their children's
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schools ranges from antagonistic to apathetic. Their ne;ghborhoods are plagued by
gang rivalry and drug sales. Inevitably, the pressure and violence of. these problems
Spill over onto our campuses. Drugs. Or course, know no societal barriers. Nor do
Child abuse and neglect. We battle these curses on our youth literally on every school
Campus.

Another tragedy which afflicts all levels of society and which is eating away at
the economic fabric of our nation is the dropout problem. There is reason for modest
optimism regarding the nation's efforts to keep the young people in school. A study
just released by the U. S. Department of Education shows that 2 percent fewer 10th to
12th graders dropped out of school over the past three years than in the previous
decade. The percentage of the nation's 18 to 24-year olds who are not in school and
have not completed school is 3 percent lower than 20 years ago. The dropout ra- for
white and. black students is down slightly in the past decade, and the hispanic dropout
rate has remained, steady.

In California, dropouts exceed the national average. Between their sophomore
and senior years, 22.7 percent of the Class of 1988 dropped out of school. Even in
relatively-affluent San Diego County, which includes my district in Oceanside, the
rate is 201 percent.

What is the price that we pay for students who fail to finish school? A rbcent
study by Harvard economist Richard Freeman shows that the real income of the high
school dropouts declined 15 percent between 1973 and 1987, while the real earnings
of the rest of the population increased an average of 30 percent.

In acklition, the percentage of jobs available to those with only a high school
education is declining. By the year 2000, 85 percent of all jobs will require training
beyond high school, compared to 54 percent now, according to a study by the American
Society of Training and Development. We must assume that the. situation for the
dropouts is even more severe.

Young people don't drop out of school suddenly; they do it a little at a time,
beginning in their elementary school years. We can recognize the tell-tale signs of
children at risk in their early years, and we must intervene at that lime, The
Leadership Children's Package includes several programs that provide vital services
to children and their families. Each of them could be described as a plan to combat
the dropout problem because they help ensure a child's success in school a.id in fife.

We can continue to make gains against dropout statistics. But we must
maintain our commitment. We must stay the course. Reduction or elimination of
programs our children need may save a few dollars today, but we can ill afford the
inevitable cost measured in wasted lives in future years.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ANN LYNCH, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ?TA

Ms. Boxer, Kr. Killer and distinguished members of the Rouse Select

Committee on Children, Youth and Families, and the Rouse Budget

Committee's Task Force on Rumen Resources. I as Ann Lynch,

President of the 6.6 million member National PTA, an organisation

devoted to the education, health, safety, protection and care of

America's 64 million children and youth. It is symbolic that your

two eamaittoos should be jointly conducting a bearing commemorating

National Children's Day. This symbiosis between the people who

Collect the data and provide information to authorising committees

and the people who pay the bills and allocate the resources is a

critical link betvien planning and implementation of youth and

featly policy. I oommend your interest in children, and I know

that we share a common goal of assuring that all children are at

the top of federal; state, and local agendas.

I as also honored to serve on the Congressional Advisory Comnittee

commemorating National Children's Day and to join Rep. Joe Kennedy

(D-MA) in his efforts to highlight the condition of the nation's
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children. One of the charges to the Congressional Advisory

Committee is to create a more complete portrait of our children

and their families -- who they are, how they are living, and how

they are affected by the social and demographic changes that are

occurring in our society. We hope this effort will compel the

Congress, the President and the nation to act with vision, courage,

and compassion on behalf of America's children.

Urie Bronfenbrenner of Cornell University recently touched a

sympathetic nerve whon he identified the big ingredient of success

in child advocacy: "Somebody has got to be crazy about the kids."

If National Children's Day and Week is to seen anything, we need

a congress and a nation that will move children to the highest

position on the nation's agenda and "be crazy about the kids."

As a parent, as a volunteer for youth services for over 40 years,

as a business woman in an executive position in my hometown of Las

Vegas, Nevada, and as president of the National PTA, I can

unequivocally say that children need advocates now more than at any

time in recent years. As our country prepares to enter a new

decade, we must take seriously the bromide that the future depends

on our children and make the essential link between. our children

and our own personal destiny. If there is anything that we can

borrow from the Japanese, it is the attention they pay to their

children. They understand that their most important economic and

cultural resource is not capital, or material or trade, it is their
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Children. In Japan, there is a commitment to children through

their national ministries that is certainly not present to that

extant in the United States.

In representing the views of the National PTA, I have traveled many

thousands of miles throughout the United States and Europe, and

have talked with hundreds of parents and other citizens who care

deeply about their children. To whatever area that I travel --

rural, suburban, inner city, or overseas to American dependent

schools -- I an so inspired when I see communities working on

behalf of children and families, despite numerous mitigating odds.

Whether it is the school in the Bronx fighting tenaciously against

drug and alcohol abuse, or a state such as Missouri which has

initiated a leading parental involvement program, or Dade County,

Florida, which is experimenting with school-based management, or

local PTA units around the country which are offering before and

after school services, or a business partnership in Memphis,

Tennessee, which supplements the activities of the schools, or the

single parent from Little Rock, Arkansas, struggling to balance a

job and raise three children on $17,000 per year, there are many

heartwarming stories I can relay to you about programs that work,

communities that care, and parents that love.

What is so startling and evident, however, is the growing disparity

between the children and families that have access to quality

services and those who do not. There are many communities that
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need help, that are crumbling under the weight of severe and

debilitating probity and that do not have the kind of supporta

necessary to shore up vital education, care, health, environmental_

and protection services: For many of our children, basic needs to

survive are unmet: nutritional meals, shelter, education, physical

and rental health care, security and protection. It is so exciting

for as to work with children who have caring adults to love them,

public schools that provide for individual needs, volunteer

organisations that become involved and governments who respond --

at ell levels. It is utterly devastating to look into the eyes of

a child who has no hope, feels alienated from the American dream,

and sees no future in a society that he believe* has abandoned his.

The child we neglect and abuse today will certainly not cone back

and thank us for our neglects and our 'throwaways" don't just

disappear without making their human presence :Alt.

even more alarming are the warning signals, which have been

publicised over the past decode, about some of our children and

families. For instances

o Recent studies indicate that one out of every eight
employees reads at no better than the fourth-grade
level and that one in five reads at an eighth-grade
level.

o One out of eves, twe children will spend part of his
or her childhood or youth in a single-parent home.

o Over 25 percent of young people will live in homes
with incomes below the poverty level.

o State observers report that sore and more children
are in deeper and deeper trouble at younger and
younger ages. Problems which in the '60's were
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y found among 18 and 19-year olds, areinaptly
evident in the eight -to-thirteen-year-

old age growl.. These problems inOlUde alOoludism,
drug abuse, mental or emotional illness, failure to
thrive in school, alienation from family and
community and self-destructive behavior of many
types. Physical and sexual abuse are epidemic.

o The drop-out rate and failure to acquire essential
knowledge and skills are of great concern. Our
schools continue to experience great difficulties
in providing basic education for certain groups of
children.

o While sous progress has been nada in opening
opportunities for iimority youth, their overall
condition is extremely grim. Particularly for
males, hispanic, and blacks, large numbers appear
to have lost all hope for their futures.

o As the economics of the labor market shift, more and
more families will receive lower wage rates,
experience unemployment more frequently, and will
have lost fringe benefits. Therefore, their
capacity to invest in home ownership and higher
education is disappearing, as well as their ability
to finance unusual medical costs, lengthening
periods of retirement and long-term care.

o The fastest growing population without health
insurance is children of working parents with
employer-based coverage.

In another context, the Souse Select Committee on children, Youth

and Families compiled a Mg report entitled "Children and

Families: Rey Trends in the 00s" which document the Cciiittee's

findings since 1983. I submit to you the subheadings of that

report which dramatically illustrate the challenges that suet be

addressed:

Economic security
Economic pressures on families mount: young jaunt's at
risk

More mothers work out of economic necessity
Child care, elder care costs, major family expense
Affordable housing loses ground
Health cars costs increase; access decreases
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Education costs outpace inflation; more families borrow
money

Poverty
Children comprise Aaerica's poorest age group
Working poor families increase; poor families getting
poorer
Homeless and hungry families increase in the eighties
Safety net programs shrink for families in poverty

Child care
Child care inadequate to meet demand; waiting lists are

the norm
Lack of child care a barrier to employment
Federal child care programs reduced in the 19110's

Housi
Middle - income families struggle to afford housing
Affording a home especially difficult for young families
Poor families, incomes inadequateto soot housing costs
Supply of low and moderate income housing units
decreasing
Housing crisis results in inadequate housing and
homelessness
Cuts in government programs exacerbate family housing
problems

Education
School dropout rates high; yo 'h lack basic skills
Early intervention programs c.it -effective but too few
children participate

Federal funds for education slashed

Health
Millions of children unprotected by health insurance
U.S. infant death rate among highest in industrialised
world

Lack of prenatal care increases risk of newborn death
Growing number of preschoolers not immunised
Federal child health programs serve few who are eligible

Children, youth, and families in crisis
Abuse, addiction increasing among families
Limited services jeopardise vell-being of children and

families
Violence, delinquenly, major problems among youth
Funding declines for youth, families in crisis
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You have asked as to respond to several questions. The first is:

°The Congressional budget office and the Office of
MAnagement and budget have estimated that between $40
billies' and $414 billion in deficit reduction will be
required to meet the Gramm-Redman target for fiscal year
1991. What implications does this dilemma have for
Children's programs, and what recommendations would you
make?"

The deficit has numerous implications for childrenos programs.

First, it is our children and their children who will be paying off

the deficit -- and in many cases for programs that serve the needs

of an adult population. Rep. John Porter (R-IL) estimates that

while many of us will receive fros $1..30-1.50 in government

services for every dollar we contribute in taxes, our children will

receive only approximately 1.73 of every dollar. The difference

will be allocated to pay off the national debt.

Second, finite resources may serve to create an inter-generational

conflict with the young and old fighting for existing resources.

This dysfunctional dynamic would serve to exacerbate a we/they

battle, when in reality, our government has a responsbility to

serve the needs of both age groups. In fact, the elderly can make

a vast differenos in the lives of children.

Third, the Congressional budget Office estimates the federal share

of total expenditures for elementary and secondary education has

declined from $.7 percent to an estimated (1.1 percent in FY 1911.

This is partly because local and state revenues increased at a

faster rate than federal revenues, and partly because of federal
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cuts in some categorical programs. It is clear that the federal

government has not pulled its weight in funding educational reform,

and states that have felt the greatest impact are those states who

need federal help the most. For instance, in Mississippi. local

revenues increased from $202,336,000 to $454,311,000 between 1981
and 1989, state revenues increased from $452,114,000 to

$810,177,000 during those years, but federal revenue only

increased from $195,482,000 to $223,914,000. Even with all of the

local and state commitment, Mississippi still ranks last in per

capita student expenditure at $2,677 per student. New York ranks

first with $7,494 per student. While the National PTA believes

that the local and state levels should primarily fund elementary

and secondary education, the federal government must maintain its

primary role of assuring equal educational ,opportunity and access

for all children.

Fourth, with the exception of selected child nutrition programs,

most education and child-related programs are not entitlements.

As a result, children's programs are the most vulnerable, the

easiest to gouge and the most tempting to cut.

Fifth, while the federal government should be shouldering more

responsibility for funding children's programs, the pending threat

of a growing deficit is restricting needed growth. For instance,

of the $80 billion in naturally occurring revenue for 1990, the
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Department of Education is allocated one -halt of one percent of the

total.

The Congress has been working on a trillion dollar plus federal

budget. Of that amount, less than two percent is appropriated to

the Department of Education for all education programs and less

than five percent of the total goes for children, youth and family

programs including AFDC, higher education, youth employment, Head

Start, and all of the education programs. This would hardly make

a dent in reducing the deficit. Children did not create the

federal deficit, and in return, we should not balance the budget

on their backs. Surely, if we can find more than $60 billion off-

budget for savings and loan institutions, we can fully fund Head

Start and Chapter 1.

Considering the largesse of the federal budget, it is a national

disgrace that after 18 years, Head Start money serves ic's than 20%

of all eligible children, and that after 25 years, Chapter 1

funding serves only 40% of all eligible children. The implication

of an Ancreasing federal deficit for child advocates is clear:

there will he growing pressure to cut programs for children, and

advocates will spend more and more efforts to compete with other,

more well-financed lobbies that threaten the very existence of

effective child services.

In another question, you asked:

"The Leadership Children's Package, which included Head
Start, WIC, maternal and child health care, child
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immunization and child care proved to be a successful
vehicle in obtaining funding increases for these programs
in the budget for fiscal year 1990, While programs in
other categories received no increases or were cut. What
items would you place in such a package for fiscal year
1991?"

First, the National PTA believes that there is no one program that

can single-handedly address a multiple range of child and youth

development needs. In a study by the William T. Grant Foundation

entitled "Youth end America's Future: Current Federal Policies and

Programs for Youth," the report concluded that there is no

coordinated, comprehensive, long-term, national action agenda

consolidating and devoting federal resources toward youth. While

the president and the governors are meeting to develop goals and

plans fnr education, it is essential that those goals and plans be

coordinated with other needs such as health, protection, safety,

shelter and nutrition. Equally as important, agencies that service

children, both within and outside of government must act to

cooperate rather than compete for turf and resources.

Second, the Leadership Children's Package is a coordinated effort

that establishes a federal child policy and is supported by the

National PTA. The five part initiative includes:

1. Early Chiluhood Health. Education and Development,

including WIC, Comprehensive Child Development, Even

Start, Head Start, and Child Care;

2. 1219nlAti2IYraCilgitiSaLf.0r At Risk Students, including

chapter 1, Math Science, Magnet Schools, Handicapped;

.
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3. ricatilaDISRSALIZISLAIMBI, including Basic Skills

Improvement, Job Corps and Summer Youth Employment, Gang

Intervention and Community Youth Activity Program:

4. Enhanclna Competitiveness, including Workplace Literacy

and English Literacy, Vocational and Adult Education,

Title III JTPA, Dislocated Worker Program and Title II

JTPA Block Grant Program, Bilingual Education: and

S. Strenothenina Maher Education, including enhancement of

student aid, expansion of opportunities for minority

students, teacher training, and international education.

Thee* programs are not expenditures, but wise investments. The

House Select Committee on Children, Youth and Families, in a 1988

report, concluded that the federal government eventually saves

about $10 for every dollar it spends on immunisations, and as much

as $6 for every dollar spent on high quality preschool programs

such as Head Start. In addition, a savings of $3.31 for each

dollar spent was found for programs providing prenatal health and

related care for low-income pregnant women: an investment of $750

for one year of compensatory education can save the $3,700 cost of

repeating a grads: and the apscial supplementary food program for

low-income children and pregnant women known as WIC reduces infant

deaths, cuts the anemia rate and reduces the risk of low birth

weight.

We do not recommend "throwing money" at problems, lest someone

misinterpret our motives. In fact, we know that non-economic
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strategies are as important as economic strategies, especially a

caring and loving family. But to assure that children grow into

sturdy adults, the family needs to be buttressed by community

institutions, including churches, schools, the PTA community

agencies, and government. All families need help beyond the family

in the fora of health services, social support and education, but

for the families whose children are growing up at-risk, effective

services are even more crucial. The National PTA, believes that

the Leadership Children's Package will help supplement state and

local 4fforts to provide preventive program*.

In addition, we have to get beyond this senseless Congressional

battle about who should fund child services. We believe that state

and local governments have the primary responsibility, but the

federal government must be a partner in assuring equal opportunity.

There are vast resource inequities between states and regions of

this country. The kind of services a child receives is becoming

more an more dependent on the income level of their parents and

that community in which they grow up. Believe it or not, I have

visited high schools that have no microscopes or offer no foreign

languages, elementary schools that have no counselors and health

facilities, and junior high sr'lol classes which are frew.ntly

staffed by untrained personnel and temporary substitutes.

Frequently, these conditions exist for the children of least

affluent families whose parents are often not active in fighting

city hall for the rights of their child to receive a quality

155



151

education. And frequently, it is stingy school boards and/or state

legislatures who don't adequately fund public education. In my own

state of Nevada, the PTA held a July press conference to publicize

it disappointment with a state house that did not vote needed

resources yet talked a good game about better schools. In Utah,

a state that spends only a few dollars more per student than does

Mississippi, recommended a revenue decrease. The fact is: while

some states and local communities are providing adequate resources,

and are actually taxing themselves way beyond their ability to pay,

this may still not produce the revenue necessary to fund quality

child services. In fact, .,er 40 states have increased spending

for prisons at a faster rate than spending for education and

children. The nation's children believe that the federal

government should' be an equal partner in providing help and

assuring that children have access to quality basic services

wherever they live.

Now comes the most difficult part -- how to bridge the gap between

our knowledge about children and our commitment to doing pouothing.

One thing is fer sure, when our country sets a direction for

itself, no one can beat us. We were able to rebuild Western Europe

and Japan after World War II, we were able to rescue Greece and

Turkey from communism with the Marshall Plan, we were able to

recruit teachers and revitalize our eduzational programs through

the National Defense Education Act, we were able to connect our
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cities and towns by a national interstate highway system, and we

were able to send a man to the moon.

After a decade of defining problems, reading reports, and compiling

statistics, we need a national commitment no less dramatic and

intense than we had for our prior national accomplishments. And

for many of our children and communities, we know what works. If

we are concerned about the health of our savings and loans

institutions, look at the devastation of our children by

comparison. In a press conference held on September 25, 1989, the

National Alliance of Business, comprised of the Business

Roundtable, the U.S. Chamber of Commerce, the National Association

of Manufacturers, the Conference Board, the American Business

Conference, and the U.S. Hispanic Chamber of Commerce, stated, "The

strength of the American economy rests on the strengths ^'

America's public schools. All rectors have a responsibility for

the current crisis and "11 -- business, educators, parents, public

leaders need to assume responsibility for overcoming this

crisis." Indeed, we all need to make this commitment on behalf of

all children.

The more I look, the more clearly I understand that in the last two

ocades we have accumulated information giving us the nationab

capacity to improve the lives of our children. The knowledge

necessary to reduce the growing toll of damaged lives .s now

available. We can deter the teenage daughters of teenage mothers
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from having babies. We can keep kids from quitting school. Ws can

buttress fragile families with support that increases their

children's chances for health and wholeness. We can transform a

non-productive ghetto school into one of learning and achlevememt.

Ws can reduce the number of low birthweight babies. We can reams

poverty among the poorest segments of our population - children,

loosen and families.

Nigh rates of violent juvenile crime, school failure, and

adolescent childbearing add up to an enormous public burden as well

as widespread private pain. We all -- Republicans and Democrats,

liberals and conservatives, federal and state, parents and non-

parents -- have a common stake in preventing these damaging

outcomes. We all pay to support the unproductive and to

incarcerate the violent. We are all economically weakened by lost

productivity. The very foundation of our democracy is threatened.

National Children's Week should serve to bring tar together. !very

American has a role in translating commitment into action. We can

mobilize the political will to reduce the number of hurt children.

We must link the success of our children to the personal success

of every American. We must impress upon the 75% of the adults in

our society who have no direct link to children or public education

that when the lives of the least of our children are improved, we

can assure a more productive, just and civil nation for all of us.

I commit my PTA presidency to that end, and promise to carry this

message to our 27,000 local PTA units across the country. Thank

you for this opportunity to commemorate National Children's Week

with you.
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The Matiomal PTA Agenda for Children

The National ?TA believes that the following goals are imperative when developing a
children's agenda:

1. That every child has access to an excellent and equal educational opportunity;
2. That an affordable and accessible public sister of child care be crested;
3. That access to comprehensive quality health care be guaranteed to every child;
4. That all schools containing hazardous levels of asbestos, radon and had in

drinking water be mandated to take corrective action;
5. That efforts be made to prevent the mistreatment of children and to assure that

every child who is a victim of abuse or mistreatment receives treatment.

it, ..11

We believe that the federal government must contribute to the support of the nation.'
elementary and secondary schools by pursuing the following:

1. That all federal education programs include a provision for parental involvement
related to design, development and evaluation of programs; home support of the
school through coordinated activities; and volunteer's*.

2. That federal commitment to Chapter 1, special education, bilingual education,
dropout prevention impact aid, Pall Grants, and Guaranteed Student loans be
maintained.

3. That a peacetime Marsh/ill plan be developed for those children rho are the most
difficult to educate, require smeller class Size. more individualized
instruction, and the most competent teachers.

4. That the federal government in partnership with the states begin to develop a
plan that will equalize the funding of education among states.

5. That tuition tax credits and vouchers for private schools be unequivocally
dismissed as viable school improvement measures.

6. That the Civil lights Restoration Act be passed in its original form, and that
current civil rights mandates not be diminished.

1. That the federal government not require mandated testing of elementary and
secondary schools. Testing for purposes of accountability is a state and local
function.

S. That special emphasis be placed on the transition from school to work, and that
employment progress such as gunner youth employment, Job Training Partnership
Act and she Job Corps be expanded ai i more effectively coordinated with basic
education.
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We believe that, in partnership with state and local efforts, child care can be
enhanced by pursuing the following!

1. That a national policy regarding s comprehensive child care system be
established. including provisions for funding, safety measures, certification
and training of personnel, accreditation of programs, and universal
accessibility.

2. That funding for Head Start and Titie XX be increased to provide local
communities more assistance in Beating child care needs.

9. That Chapter 1 services be eztended to include preschoolers.
4. That greater coordination between state and local education agencies, social

services. Head Start. special education, and other service providers be
encouraged.

5. that public schools be encouraged to play a greater role in providing early
childhood, preschool and before and after ref .01 care.

6. That more busi be encouraged to provide adequate services for their
employees.

imprehenaive Oualitr_Raalili and Nutritional Ciro

We recommend that the federal government, in partnership with state and local
agencies. make available basic health services by pursuing the following.

1. That all age-appropriate children be immunized against polio, diphtheria.
measles, tetanus. whooping cough and mumps by providing sufficient federal
funding.

2. That the federal gov4inment continue its commitment to child nutrition programs
including School lunch, 'thou! breakfast. summer feeding. child care feeding,
nutrition education and training, special milk for Women, Infants and Children
Feeding Program (WIC).

3. That the federal government maintain its funding for the Maternal and Child
Health Block Grant which ensures prenatal child care, checkups, immunizations
and other essential services to low-income mothers.

4 That the federal government provide financial assistance to those communities
interested in developing health clinics for school-aged children.

5, That the federal government assist states and local education agencies by
providing funding for preventive education programs related to drug and substance
abuse, teen suicide prevention, teen-pregnancy, AIDS and basic health curriculum
kindergarten through the twelfth grade.

6. That federal legislation be passed which would require health warning labels on
alcoholic beverages,

7, That the federal government increase funding for AIDS research related to
pediatric AIDS and the development of safer vaccines

8. That a minimum health care financing mechanism be established guaranteeing that
all children and families have either a public or private insurance that
adequately covers basic needs. Families below 100% of the federal poverty level
should be entitled to medicaid.

1 C 0
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Ve recommend that the federal government, in partnership with state and local
agencies, work to eliminate school sir quality hazards by pursuing the following:

1. That the federal government significantly increase their funding and leadership
in assisting school districts to inspect for and eliminate asbestos, radon end
lead in drinking water.

2. That the federal government research. develop and enforce safe standards for
indoor air quality in the schools,

filziatigatriatmaLlmiliazziedulsetAltuatiLiaiLsIran
recommend that the federal government, in partnership with state and local

Agencies, address the needs of mistreated and neglected children by pursuing the
following:

1. That every child who is a victim of abuse and neglect gets immediate attention
through increased funding of Title XX Social Services Block Grant Progress and
the Child Abuse Challenge Grants.

2. That a national family support program be established and fully funded.
sufficient to provide for necessary, adequate and quality -hoes -based services
while maintaining the entitlement of children to appropriate foster care.

3 That the federal government commit whatever resources necessary to provide
adequate shelters, health services, and education for homeless families and
youth.

4. That the federal government maintain Ira commitment to funding of Juvenile
Justice programs, Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, and the Missing Children's
Assistance Act.

!waist
The costs of programs to expand social and economic opportunities for children and
families will not be inexpensive but the costs of neglect must also be weighed. A

national policy that ignores the losses associated with inferior education, untrained
workers, increased welfare, unavailable or unaffordable child care, or inaccessible
health care inevitably will underinvest in the nation's future.

In addition, the problem of annual budget deficits of approximately $180 billion end
the need to restore the federal tax base and an adoption of more balanced set of

federal priorities that includes children and families have to be tackled if we are

to maintain national vitality We must relate the care of children to the broader

goals of economic. social, and national security progress. Additional monies to

support children's progress can come from three sources: additional taxes such as

"a children's surcharge'" realignment of present spending and taxing priorities; or
the eliminsti.'n of current tax preferences.
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MT& INDICATORS AND Imam !DUCAT.=
TOR HOUSE stucT COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, FAMILY AND YOUTH

SUDO!? COMMITTEE'S TARE FORCE OM MUMAM RESOURCES
BY ANN LYNCH, RATIONAL PTA PRESIDENT

October 3, 1959

AND

The National PTA, an organization comprised of over 6.6 million parents, teachers
and other child advocates is devoted to assuring that our children and ourfamilies are at the top of the national, state and community agendas. It issymbolic that the Select Committee on Children, Youth and Families and the Budget
Committee's Task Force on Human Resources should jointly be conducting a hearingon school improvement commemorating National Children's Ueek. This symbiosis
between the people who collect the data aro -esovide information to authorizing
committees and the people who pay the bills and allocate the resources is
critical policy link between planning and implementation. A National Report Card
on children will further raise America's

awareness about our children, and can
spark our nation to further action.

The National Report Card can build on dozens of corroborating reports and
statistics compiled over the span of the last half-decade about the education,
safety, health, protection and caring conditions for children and youth. Infact, America needs co be reminded daily about how it treats its young people,
which segments of its youth population need special help, and whether we as 4
nation are assuring basic services for every child. Information about the
condition of our children is as important as data collected, for years, about
the health of our economy, labor force, and housing market.

In our zeal to collect statistics and develop indicators, however, especially
in determining the health of our public education system, we must be sure that
what we are measuring is not confusing and is related to meaningful school
improvements:

o For instance, the National PTA has been critical of using standardized
tests as the sole measurement of academic quality Proponents of tests
assume that standardized scores are fair and valid as well the best mean*
to measure achievement. NoL so! The quality of our educational systemshould not be reduced to series cf multiple-choice questions.

o The National PTA urges caution when mating stet* by state comparisons.
Many variables contribute to the diversity of our educational institutions
among states and among localities innuding per capita income, the number
of special needs children, educational level of adult populations, percent
of students in poverty, background variables of students who are
disadvantaged, and charecteristics of the rescuing workfoice These
factors must be weighted into whatever indicatcl* are developed

o The National PTA bel!eves the e,ata collected must make sense and help lead
the way to better schools. In an attempt to improve education. state
decision makers should not flounder in a sea of unrelated data For
instance, if a *tats is ranked 15th in pupil- teechet ratio. 30th in hie.
school graduation rato:, and 40th in SAT scores. what must they do to
improve? %Thar indicators make difference in improving schools' What
must a 'tete do to become r,umber one?

1621
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But let 45 not permit America's :reoccupation with numbers and data to divert

us from the main task: meaningful commitment as a nation in guaranteeing
universal quality education for all of our children, Thus far, the information
about ciucation effectiveness has not concentrated on indicators of quality --

but rather. indicators of quantity. Generally, excellence has come to mean more

or less of something: more graduation requirements, more math, more homework,

more testi, longer school days -- without an understanding about how these
initiatives make a difference in the uglily of services. A National Report Card

can move us into the second phase of educational reform which must focus on
quality as well as the quantity indicators. The National PTA believes that
quality indicators are based on the following]

1. nation wiLla_PolitiCal leadership at_ell levels to improsT schools. and with
await' constittiency that does .1141

vote. For certain, society that has the will to send a person to the moon,
build thousands of miles of interstate highways and bail out savings and loans
institutions can certainly bail out our schools and children as well;

2. eiLittler11112XSrnatra1111114211111thelQCALOUCALlatirtgellriii_in
begin alull partner in educational reform Fully funding such programs as

Headstert. Chapter 1. Education for all Handicapped Children and providing
incentives to encourage skilled professionals into teaching is a critical role.

3. itosxingn11yt parent involvement Proxram in every. school _including

ppporgunipiesSpijugsas to become involved in decision-making Parenting

skills- volunteerism and hos:eLp4hool Programs. The one major factor in school

improvement is parental support if their children and school*.

4. An eaual educational opportunity for every childiao matter where .their place
Of_ residence at _yhat their Parent'a incoMm Vast resource inequities are
creating a two tier system of schools based on community and parental wealth.

S. Preschool opoorti,nities for children wha_nted_tailv intervention
We must assure that es6i child who inters kindergarten starts the academic race
at the ease place. The National PTA supports H.R. 3;

6 g_gopreherisive school_prosram that recognizes the need of the whole child
gpALpravides cow sling. hesith. and nutrition services coordinating the various
gpmmunity agencies. We must stop the turf bickering between agencies that serve

oui youth, and start developing cooperatives,

7. principal who is an instructional leader god teachers Who are caring.
cosperanr_ind_gpfmslitell.. We must also develop strategies to attract more
minority teachers and teachers who are proficient in math and science

It is appropriate to commemorate future National Children Weeks by taking a pulse

of our efforts through National Report Card. Let's begin the work Simply

stated, the struggle for quality education will ultimately he won or lost in the

thousands of classrooms across the country. If indicators are to inform school

improvement, they must reflect those "intangibles" that are hard to measure, but
more accurately refle,t school quality than SAT scores. Lastly, educational

reform is but one factor cf what should be a major plan to better the lives of

our children, A child will not succeed in school if they do nut have 4 home or

if they are hungry or have no access to health care. We have a lot of work to

do if not now. when
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. T. BERRY BRAZELTON

The problems with health care in this country can hardly he
addressed hy statistics. As one.reviews the indicators one could
be lulled into complacency by the fact that our infant mortality
rate is slowly but surely declining. Our neonatal mortality and
post-natal mortality rates look respectable. The pockets of
failure are predictablethey coincide with the pockets of
poverty and of unreachable poor in Southern States, and in the
ghettos of our cities. In our country these pockets are
unacceptable. Vaccine preventable diseases are climbing, AIDS
cases are heralding the breakdown in our societal values, low
birthweigbt and teen births are stationary or rising due to
inadequate prenatal cars - -all of these are indications of failure
in outreach to target populations in all of society, but
particularly in these pockets of poverty. More recently we have
been faced with an invasion of an even more serious threat to
future populations - -the precipitous rise in the numbers of babies
addicted at birth as many as 20% in Boston, 25% in Chicago, over
50% in hospitals in MW, indicates a major epidemic of failure
in our disillusioned, depressed parents-to-be. These are made up
mainly of the poor whom we have never successfully reached, but
careful scouting will show that many are born to addicted middle
class parents. Our society Is revealing a failed value system,
depression in young adults which none of our outreach systems are
prepared to face.

where doss our present medical system stand as we face the
future of children and young adults? In my view, w' need to
address the issues of early detection, of prevention, and of new
ways to offer moral and emotional support to families and
children who represent the failures in our present system. These
are no longer class-related so that we can blame them on poverty
and the inanition that accompanies being poor and disillusioned.
They represent all classes of children and young adults.

As our technology and research in optimising physical care
has improved, our ability to recognise and treat emotional and
cognitive failure in children and young adu-ts has declined. As
a society we do not even support and reach Out to new, young
families at a time wien their energies and optimism is high
around new baby. me are demonstrably the least family-and
child-oriented society in the world with the possible exception
of South Africa. Vence, we miss a major opportunity to enter the
family system at an optimistic time for supportive cooperation
toward prevention of family breakdown and the inevitable
emotional depression in its children whose nurturing needs are
not being addressed. In order to nurture children, adults need
nurturanct. Our present deficit-model of medical care results
in stressed families turning away from the medical system,
resorting to it for physical crises only
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These are not the major sources of failure for most families.
Poverty, stress, and depression are more serious threats, and
they are not reachable by a disease-oriented medical approach.

what would I do to change our system?

1. Study and try to adapt the Canadian system - of a base rate
of quality care available to all, supplemented by a private
system for special consultation which satisfied medical
personnel so that they could be expected to be available in a
one-to-one relationship for stressed individuals.

2. Educate the public as to how to use and demand what they need
from the medical system, i.e., empower the participants with
knowledge and expectations as well as an awareness of their
responsibility in a patient-doctor relationship.

3. Educate medical personnel in how to maintain and utilize
patient relationships and in the importance of understanding
developmental issues. In other words, change our present
approach to a preventative and supportive system - a positive
model.

4. Utilize multidisciplinary medical teams for supporting
parents and children. n.D.'s may not be able to offer all
the understanding and support which families need.

S. Develop strength oriented approaches to outreach for target
populations, poor, depressed and addicted persons in
particular.

6. Emphasize the values of early identification and early
intervention. In our present system this will demand a whole
revision of medical training. Disease and failure-
otientation is a band-aid approach to the issues in which
we are failing in our present system. It is too costly and

inn no longer afford it. Target populations are not
by this system. The future of these addicted

A---a frightening symptcm of the breakdown of our
$1.,1,4 medical and moral systems--will cost this nation more

.ur present defense system. We must redefine what
a strong, healthy country.
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PREPARED STA ' iLNT OF MARIAN WRIGHT EDELMAN

This report card on child health for the nation and the

states vesents stark evidence that, during the 1980s, far too

many of the nation's children experienced preventable death or

disability. On many key indicators, the nation's rate of

progress throughout the 1980s was considerably slower than during

the 1970s. On many others, the nation slipped backward.

Perhaps the most startling child health finding in this

report is the alarming increase between 1980 and 1987 in reported

cases of pertussis (whooping cough), mumps, and measles. Since

1987 our failure to immunize our youngest and most vulnerable

children has led to widespread outbreaks of measles in the

nation's cities. Unlike some of America's most complex problems,

such as drug abuse, we have a readily available response for

prevention of eight common, but serious, childhood diseases. At

a time when UNICEF and Third World nations are conducting a

worldwide campaign to,immunize children against preventable

disease, it is a disgrace that among American infants and

toddlers immunization rates are down and preventable disease

rates are up. We know how to solve this problem todnu.

Our nation's failure to provide a floor of health care

decency under all of our children, as every other other

industrialized country with the exception of South Africa has

done, is a national tragedy of enormous human and financial

proportions. In this decade, virtually no child health measure

has escaped erosion or decline:
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o The overall U.S. infant mortality rate in 1986 placed it
eighteenth worldwide, behind such nations as Spain, Singapore
and Hong Kong. When considered alone, the whit-3 infant mortality
rate placed the nation tenth world wide; the black rate placed it
twenty-eighth behind Cuba, Bulgaria and Czechoslovakia and tied
with Poland, Hungary, Portugal, and Costa Rica.

o AIDS is claiming ever greater numbers of children. Since
1981 more than 1,600 cases of pediatric AIDS have been reported,
and about half of these children have died. Cases aie dispropor-
tionately concentrated among those children who already face the
worst odds. Black and Hispanic children, who together account for
15 percent of the U.S. population of children younger than 15,
account for 77 percent of reported pediatric AIDS cases.

o Prenatal care utilization has worsened in this decade. It is
outrageous that 1987 marked the eighth year in a row in which
late or no prenatal care rates worsened or showed no improvement.

Low-income children are more than three times as likely as
other children never to have received a preventive health exam.
More than one in five of the nation's poorest children had no
physician contact in 1986, compared with one in seven children
generally.

o Each year millions of working families who require out-of-
home child :are must make the terrible choice between unsafe and
poor quality child care or going without other essentials
in order to keep their children safe from injury and disease
while they must be away at work.

Not another year can go by without ensuring basic health
care and decent child care for all American children. Congress
must;

o Establish a national floor of health protection for
every low-income mother and child. At a minimum, health coverage
for every uninsured low-income pregnant woman and child should be
provided immediately under Medicaid;

o Ensure an adequate supply of health providers in medically
underserved areas by expanding the Community and Migrant Health
Centers and Title V Maternal and Child Health programs;

o Provide sufficient funding to fully immunize our infants and
children;

o Furnish WIC benefits to all women, infants, and children in
need of them; and

o Immediately pass the child care legislation now pending in
the House of Representatives and reject the amendment offered by
Congressman Stenholm to cut funding for child care by more than
$1.5 billion.
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PREPARED STATENIEN I 01 fON1 BURRELL, IOWA

Thank you Eor the opportunity to speak t- you today.

My name is Tony Burrell. I am 15 years old and I represent the state
of Iowa. I was born and raised in Iowa where I have lived all my
life. Since the sixth grade I have been active in student council
and I am presently a mrmber of the Juvenile Justice Advisory Council
for Iowa. I enjoy track, bicycle riding, and acting in plays.

I feel the most important need of youth is education. Youth need to
not just go to school, but learn the skills that are essential to
obtaining a good job. I believe the schools need to do all they can
to keep youths focused on getting a good education and staying away
from drugs.

In my high schcol I am aware of man/ students who carry weapons.
Some say they carry weapons for protection but I believe they carry
weapons to upgrade their image. These youth would Oe much better of
if they concentrated on school work as much as their appearance.

It's important that the youths are raised with a desire for a good
education. The schools must do all they can but some of the
responsibility is that of the parents. Only with families and
schools working together to educate all our youth will America remain
a leader in today's world.

168
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MATTHEW WEINSTEIN, ANKENY, IA

As in any other state, the status of youth in Iowa is varied.

Some youth have all the luxuries and privileges of a middle-clas.

life, while many don't have much at all. However, one thing which

the State of Iowa offers all of its children is the opportunity to

get involved.

For most youth getting involved means joining student council

or becoming a class representative. Yet the opportunity for

involvement goes beyond the schoolyard. Iowa holds many conferences

across the state, some of which include volunteerism, substance

abuse and youth leadership. These provide youth the chance to

learn more about subjects which directly affect them. These

conferences, along with help from state agencies. can give youth

valuable knowledge which could not only aid them in improving

their own situation but the community as well.

Another way in which youth cal- get involved is by becoming

part of the political pr)cess. The State of Iowa nurtures its

youth as evidenced by it; top ranking Pdticational system. Many

politicians do care and do listen to the children of the state.

Youth can write to senator- and representatives and be relatively

certain that their letters will be read. The other way for youth

to get involved politcially is to work on political campaigns.

Politicians welcome young people, not only for the leg work which

they can provide, but also for their perspective and insights.

One of the major problems youth face in Iowa is a lack of

things to do. When school related activities Pnd there is little
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t5 do. One can only go to so many movies, bowl so many times, or

drive around so much. Even if these activities didn't become

repetitious, the cost is prohibitive to many youths. Due to this,

there is a growing trend for less fortunate adolescents to turn

to the brotherhood and peer acceptance that gangs offer. Another

effect of this lack of activities is that many turn to alcohol

and drugs. This problem is not limited to urban areas. I live

in a suburban community and most of my classmates drink. I know

from contact with other youth that the problem is worse is rural

areas.

Communities do attempt to offer attractive alternatives.

After high school dances such as Homecoming or the Prom, some

student groups organize activities. Usually they aren't things

which appeal to youth, so most students go to hotel rooms and

throw parties. After this year's Homecoming at my school, a

group of students went to a hotel with cases of beer. Some

churches hold dances on weekends, but they are intended for junior

high school students. Even then the dances are over early so thzt

students have to fine something to do, most likely drinking. Even

though youth realize the dangers of substance abuse, they find

few alternatives.

While the status of youth in Iowa has positive aspects, we

do face problems. From the point of view of one of this country's

greatest resources, young people, something needs to be done. We

need something to do, be it youth centers or some other facility

where kids can congregate. I am sure that. Iowa is not the only

state with this need. This nation's greatest threat is substance

abuse. Unless something is done to counter this, the problems

will only multiply.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF KATHLEEN CONWELL, MT. PLEASANT. IA

My name is Kathleen Joy Conwell. I am a ninth grader at

the Mt. Pleasant Community Junior High School, located in Mt.

Pleasant, Iowa. Mt. Pleasant is a town of about 8,000 persons

and is centered in the rich tarring area of southeast Iowa. he

are proud!' of not only our agricultural heritage but we have a

Strong industrial base in our community. We are also the home

of Iowa Wesleyan College, the first university established west

of the Mississippi. I am here toda ;, October 3, 1989, as one of

three youth ambassadors from the state Jf Iowa for the commeration

of National Children's DIY.

I would like to testify today on two issues which are a

eenceMboth the young people of Iowa and the young people of

our country. These two issues are the right of every 0114 to

a quality education and the responsibility of young people to

volubteer their talents and service to make their home, community,

school, state, and country a better place to live.

Our Right to a Qual.t7 Education

Since I have been old enough to remember, my parents have

taught me that knowledge is the only thing no one can take from

me. A person's health may fail, a bad financial investment can

ruin a person, friends and even, family, can abandon a person;

but what person learns, the knowledge a person acquires, is

1 7
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always with them. With a good education, a person can accomplish

anything he wants to.

I recognize tnat education comes in many shapes and forms.

I believe that a quality education comes not only from schools

but also involves the family and the community. And a large

responsibility for an individual's education lies with the

individual. This would be the best type of education a person

could recieve. But I am aware that because of a variety of

problems and situations, the "perfect" education a child is

not always possible. The "need to survive" in our society has

created a number of problems which has greatly affected the

attitude and direction of education today. However, if we,

the future of American society, are to be able to live and

function in the 21st century,ewe must educate ourselves and

we need your help to do it.

Benjamin Franklin once said, "If a man empties his purse

into his head, no man can take it away from him. An investment

in knowledge always pays the best interest." And I want to ask

you today to make an investment In the future of our country.

Education. is basically a responsibility of the individual state.

But it is interesting to note that our country is a country of

migrating citizens. Many students begin classes in the fall in

one school and end it in another school, many times another state.

I believe that the federal governmer',-, needs to encourage states

to work together to develop minimum education basis. Thll could

be done by developing regional education conferences,-held,yaatly,

to which educators, teachers, administrators, school boards,

parents, and STUDENTS could go to discuss the advancement of
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education in their region. I also feel state and federal legislators

should also participate in this program. Their goal: to

develop programs and standards which would benefit the children

of their region.

As a student, I also believe Lhat tandards for teachers

should be established. Iowa is one of a minority of states which

require'teacher certification. I believe this is good. Ae a

delegate to the 1988 Governor's Youth Caucus, held in Des Moines,

Iowa in October of 1988, I had the opportunity to meet with young

people from across our state and discuss a variety of issues.

Of greatest concern was the direction of education. The

reccommendations which we made to Governor Branstad are

reflective of the request I make of you. I believe that inorder

to provide the best basic education for all students at all

levels of ability, alithool boards should enhance basic educational

standards and require all secondary educational-level students

to pass minimum competency tests before advancing to their nett

grade. I also believe that vocational-technical training programs

should be strenghtened. I am concerned about the number of

studer' who leave our school functionally illiterate and reccommand

that a nationwide Right-To-Read program be promoted, including

incentitives for persons entering the program.

I believe that all the youghof ou, great country deserve

a quality education. And I recognize that this can be accomplished

in a public, private, or home school setting, if those teaching

provide a quality program. But because of abuse and misuse of

the educational program, the youth of the state of Iowa, as represented
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at toe Ocvarnor's Youth Caucus, feel that the quality of education

can be best maintained if ALL teacher* meet basic certification

requirements as manuated by the state and federal governments. I

acknowledge the parents' rights to express their interests and

opinions in the area of their child's education; however, I

believe that every child is entitled to an education which will

allow him or her to function as a contributing member of the society

in which we live. I also believe that it would be a benefit to

the education program if teachers and administrators of puulic,

private, and home schools be required to meet recertification

standards every five years.

As Henry T. Heald stated, "Education's real challenge is

to produce men and women who DO know how to think; and knowing

how, do it; and having done it, voice their opinions." I am

thankful for the education I have received in the puDlio schools

of this country and I pledge myself to speak out on behalf of

quality education for all young people.

Our Res neibilit to Volunteer Our Tale.,ts and Services to our
one Y. 00 a e, an oun ry

The greatest gift a person can give is a little bit of themselves.

A young child draws a picture and brightens the life of another

by giving it to them. A busy mother takes time out of her hectic

day to teach a dozen noisy girls how to build bird houses for a local

park. A high soboel sophmore takes time to present a constitutional

moment to members of the local Senior Citizens group.

In a society of "Take, take, take," and "dive-:me, give me,

give me," it is time for the young people to join together and

17,4.
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Wit an example for the country as we volunteer to make our home,

community, state and cour.ey, and even, our world, a better place

to live.

The American society has a reputation mt helping others.

But in the last few years, organizations such as the Girl Scouts

and Boy Scouts, the American Red Cross, Big Sister and Big Brother

organizations, as well as numerous other volunteer organizations

have seen a decrease in volunteers or an increase for demand of

their services but not enough people to help fill that need. Because

of changes in the American family unit and increased financial

demands, we have seen a decrease in a number of areas of volunteer

services.

If every American, no matter what their age could volunteer

to help in an area of their interest, for only 1 hour a week, great

changes would take place in our culture. And I believe is is

the responsibility of young people to set the example of voluteerism

for our community and country. I have had the opportunity to work

in sereval programs in my cot .unity. The hours I spent doing

volunteer work for our local Students Against Drunk Driving, as

a local museum volunteer, and in service through Girl Scouting and

Exploring have been the most rewarding time I have spent. It is

important that we realize that Volunteerism deem not have to be done

through a structured organisation. What better place our country

would be if we each spent 1 hour a week, picking up trash, collecting

food and clothing for the needy, teaching someone to read, being

friends with others, or serving another person through love and

kindness.
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There 13 30 much to be done in this world and we can not

wait for someone else to do it. If we see a need, we must take

the iniative to fulfill that need. And we must do it, without

concern for how it will benefit us.

I would ask that th^ young people of this country rise up

and set an example for the adults of this world - even a challenge.

The challenge to volunteer one hour a week to the good of mankind.

And I want to challenge you, tne members of this select Committee,

to volunteer an hour a week for the betterment of your communities

in your home state and an hour a week to the betterment of your

adopted community - Washington D.C.

President John P. Kennedy stated in his Inaugural speech,

"Ask not what your country can do for your, ask what ycu can do for

your country." Today, these words sometimes ring hollow. We

many times think of only ourselves and what certain programs,

laws, and legislation can do for us or our interests. Let us

seep beyond that - Let us ask what can we do for our coun%,ry and

then let's do it.

And let us recognize those who contribute to their communities,

especially young people. It is not to much to say thank you or

to write a letter to express your gratitude for volunteer work

that is being done. Volunteers do not volunteer to recieve recog-

nition, but they do deserve it. Let us express our gratitude to

those unsung American heroes - volunteers. They are truly the

heart of this great country - enc. a lot of them are young people.

1 6
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOBY SHIMOMURA, SEATTLE, WA

Just a point of information, teenagers and politicians are lialot
alike. The only time you testi, hear about them is when one's
involved in sex scandal, diverting funds, or when teens are
getting pregnant, on drugs, dropping out of school, or committing
some violent crime. It' important not to lase sight of the
majority of youth who are actually doing all right. I think that's
whats being done today. The declaration of a National Children'Day is definate step in the right direction. (It' nice to see
the nation finally instep with the City of Seattle, who's had
lidsDay for five years now.)

One simple, but extremely important message 'tom the young people
of the State of Washington: Utilise your orAit valuable
as resources. young people as vy'oble resources. Touchhave got to be included in the grassroots discussion and derision
making of legislation, policies nd programs which effect c ldrenand youth. After all, who are thn experts when it c,:aes down to
drugs in schools? The students. Who are the experts when It cometdown to teenage pregnancy? Teens. Take whet's happening here
for instance. The opportunity to speak infront of you is absolutely
wonderfil. However, it should not be a once in e life time
OppOttUi ity.
Discission makers and the youth of this country have got to
establish ongoing dialogue. This concept of gathering input from
youth is more popular on the local level and now it's time to see
acitom ani. movement on the national level.

Utilising this concept is not costly.
It's being done in Seattle, with ridslioard. It is youth leadership
progrne that advises civic leaders in the cc.mmunity on youth issues.
They raise many questions and concerns that most *dolts wouldn't
ever think of.

I think we've been given lot of lip service and little action.
7f we truly valued children then federal budget expenditures should be
consistent with what our leaders are preaching, children, families
and education. nut, right now when you take a look at public
policies, ,ou see that children are often secondary to m: itary
strength, balancing the budget and no new tomes.
Lets show some consistency.

All of the concerns that will be brought up today, are not unrealistic
dreams, they are not fantasies and too idealistic. They represnt
what any civilised society would do for it's children. The simple
fact that some children are only dreaming of theta services and not
experiencing them is dramatic indicaiton of our lack of commitment
to our children.

Allow young people to become active participants, empower thee,
support them, encourage th s, but moat of all listen to them.

79
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CHILDREN'S INDEX*

% of Washington's public school students who have tried alcohol by the sixth grade: 54
% who have tried it by the tenth grade: 84

% of tenth grade student who say it is easy to get cocaine: 31.2
% who say they have actually tried cocaine: 8

Amount the State spent on drug education in 1988: 5257,000

The State's K-12 education budget for 1988:55,1 billion
\ Washington youth who never graduate from high school: 1 in 4

Rate of low-birth-weight babies in Seattle in 1987: 7%
Rate of low-birth-weight babies in Western Europe in 1987: 4%

Cost to State of norm J-birth-weight baby: 51,187
Cost to .c tate of low-birth-weight baby: 54,447

% of babies born in Washington without prenatal care: 22

Amount poverty among children has increased in the U.S. since 1979: 37%
Washington children who live in poverty: 1

Black, Latino, and Native American children in Seattle who live in poverty: I in 2
Minimun monthly income the State says a family of three needs to survive: $872
Proportion of that level that the State provides in is public assistance grants: 56%

Number of women and children turned away by area shelters in November 1988:4,277
Children counted sleeping outside in Seattle on one night in November 1988: 21

Number of school-age homeless children in Washington in 1988: 16,000
Proportion that did not attend school: 46%

Annual amount the State spends per pupil on education: 53,846
Amount the State spends poi year to house a single prison inmate: $20,000

Washington's national rank in pupil-teacher ratio:47th
Washington's national rank in the size of an average class: 4th

% of Seattle's children that are minority: 34
% of the city's children living in poverty that are monority: 54
% of United Way funding serving minonty clients :n 1986: 24

Seattle children who need childcare: 23.000

Licensed childcare slots available: 8,854
Seattle children who need subsidized childcare: 10,000

Number that receive it: 1,500
Licensed daycare slots needed on the Eastside alone by 1998: 16,230

Of nation's 6 million businesses, number that assist employees with childcare: 4,500

% of children in three Seattle low-income neighborhoods who are hungry: 42
% of Washington women Lid children eligible for WIC who do not receive it: 68

% increase in numbers served by Seattle area food -banks since 1980: 3,200
% decrease in food donations to area food-banks since 1985: 3040

Number of Washington children of working parents who have no health insurance: 151,000

% personal income has decreased for poorest fifth of U.S. population since 1979: 9.8
% personal income has increased for richest fifth of U.S. population since 1979: 15.6%

% of low-paying service jobs in Washington allied between 1978 and 1985: 75
% Of U.S. families headed by a single parent: 18

% of King County families headed by a single parent: 23
% of Seattle families headed by a single parent: 30

% of Black children in King County who will live with only one parent by 1990: 57
% of Seattle women who work outside the home and have school-age children: 70

Number of Seattle -area cases added to Child Fro live Services in 1985: 4,061
Number of new cases in 1986: 4,535

y% of state' 94,000 emotionally disturbed children who do not receive utatment 94
% of all emotionally disturbed children that come from low-income families: 67

Modeled &ILO lixrper's Index," Harper' s ACIIITLY

180
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PkEPARED STATEMENT OF SERENA PETERSON, BELMONT COUNTY, OH

Good afternoon Honorable Congressmen, Youth, Ladies and Gentlemen.

i am Serena Peterson, presently living in Southeastern Ohio, Belmont County.

This is a great privilege and honor to be addressing Congress considering that

9 1/2 months ago I was a practicing alcoholic and drug addict.

I understand you would like to build more prisons for drug users. I feel like

Someone beiny thrown into a cell, considering the crime, will not come back

into society with the attitude of being sober and maintaining sobriety. Unless

they receive the education, counseling and support while in prison they will not

re-enter society with a proper attitude necessary for a successful recovery. I

also feel since there has been a decrea-,e in high school drug use and an increase

in usage among kids between the ages of 10 and 15, that the educational process

should start in the elementary grades. We all know this is the biggest and the

hardest war we have ever fought; we can never give up.

When I became willing to change I had a lot of support and a lot of help. My

family gave me lots of support along with the A.A. fellowship. My mentor parents

gave me a lot of knowledge as well as support. They introduced me to the Inde-

pendent Living Program in which I learned: anger management, issues of self -

esteem, safe sex, money management, wise shopping and many other subjects and

areas. They helped me to set realistic goals and showed me the importance of

getting a post-secondary education.

If it would not have been for this support and encouragement plus a desire

within myself for a better life I could be a prostitute right now n prison,

or even worse I could be dead. I would like to see programs such as this be

made permanent because we are America's future.

I owe many thanks to the Belmont County Children Services Agency, the federal

independent Living Initiatives Program and to everyone else who has made this

trip possible. I would also 1 ^e to give special thanks to Aran Maxwell, Dir-

ector of the Office of Program Enhancement, and Daisy Alford and the Ohio

Department of Human Services.

1 E 1

Thank you. (
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MERCER BAINES, TRENTON, NJ

Good evening, I am Mercer Lydell Baines, a KIKS peer leader who

was asked to speak on behalf of the State of New Jersey's youth.

First of all, do adults feel stressed? I wondered about that

because, believe it or not, we teens are stressed all the time!

Stress feels awful. Kids will do almost anything to help

themselves feel better. For kids, stress can come from various

things: peer pressure to drink, to shoplift, losing samoone you

love. Recently, I was training a new KIK', group of 7th grade

peer leaders. They told as how awful was that a 12 year old

boy they all knew in their neighborhood was just shot because of

drugs. He's dead. They could hardly believe it. Some people

(teens) turn to substance abuse to ease the pangs of stress.

Others have sex too soon resulting in unwanted pregnancy; some as

young as 5th graders. Kids do these things just to be noticed, or

to be loved, if they don't feel loved anywhere else. They think

maybe their boyfriend or girlfriend will love them if they have

sex. KIKS teen peer leaders like me are there for these 4th, 5th,

6th, and 7th graders as a friend and a role model.

KIKS (Kids Intervention with Kidn in School) is a program

dedicated to offer trust, show uhderstanding, and most of all

18.2
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encouragement to younger kids who may not think much of

themselves. You can't stop kids from serious drug and alcohol

abuse or dropping out of school if they don't like themselves

enough or don't see a future. Hope and feeling good about

yourself are the two most important things all kids need.

As a peer leader and role model, I tried to show the (pre-teen)

kids in my group my own growing self-esteem. I try to show them

understanding without being phony. I offer trust and openess, and

most importantly, help them to feel good about themselves.

Wouldn't it be great to have more teens helping pre-teens like in

our KIKS program? We the teens are the future. We need to grow

to our full potential. It's hard to do when some kids live in the

city where everyday other kids pressure them to do things they

don't really want to do. My pre-teens in my KIKS group see many

people around them in their families and neighborhoods kilAng

themselves with alcohol and drugs. Please don't let .he future

die! Don't let us die, because we are the future!

Thank you.

1E3
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ANMAY LAM, KAILUA, HI

Cnairman Miller. Chairwoman Bomer. and members of the Jcnnt
Select Lommittec on Children, Youth anc Families and Budget

Committee Task force on human resources : My name is Anna}, Lam. I

am lb years old and live in kallua. Hawaii.
I would :Ile to

than% you for this opoortunit\ to testify h,--fore your .ommitto.-,-.

about some of my concerns about runaways and youth violence ,s

well as my ideas of how Congress can help to solve these
problems.

being a runaway myselt for a year. I felt the helole.snoss
and desperation that a teenager faces when he or she lives on the
Streets. "Who are these lids on the street'l" you may ask. Tnuv
are young people who are Lonfused end newt guidance. they ,re

young people in oanget. They are young people who need your

support.

Many times, it is easy for us to forger what 16 happering to
these teenagers. At one in the morning where are most of you"
In the house sleeping' Watchirl a late-night movie" Well, for

these rids on the run, they are scared. freezing, lost, ,nd

desperate. They want someone to help them. tint they do!,'t tr.-1w

where to go. Often, they end up with the wrong type of si.poolt.

These are merely children th.4t I am talking about - all of them

have great potential but they had e bad stert.

I have friend, her name is Trisna. Trisha wa tn,

beautiful, and a runaway. Her parents did not understand her, as

essa put 0.. and her father would beat her up. Trisha ran away to

184
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life on the street where she met new "friends". Soon after, sne

began to shoplift and inject drugs into her veins. She had no

money, so she turned to prostitution. She is now i a druo

rehabilitation center.

I thinl, what's most important for us to Inow is that T isha

IS real. She may be the teenager news. door or anywa's baby

girl. She is also lust one of many runaway teens - scary. Isn't

it" Well. it s time(, more noprifyino 4-ir the tu'ins Actually

out there.

But there are solutions that can be explored. One would he

to stop the problem before it even happen,-,. This coula wean more

counselors ayailaulity and mor a programs oriented towAro family

crisis. Another avenue would be drop-in centers. If money was

made available to open A, help canter where runaways be

helped before they get int.o stiil more trouble, these teen. could

be saved.

Vas, I know everyone will say it all goes beck to money.

/t's true that it will tale a onod ..muunt c.f monetary sopport +or

anything to start. but aren't these children worth

Investing in our nation's youth is investing into our country's

future. Besides. these aren't numbers but FFAL childrer, whn need

help. Lost youth who needs

Regarding youth violence: this seems to be the result of

many cau -es. One stems from substance abuse. Young people today

are ',Wino themse)./es with druw, monv tu,, fought up wtth drugs

to find help. Another cause ion at arms. Wit', su m,Any

185
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firearms available to the nation's youth. killing ourselves is

becoming an easy task. Also. many children are getting involvcd

in illegal activities..

What is happening? In a Californian study of leading school

problems, those surveyed in the 1940's ranked talking.

gum, making noise. running in the hallways. getting out t4

chewirm

place

In line. wearing impr oper tic' Ina. and not n.sposing u+ uanage

in the correct places as the ..ajor concerns. Those surveyed in

the 1960"s. however. cited drug abuse. alcohol abuse. prPtianancy.

suicide. rape. robber. assault. burglary. aron, and bomb.ngs

their concerns.

It is obvious that our problems are growing worse. In the

past weeks. Hawaii has experienced several cases of shootirvis on

school campuses. This is sLary +or me - to now that my triends

can be victims of this brings it even closer to home. My home

school has had about 7 incidents of cars brirq broken into within

this past month although it is situated in e.. affluent =,uburhan

neighborhood. Why is this so"'

Well. maybe it's because I can get drugs in about 15

minutes if I try. Maybe it's because it seems 1210 there aren't

enough after shoot program available to .,uth. Mavt- at

because there isn't enough money for the state to resolve this

problem.

One fact is clear: The stat- does not have en0Qqh

pull programs together to veep youth busy and thus prevpnt

problems of substance abuse. pregnan y. violence, the list goer.

on. This is a NATIONAL problem. not just a problem fur

186
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SUSAN SCHNELLER, LAWRENCEVILLE, NJ

Presented to: Members of the Select Committee on Children, Youth, and
Families and the Budget Committee Task Force on Human Resources,

Washington, D.C.

Hello. Ply name Is Susan Schaller end I em an ambassador representing the
state cf New Jersey.

Our country hes several grove issues pertaining to youth to address and the
Onus of how to deal with them falls upon all of our shoulders. Therefore, I
em going to attempt to give you a deeper insight into tree world of todey's
young people. My generation Is plagued by such problems as drug and alcohol
abuse, increasing numbers of temp suicides end pregnancies, and general
rebellion. All of you are ewers of these situctIons. However, I hope to
enlighten you as to the underlying reasons for them and offer you one
effective way of preventing these problems.

Whet most adults do not realize is that all these destructive behaviors are

adolescents' reactions to or escapes from their environment. The question
I:, why would any young person need a retreat, whether healthy or
unhealthy? One very important motive Is stress. I believe many people hove

a misconception of the lives my fellow teenagers and I lead, because they

view them as easier due to technological advances, better financial

opportunities, end improved education. However, a fact Olt Is often ignored
Is that with these advantages comes greeter responsibIl.ty, pressure to

188
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perform, and higher personal expectations, ail at an earlier age. Added to

these is constant peer pressure about things ranging from the trivial, such

as the right style of clothes, to serious matters concerning sex and drugs.

The burden of avoiding disastrous decisions becomes especially difficult

when we are urged on by our friends. Teens are also subjected to pressures

from parents, teachers, society, and themselves. Along with this, the

average youth has very little self-esteem and leeks decision-making and

communication skills. This makes most youngsters vulnerable. A classmate

of mine hed Difficulty making decisions and communicating with her family.

She now has a young child and has dropped out of school. The result of these

stresses and inabilities to cope can be an extremely destructive force if

someone does not know how to deflect it.

So, how cr n to combat these weaknesses? I strongly recommend

that you ,tually unused resource: America's youth. Yes, we can
and will hi, solve our own problems if given the chance. A peer leadership

program has been established in my school system by the Children's Home

Society of New Jersey. KIKS, or Kids Intervention with Kids in Schoo:, is a

project in which teenagers are first trained and then presented to younger

students as positive roll models. My fellow high school peer leaders end

support our younger peers and through various activities let them practice

how to deal with anger, to reduce stress, to make constructive decisions,

to improve their communication skills, and to view themselves as people

worthy of all the benefits of life. We are not teachers, but just older

friends who care and want to help. I believe that using older peers to

communicate to the younger students Is much more effective than any

program where adults run the groups. In the early teenage years

.1&9
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many kids tend to turn to their peers for examples of acceptable behavior
instead of to adults. As teens strive to become independent people they
rebel against those who restrict their efforts. Thus, the influence any adult
might have on these students IS greatly diminished. If the younger people
already look to their teen peers fOr right and wrong, then it seems logical to
have older teenagers guide their younger peers through problems with which
they ere very familiar and are still struggling with themselves on a more
complicated level. I personally know this is true from being on both sides
of the system. When I was the only freshmen at the fell F. ,ay tryouts and
knew no one, seeing my peer leader walk into the auditorium was en
incredible support end relief. This Is why older peers are the better medium
to um with young teenagers. We are not only the problem, we are the
solution.

The lest topic I wish to address is how KIKS has effected me. I have found
that throLgh my peer leadership training end experiences with seventh and
eighth graders every week I have become more sensitive to the needs of
others end of myself. Working with my peer groups gives me a great sense
of satisfaction, for I feel that I have contributed to the lives of "my kids." I

share In their joys and successes, as well as helping them cope with their
disappointments. I ern more confident and feel comfortable with who I am.
For severe) years I was very intimidated by many of my classmates, because
the way I think and act often deviates from the "popular view. I now find it
easier to accept my differences and deal assertively with my peers. It is
also simpler for me to handle stressful situations and to do what's right for
me, no matter what others may think.

Committee members, you have the opportunity to help establish peer
i4c Afr-41.5

leadership programioacross the country as one solution to the problems

facing America's youth. Thank you for lstiming to my observations and
suggestions. I hope I have helped you batter understand why I feel there is a
necessity for such programs throughout our country.

15O.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF TINA RUSKIN, BELMONT COUNTY, OH

Good afternoon Honorable fongressmen, -s and ,:entlemen and Youth:

I am Tina Ruskin, from Southeastern Belmoit Counti, Ohio. I am honored to be

here speaking to this joint committee.

Let me tell everyone a.Tittle it about myself. I have been in foster care for

9 years. Prior to my recent foster home of 5 years in Ohio I had been in 6

different foster homes in West Virginia. The moving from home to home has been

difficult for me. To avoid this moving around, the foster care agency should

find a proper home for foster children where both the foster child and the

foster parents are satisfied and happy. Even though I have never been in serious

trouble with drugs, alcohol,with the law, etc., I have had my share of troubles.

My recent foster home has been the closest I have come to feeline like I'm really

home.

Just last April my foster parents received special training in entorine,. The

training they received is now helping me. I have learned, and am still learning,

many things.

First, I am learning how to manage my money properly. Also, I now have my very

own savings account in which there is money for college. Saving money is tne first

step to help a child prepare for his or her future. I am also learning how to do

the following: cook, clean, laundry, and how to take care of myself (hygiene).

The program has helped me deal with painful issues and I feel better about myself.

Thanks to the Mentor Independent Programs I will know how to take care of myself

when I am on my own. Also, through this program, there are grants and other

special funds for children like myself, to help children go to college. I would

advise all foster children to go to college. No matter where they are, they

all should go if they can. I have learned a lot throught the Mentor and Indepen-

dent programs.

I now believe it myself and feel confident of my future. I have set goals and

I really plan to reach them. All foster children need to feel good about them-

selves, to have hope for the future.
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There are many dangers that threaten the teenagers of today. There is the drug

and alcohol problem, teen pregnancy, and other issues. I am not going into de-

tail about these issues, since I haver never had personal experiences with any

of these issues. The problems are serious and if nobody cares about them, they

will grow.

Teenagers of today are influenced by their peers. Many do not listen to the)e

parents or anybody else. Teenagers think that turning to drugs will solve theic
.

problems; it will not. Drugs will only make problems worse. I would advise

1

teenagers to talk to other people about their problems instead of turning to

drugs. Other people can help teens solve their problems; drugs will not. There

are groups and other programs that are set up that will help teens with their drug

and alcohol problem. Teachers and other professionals could refer youth for drug

and alcohol assessments.

Teen pregnancy, S.T.Ds and A.I.D.S are major issues. There are more and more

"kids rafsing kids" in America. The Belmont Children Services Agency offered

teen groups with a way to deal with these important issues. These issues are also

addressed by the Independent Living Program. The best way to avoid getting preg-

nant or catching S.T.D.s is not to have sex. Even though teenagers think that sex

is fun, it is also dangerous. Another way is that teens can protect themselves.

Different types of protection are available. My advice would be either don't do

it, or if the teens choose to do so, use protection. Teens are taking big chances

when having sex and not protecting themselves.

That conc'.ides my testimony. I would like to thank the Belmont County Children

Services, the Independent Living Program sponsors, and Daisy Alford, Deputy

Director of the Ohio Department of Human Services. I would also like to thank

the Congress for letting me speak to this joint committee, and for passing the

Federal Independent Living Initiatives. But most of all, I want to thank my

foster parents for supporting me and helping me reach my goals.

Thank you all very much.

1 82
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF KIM MALETIA, KAILVA, HI

CHAIKMAN MILLEF. CHeIHWOMAN riOXEF, AND rliMEtf F. OF THE JOINT

SELECT COMMITTEE ONCHILDPEN. YOUTH. AND FAMILIES AND PUDGET

EOMMITTFF IASI FORCE UN HI/IAN FE- 11FtI M r 1m M-letta.

I Am 1 h veet s old th I I ua, I m I wank 1 0 ; m 1 e to

thank you for this poportunit y to testity b +ore your committee*

about some of my personal concer n!. about "Prevention prour,ms ano

Out-Of-Home Livt no r ac ilit rme,d my ide. 1+ how Concires, Lan

help to /.olve nle&sr.

Many youths today including myself. face numerous of

problems and pressure especiall at home. h.AI Also at school And

at WOMI.. h-Or r. t_ommnnicatioh with

parents or cluardiahr- you may be unwAntea Or physically.

mentally. and even prominently now. setiall Ahnsed. Als,u. you

may yet iC4 Pd n it or 1hp hr nt- 4

report t ro fl. not t !mg om,1 t. I,, o6m t)ape. AC, 0 , or, my e pet ,ence,.

the old philosophy that a child is, to be seeh and not heard. cIo.

when havino these problems, who ln vc I tttrr, ,m; end ront-r, vI.1

go 4-0, t10 f }4..i e /1.e rat ,,r.0 pm owl 0 I '7; .

youth will naturally turn to the streets ohd now turnolg to

drugs. So what is the issue"

The issue IS A l - 4 -11 m L mmmi (-,n pm

trouble/ VOW' he . I r.t 1st / - or-1, t -.how , vOut hc,

who nee-r] help Out half of them Are not ith E to bet that help

because there are a Intl of pFC,,),,(10.. or,mAC)S. ou,t-

of-home llvir,C4 4 11 ,t

1S3
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In addition to not rouo! facilities. sucial worl,ers have

decreased which !..-4 114

placement.

1,' pr -mr, rfd.

and ,A,10 +.1 1 nq Wor er s ere bei nu flyer oaded. That

Causes them to be very stressed -O.. and the youths then end un

not getting the hpip According t A need!.. In the nome. the

social wariel, and cow t-lors are t0 ho,,,v with tlir

paper work or phone rails. The youths then feel very depressed.

neglected. no one ceres. no one wants to help them. and no one

undrst.Nnds. rh. n0 cl r111 rn,t want ing

to deal with the wut,lem dpymor,.

In some cases when one facility is not able to help the

youth. and another fAcililv

problem. monie

1 I at,1, rr,r yIatt -nec 1:1

V 1 , rr,ti a I i It 11 tri r,
the youth then h to wait a long preriod o+ time to get

placement, and may nnt even get ! laced at ell. We -.re tr, new

generatiri. If wt. I 1,e 1,, , vt, 1 oe.-ed In ,_anise

there aren t enough programs to turn to, what th,n-'

In order to meet up to these IS,,UeS. we will definitely need

money to help us orhvrde pruur an. ano t'or youth,. and

1 ve t, hew t ba-, Lit1r151.-. 1 I t,t r1 1 r ,1111 ta,lt CO

situations. Through this, we hoop to be able to reunite child

and parent and lead them toward e hapo)er tent 1, 11+e.

THAW- you.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF TOBY WESTBROOK, MEETEETSE, WY

As a teenager in America today and knowing some of the serious
problems todays youth face, I would like to make a positive
statement about my personal situation.

Ay name is Toby Westbrook and I represent Wyoming, and a small
community in the north-west part of the state called Meeteetse.
Meeteetse is a town of 450 people with second and third generation
ranch families, with strong roots in agriculture and more recently
tied to the mineral industry.

Because of it* small size and relative isolation, the
community is very integrated to the school system and the
activities of the studeLl'..s. More often than not, a football game,
volleyball game, or school play is the only entertainment on Friday
night and we enjoy 100% support of our community.

The pupil teacher ratio is very low, about eight to one, which
gives our teachers a better opportunity to kno-, each of us and to
work closely one to one with us. The teachers all live in our
community and we eso see them as neighbors and family friends and
role models.

Our school system offers a large variety of extra curricular
activities, which require participation by almost every student in
the system. Besides the normal classroom day from eight to three,
most of us participate in sports, are active in school groups,
organizations and vocational programs.

My family chose to live and work in this small rural community
because of its statement on education and its healthy rural
environment. They have encouraged me to stay in touch with my past
by giving me an agriculture related background and supporting
strong vocational programs such as 4-H and Future Farmers of
America. Whether or not I choose an agriculture related career,
I feel a strong sense of belonging and reassurance of where my
roots are.

I feel fortunate to live in a community where education is
such a high priority commitment. This has a very positive effect
on students in my school, and I think our almost non-existent drop-
out rate and high percentage of our college bound students is
testimony to that. This is a fact that my community is very proud
of and strives to continue. My community has found a positive
approach to assuring its young people of a better life for
themselves through strong educational values.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF GARY L. BAUER,

PRESIDENT, FAMILY RESEARCH COUNCIL

Many thanks to the Select Committee on Children, Youth and

resales, to the Chairman, Mr. Miller, and to the Ranking Minority

Member, Mr. blileT, for inviting me to contribute testimony for

this occasion.

The Family Research Council, es you know, conducts public

policy analysis and advocacy is the interest of the traditional

family and the values that undergird it. In keeping with those

values, I support the principles of the Joint Resolution that

created this observance, in particular the fifth, sixth, and

seventh paragraphs, which read as follows:

Whereas, it is important for parents to

spend time listening to their children on a

daily basis;

Wherele, modern societal and economic

demands often pull the family apart;

Whereas, encouragement should be given to

families to sot aside a special time for e'l

family members to remain at homa#,.,

think the diagnosis and the aspirations reflected in theme

paragraphs are souoa. While I would not want to see government act

as a sort of enforcer to make sure families have their daily

together time, I certainly think families ought to strive for

closeness and interdependence among their members.
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The priaery beneficiaries of such closeness and

interdependence are children. Children ore also those most hurt

by the pressures that often militate against family closeness,

including two-parent employment, and the trend towards Over higher

rates of divorce.

Our children are as the Joint Resolution puts it tho

future, hops, and :aspiration of the United States." And the

foully is quitk simply the best venue for the nurturing and

development of that future, hope, and inspiration. The traditional

family has a track record as long as human history.

Let us not ftli into the habit of thinking of our children

"resources,' requiring investment.' No government largess, no

matter how well Intel/teed, can replicate what the family has

traditionally done. I become anxious, Kr. Chairman, when I hear

words like "neglect" and `abandon` used to describe what government

does when it leaves children to their own families instead of

providing programs for them. The needs of children must not become

another pretext for the growth et leviathan. The fact that many

families today ere dysfunctional C4118 for remedies aimed at

strengthening families, not at substituting for them.

Our nation's future is in our nation's children; and our

children's future is in our nation's families.

Thank you vary much.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF TIANA NEWBAUER-HAMPION, MINNESOTA

My involement in the community has been a learning tool and a very valuable

experience for me and tathers I have worked with. At this moment I am

involved with four different youth group programs. Each program is unique

in its own way. These prorrams have helped me to create a future for myself

And develop self esteem as well as the skills needed to be assertive and a

youth leader.

Soaring Eagles, an Indian youth leadership support group, has helped me develop

leadership skills that are essential to all of the programs I am involved in.

I have learned listening skills in all of the programs but this program has

really helped me to use them. Soaring Eagles has given me responsibility and

has taught me the importance of following through with projects I start.

Cultural values is a very important part of this program; understanding our

culture and the cultures of others helps us to rise above the ignorance

of racism. In Soaring Eagles I learned fund raising skills and how to work

together as a team, too.

The Minneapolis Youth Coordinating Board has g. .n me the opportunity to speak

out about my beliefs and has provided the suppo . to do this. As a group we

try to get our peers more involved in the community as well as letting them

become more aware of what has been happening in their communities. One

project that we did was to go to schools as Peer Educators to inform students

about AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome). We have given presentations

and read proposals and given our feedback about youth concerns in our city.

The Community Crime Prevention Youth Advisory Panel has taught me the importance

of laws and justice. It has also given me the chance to learn about and express

what youth services I believe are needed, what is working and what is not working

to help youth stay away from crime. We visited the Red Wing Juvenile Boy's

Correctional Facility and had a chance to discuss some of the reasons many of

the boys got involved in crime This trip made a big impression on us and since

then we have been trying to find a new program to help those kids.

The Youth as Crime Prevention Resource Project operates through Community Crime

Prevention as well. We meet with alot rf police officers and other crime
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prevention staff. This project deals mainly with youth mediation, better

known as conflict resolution. All members have gone through forty (40)

hours of training to learn personal safety and conflict resolution or

mediation skills. During the summer we worked in different parks in

the metropolitan area and used our skills and training to deal with daily

disagreements and arguments. We were also responsible for giving two

Personal safety workshops at our park site. The workshops covered things

like bike safety, McGruff safe house, date rape, etc. depending on the age

of the group we spoke to. The effectiveness of my training led to me being

offered a job at the park dieing the school year.

These four programs are only a small part of the many programs offered to youth,

yet all youth are not as fortunate as I have been to know about them and be

involved in them. Each program is set up to accomodate a certain number of

kids and for that reason I believe it i; very important to continue to fund

and support youth programs. These programs help youth to become determined

to finish school and train for better jobs. This is what insures us a

brighter future. I see youth involvement in their community as a chance to

change the statistics I hear daily about kids in gang activity, drugs and

other destructive behavior. It i_ way for youth trapped in r-lative life

styles and unhappy family situations to learn how to strive for a better life

and learn skills to do that and see why they work. They can have hope that there

is a way to have meaningful lives.

[Whereupon, at 12:15 o'clock, the hearing was adjourned.]
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